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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
Annual Report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this Annual Report.

This Annual Report, for which the directors (the “Directors”, and
each a “Director”) of Interactive Entertainment China Cultural
Technology Investments Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this Annual Report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this Annual Report misleading.

This Annual Report will remain on the “Latest Company
Announcements” page of the GEM website at
http://www.hkgem.com for a minimum period of seven days
from the date of its publication and on the Company’s website
at http.//www.iechina.com.hk.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016. During the year under review, the Group recorded revenue
from continuing operations of approximately HK$510,143,000
(2015: HK$257,853,000), representing an increase of 97.8% as
compared with the corresponding period in last year. The loss
attributable to the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the
Company from continuing and discontinued operations was
approximately HK$344,617,000 (2015: profit of approximately
HK$63,951,000).

MOVING FORWARD IN A PRUDENT WAY

During the year under review, the economy in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC") slowed down, plagued with
domestic and overseas challenges, bringing negative impact
on many industries. Facing these uncertainties, the Group has
adopted a prudent approach in business development, focusing
more efforts and investments in businesses with less downside
risks and better prospect.

In November 2015, the Group acquired two granges in Australia,
which has timely captured the business opportunity in the
booming Australian tourism industry. Followed by that, the Group
further acquired “The Balgownie Estates Resort” and its resort
business in Victoria, Australia in the second quarter of 2016 to
further expand the Group'’s hospitality business in Australia.

Another significant step taken by the Group during the year
under review was the completion of the disposal of 51.46%
interest in _E)8 % E & AR A F] (in English, for identification
purpose, Shanghai Zhiqu Advertisement Co., Ltd.) (“Zhiqu”) at
a consideration of approximately RMB237,010,000, resulting
in the Group recognising a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$204,017,000 (2015: Nil) in the profit or loss
during the year under review. The disposal of Zhiqu represents a
lucrative opportunity to the Group to realise its investment in the
integral marketing services business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBES

NEW CHALLENGES IN 2017

Looking forward, the Group will make efforts to improve its
overall operational capability and enhance its competitiveness
in the market. On one hand, the Group will actively seek for
new potential business opportunities to expand its investment
portfolio; and on the other hand the Group will strengthen
its foothold in its existing businesses which have shown great
potential in generating strong income. Despite the risks in the
global economy in the year of 2017, the Group will remain
selective and cautious when formulating its development
strategies, and will strive for a balance between business
diversification and risk mitigation for the year of 2017.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
all valuable Shareholders, investors and clients for their support
and also thanks to all the staff for their efforts and contributions
to the Group.

Zhang Xiongfeng
Chairman

24 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the principal activities of
the Group were (i) mobile internet cultural business and provision
of IT services; (ii) provision of hospitality and related services in
Australia; (i) provision of medical diagnostic and health check
services; (iv) provision of integral marketing services which
was regarded as a discontinued operation; (v) money lending
business; and (vi) assets investments business.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded revenue
from continuing operations of approximately HK$510,143,000
(2015: HK$257,853,000), representing an increase of approximately
97.8%. The increase was mainly attributable to the revenue
generated from (i) provision of professional IT contract and
maintenance services by EPRO (BVI) Limited, which was acquired
in August 2015; and (ii) provision of hospitality and related services
in Australia which commenced in November 2015.The net loss
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
Shareholders was approximately HK$344,617,000 for the year
under review, as compared to the net profit attributable to the
Shareholders in 2015 of approximately HK$63,951,000, mainly
attributable to (a) the total fair value losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$261,681,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016, which comprised approximately
HK$247,226,000 of unrealised losses and approximately
HK$14,455,000 of realised losses, as compared with total fair
value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$50,821,000 for the year ended 31 December
2015, which comprised approximately HK$55,911,000 of unrealised
gains and approximately HK$5,090,000 of realised losses; (b) the
loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$18,700,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 while
the Group had not disposed of any available-for-sale investments
in the year ended 31 December 2015; (c) the decrease in the
Company'’s share of the results of its associates from net profits of
approximately HK$32,556,000 for the year ended 31 December
2015 to net loss of approximately HK$22,237,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016; (d) the increase in finance costs from
approximately HK$8,704,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015
to approximately HK$23,816,000 for the year end 31 December
2016, attributable to the increase in the borrowings of the Group; (e)
the impairment losses on investment in Something Big Technology
Holdings Limited (“Something Big”, together with its subsidiaries
and controlled companies “Something Big Group”), an associate
of the Company, of approximately HK$191,511,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016; and (f) the absence of the gain on a
bargain purchase of a subsidiary for the year ended 31 December
2016 while the gain on a bargain purchase of a subsidiary for
the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$32,783,000, notwithstanding there being a gain on the disposal
of a subsidiary of approximately HK$204,017,000 made by the
Group in the year ended 31 December 2016.

EREH 8D T

E LIS piE) =

BE_ZT-—RFT_A=+—HILFE K*&
BrEXR2XRBA: (VBB EBBESUEER KR
WA B IRTS (i) PO 1R B 5 & 48 B
ARTS : (iii) S L B8 B2 i B AR AR A5 ¢ (iv) £ 1
EAZHRS (ARAERERIEEER) © (v)
EEED: MVIBEEREXEE-

BHE-_Z— X F+-_A=+—HItFE &K&E
E 5K BIFELE EBUALS10,143,000
BT (ZZ— R 257,853,000/ 70) - 18
#597.8% ~ZIBIMHEBHRR KA TEE
B9 U A : (i) B8 EPRO (BVI) Limited (R —Z—H
FNARB)IRHRBEELEAREEHORERE
RE RS B (i) PAOBRIMN T2 458 /5 & A8 8 AR 7%
(R=ZZE—RF+—AA®B) ROEFE"
BRELHFENERITEEEREBEERERY
/344,617,000 70 T —F — A FEREE(L
AR REH) £63,951,0008 70 EE B H R (a)
REBE-_ZT—R"EF+-_A=+—BLEE"
BAVFEEBRERINEZEREEZLAFE
BB 48 %A #) /5261,681,0008 71 EFF B IEXR
B30 E 18 49247,226,00076 T M O # IR EE D
14,455,000 70 MREBE T —HF+ = A
—+—HULEFE RAFEFREZINEZS
MEEZAFEWZERTEL /50,821,000
70+ H AR B4R R 3R Uk & 4955,911,00008 7T
N B % I8 B8 495,090,000/8 7T (b) RE E —
T—XNE+-_A=+—HIFE HETHHY
EREEE 418,700,000/ T MAREE-Z
—RAF+-_A=+—BHIFE AEEITEL]
EAMAHEERE: OAXRADEBRER
ANESEHBEE T RE+-_A=+—H
I F & 2 4R #932,556,000/8 TR D EE =
TE-XFET-_A=Zt+—HIFEZFERE
#4922,237,0008 T (EE-_ZE—RHE+ =
A=4+—H 1 FE 2 #8,704,0008 JT & & 5k
rEgENEEE-_E—"F+-_A=1+—H1t
F[E2423,816,0008 7T AEEEEENE
BRERAREN: e REBEE_T—RF+=
A=+—BLEFE REARQE —[HHE QR
AEREERAER AR ([KRBEREFE] - ERE
MEBARRIEHARABAIABEREE
B )2 REEE 191,511,000 7T & () &
E_ET-RF+-A=t+t—BHIFEIEK
SZEBRENBARZRE MEE-E—H
F+ A=+ HLTFEHSZERE —M
BB A Al 2 YK #4932,783,000/8 7T (& B AN &
EREHE T —R"F+_A=+—HIFE
s — B A R 815 U s £9204,017,00078
e

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR 07



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE R m kAT

Mobile internet cultural business and provision of IT
services

The Group's mobile internet cultural business began with the
Group’s investment in the mobile-online game business in
2014. Currently, the Group held 28.8% issued share capital of
Something Big, being the holding company of Mighty Eight
Investments Limited after reorganisation. Something Big Group is
the pioneer in the design, development, marketing, distribution
and operation of mobile-online games. During the year under
review, the Group’s share of the loss from Something Big Group
amounted to approximately HK$23,072,000 (2015: share of
profit of approximately HK$29,618,000). Revenue generated
from Something Big Group has been narrowed down since the
second quarter of 2016 primarily due to the decrease in revenue
derived from the development and operation of mobile games.
During the year under review, the Group recorded an impairment
loss on its investment in Something Big of approximately
HK$191,511,000 (2015: Nil), in view of the recent performance
and business development of Something Big as well as factors
including the outlook of the mobile games industry, and the
competitive market environment. The Group will continue to
closely monitor the operation of Something Big Group to improve
its performance and competitiveness.

The fair value of the investment in Something Big as at
31 December 2016 was arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out by an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group, using the market approach. The income
approach was not selected as there was uncertainty on the
long-term financial projections. Inputs including the multiples of
Enterprise Value-to-Earnings before Interest and Tax (EV/EBIT) of
other publicly listed comparable companies ranging from 7.1 to
9.5 and the multiples of Price-to-earning (P/E) of other publicly
listed comparable companies ranging from 8.9 to 9.9, were
applied in the valuation.

In addition, the Group provides professional information
technology contract and maintenance services in China and
Hong Kong since the acquisition of EPRO BVI Limited and its
subsidiaries (“EPRO BVI Group”) in August 2015. EPRO BVI
Group is a CMMI5 accessed information technology and software
outsourcing provider that tailor-makes professional IT solutions
for sizable corporate clients and government departments.
During the year under review, EPRO BVI Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$194,659,000 (2015: HK$50,685,000) and
contributed approximately HK$8,147,000 (2015: HK$1,199,000)
to the segment profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hospitality and Related Services in Australia

The Group acquired two granges in Australia in November 2015,
which offer accommodation and conference centres services,
including certain associated land, surrounding or adjacent
farmland, and the related businesses (i.e. the accommodation
facility business and all assets used in connection with that
business and the assignment of operating licence). One of the
granges, Lancefield property, includes a piece of freehold land
of approximately 40 hectares in Lancefield, Victoria, Australia,
and the building on the land is an established hotel, restaurant,
vineyard and conference facility which basically includes fifty-two
accommodation rooms, five conference rooms, four guest
lounges and various ‘breakout rooms’. The other grange is the
Hepburn Springs property, which includes a piece of freehold
land of approximately one hectare located at Hepburn Springs,
Victoria, Australia and the building erected on such land is an
established hotel, restaurant and conference facility split over
three levels which basically includes 43 accommodation rooms
plus four conference rooms.

In the second quarter of 2016, the Group acquired “The
Balgownie Estates Resort” and its resort business, together
with the related assets at an aggregate consideration of
AUD24,600,000. The Balgownie Estates Resort is located at Yarra
Valley, Victoria, Australia which includes a piece of freehold land
of approximately 29 hectares, and the building erected on such
land which is a resort equipped with 70 accommodation rooms,
a restaurant, conference and meeting facilities and recreation
facilities.

The rate of growth in hotel room supply in Melbourne has slowed
down over the past several years. The Group intends to increase
the capacity and attractiveness of the buildings for bringing in
a higher income to the Group to further expand the Group's
hospitality business in Australia. During the year under review,
the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$82,009,000
(2015: HK$2,688,000) and profit of approximately HK$5,701,000
(2015: segment loss of approximately HK$133,000) for the
segment of hospitality and related services in Australia.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE R m kAT

Medical Diagnostic and Health Check Services

The Group has offered a wide spectrum of quality healthcare
services to the general public in Hong Kong through the nine
health check centres, two testing laboratories and a laboratory
for the manufacturing of PET Radiopharmaceuticals operated by
Luck Key Investment Limited (“Luck Key") and its subsidiaries.
During the year under review, revenue from the health check
business amounted to approximately HK$225,885,000 (2015:
HK$202,990,000), representing growth of approximately 11.3%,
and a segment profit of approximately HK$29,275,000 (2015:
HK$15,313,000) was recorded.

The Group's interest in Luck Key has been reduced from
approximately 65.0% to 50.5% after completion of the
share subscription in Luck Key (the “Subscription”) on 20
October 2016, details of which are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 6 October 2016. The Group believes
that the Subscription would enable the Group to retain the key
management of Luck Key so as to enhance the dedication of the
key management of Luck Key and the development of the health
check business of the Group.

The Directors will also strive to improve the operational efficiency
of the Group’s health check business so as to enhance its
competitiveness in the market and its profitability.

Provision of Integral Marketing Services - Discontinued
Operation

During the year under review, revenue generated from
the provision of integral marketing services amounted to
approximately HK$327,808,000 (2015: HK$376,158,000) and
profit before taxation of approximately HK$42,886,000 (2015:
HK$36,024,000) was recorded, which was mainly attributable to
the provision of integrated digital marketing services by Zhiqu.

In December 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement and agreed to dispose of its 51.46% interest in
Zhigu. Completion of transfer of the entire equity interest
in Zhiqu took place in July 2016 and the consideration was
received in September 2016. Zhiqu ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company and the Group no longer carried on the business
of provision of integral marketing services. As a result of this
disposal, a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$204,017,000 (2015: Nil) was recognised in the profit or loss
during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money Lending Business

During the year under review, the Group's loan portfolios
comprised of unsecured loans granted to individual customers
and the Group recorded interest income of approximately
HK$2,047,000 (2015: HK$1,384,000). The average interest rate
charged by the Group on loans during the year under review was
approximately 12% per annum. The Group has been paying close
attention to the market conditions and will monitor its resources
to strive for the development of its money lending business with
prudent credit procedures in accepting customers .

Assets Investments Business

The Group's assets investments business mainly consists of
investments in securities and properties.

Securities Investments

The Group's securities investments portfolio mainly comprises
securities issued by listed companies. During the year under
review, the Group recorded a segment loss from securities
investments of approximately HK$297,646,000 (2015: segment
profit of approximately HK$22,452,000) which was primarily
attributable to the fair value losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$261,681,000
(2015: fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$50,821,000). The fair value
losses were mainly attributable to the investment in Convoy
Global Holdings Limited (“Convoy”), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1019), of approximately HK$232,258,000 (2015: fair value gain
of approximately HK$56,457,000).

In addition to financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, the Group recorded fair value losses on available-for-sale
investments of approximately HK$56,214,000 (2015:
HK$4,066,000) during the year under review as other
comprehensive loss, out of which the cumulative loss totaling
approximately HK$14,077,000 (2015: HK$20,248,000) recorded
in the investment revaluation reserve was determined to be
impaired and reclassified to profit or loss.

During the year under review, the Group disposed of its
investments in the shares in Universe International Financial
Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code:1046) and a loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investment of approximately HK$18,653,000 (2015: Nil) was
recorded in the profit or loss.
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MANAGEN\ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E%F lﬂL FIH:E& 7“%

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded held-for- ZE—REF+ZA=F+—H XEEHK
trading investments of approximately HK$428,147,000 SRHIEEBER A 4428,147,0008 L (=
(2015: approximately HK$327,503,000) and available-for- %?— 1 #9327,503,000/% T ) & A it &
sale investments of approximately HK$335,328,000 (2015: % & #J335,328,0008 L (T —HF : 4
approximately HK$102,858,000). The Directors consider that 102,858,000/ 7T) 2 FR A N - T — ~F
securities investments with a carrying amount that accounts for ~+=—A=+—H #EBHFKEZEFEASBEEAE
more than 10% of the Group's total assets as at 31 December BB EEBIBEI0% AAEEEAEFLFKRE -
2016 as significant securities investments of the Group. Details R-Z—"XF+_A=+—HZAEBEK
of the significant securities investments of the Group as at 31  EFAEKREFBUO T :

December 2016 are as follows:

45%

Percentage
tothe  Fair value change
Interest  Investment Group's  for the year ended
Name Principal activity held cost  Fairvalue total assets  31.12. 2016
hEEE BE-Z-5F
mEE2 T=A= + AL
£ TEXK fisks  RERK NYE BAlk FEZAVERE
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAT
Available-for-sale investments
THAERE
LEO Group Co., Ltd. F/E{&E  Manufacturing and sale of 0.814% 282,718 232,973 15.4%  Fair value loss of
BA AR A7, the shares of industrial and domestic water approximately
which are listed on the pumps and internet services HK$38,077,000
Shenzhen Stock Exchange recognised in other
(Stock code: 002131) (“LEQ") comprehensive loss
MEEE R A RAR IZRRFAKER REM2ABRT
(H R R HERHENR BRZATEER
BAER AL B R #138,077,000% T
AR 002131)
([7&))
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BRATFETAREZEREE
Convoy Independent financial advisory 9.49% 503,459 327,658 21.67%  Fair value loss of
business, money lending approximately
business, proprietary investment HK$232,258,000
business, asset management recognised
business, corporate finance in profit or loss
business and securities dealing
business
BE BUBBMBRZRS HEXK- W@ IR
BERERD EEEREH NEBER
PEREXBREFRHER 47232 258,0003 7

Note: No dividend was received from these investments during the year M 82— R"F+_A=+T—HLEFEHRE
ended 31 December 2016. AzSRE W E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prospects of the Group's significant securities investments

(i)

LEO is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 002131). LEO is principally engaged
in manufacturing and sale of industrial and domestic pumps
and internet services including digital marketing business,
marketing strategy and innovation, media delivery and
execution, monitoring and optimization of marketing results
and precise marketing etc.

Since the listing of the shares of LEO on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, the business scope of LEO has gradually expanded
from a pure domestic pumps business to industrial pump
business, covering almost all the pump products in the entire
pump industry. Given that the growth of the traditional pump
manufacturing business has stabilised, LEO has been actively
seeking for a new breakthrough in its strategic development
and striving to explore growth opportunities beyond the
traditional pump industry, so as to improve its profitability
and develop new profit growth.

In 2014, LEO successfully expanded its principal business into
the internet service business through a series of acquisitions.
The internet services LEO provides include digital marketing
services and digital media agency services.

Based on the announcement of the unaudited financial
results of LEO for the year ended 31 December 2016 of
LEO published on 28 February 2016 on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, it has recorded a net profit attributable to its
owners of approximately RMB561 million for year ended
31 December 2016, representing an increase of 149%
compared to the previous year. The increase was mainly
contributed by the new internet services business.

With regards to the future prospects of LEO based on
published information, the Directors noted the view of
the board of directors of LEO, as disclosed in the 2016
annual report of LEO, that under new “internet +” era, the
integration of the internet and entertainment industry has
given rise to a new internet-based interactive entertainment
pattern. The Directors noted that the directors of LEO have
captured the new opportunities arising from such new
internet-based interactive entertainment pattern to expand
into the new business in relation to the provision of internet
services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE R m kAT

(i) Convoy is a company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1019), which
is principally engaged in independent financial advisory
business, money lending business, proprietary investment
business, asset management business, corporate finance
business and securities dealing business. Based on the 2016
interim report of Convoy, it has recorded an unaudited net
profit attributable to its owners of approximately HK$7.9
million for the six months ended 30 June 2016.

With regards to the future prospects of Convoy based on
published information, the Directors noted the view of
the board of directors of Convoy, as disclosed in the 2016
interim report of Convoy, that the overall finance industry
was still under the impact of global economic sentiments.
The Directors also noted (i) Convoy’s vision of maintaining
its position as the largest independent financial advisory
company in Hong Kong and eyeing on global development;
and (ii) Convoy's target of becoming a comprehensive
financial platform in the Asia region and catering for
the cross-border business advancement and diversified
development direction in the future, as disclosed in the 2016
interim report of Convoy.

Despite the unsatisfactory performance of the securities
investments during the year under review, unless there are
changes in the investment strategy of the Group, the Group
will continue to hold the investments in its portfolio, taking into
account the prospects of the issuers of the securities investments,
and to optimise its investment portfolios and create value for the
Shareholders.

Property Investments

For property investments, the Group completed the acquisitions
of certain commercial buildings in Hong Kong on 31 May 2016.
During the year under review, these investment properties
have been leased out and the Group recorded rental income
of approximately HK$1,409,000 (2015: Nil). In addition, the
Group recorded a loss from changes in fair value of investment
properties of approximately HK$9,049,000 during the year under
review (2015: Nil).

The Group is proactively exploring further potential investment
opportunities, subject to the prevailing market condition and taking
into account the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a
whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

Global economic growth remained soft in 2016, making the
investment environment uncertain and volatile. Nevertheless,
the Group has been dedicated to focus on the development of
its hospitality business and will keep up its efforts to improve its
overall operational capability and enhance its competitiveness to
further develop the attractiveness of the hospitality and related
services it provides in Australia through the two granges and the
related resort. Meanwhile, as EPRO BVI Group has established
proprietary software development and operation infrastructure,
and is experienced in providing professional tailor-made
information technology services to sizeable corporate clients
and government departments, the Group expects that EPRO BVI
Group will provide requisite support to implement the Group's
diversified business portfolio.

Regardless of the external variations, the Group will keep on with
its diversified business development strategy in the long run and
make its best efforts to improve its overall operational capability
and enhance its competitiveness in seizing potential opportunities
to diversify its business portfolios with the aim to maximising the
returns to the Shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group has maintained a strong liquidity and financial
position. As at 31 December 2016, the total assets of the
Group were approximately HK$1,512,368,000 (2015:
HK$1,292,294,000) including cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$88,311,000 (2015: HK$78,587,000), among
which approximately 69% (2015: 85%) were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, 21% (2015: 8%) were denominated in
Renmenbi and 9% (2015: 3%) were denominated in Australian
dollars. The net current assets of the Group was approximately
HK$465,270,000 (2015: HK$293,910,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had borrowings
repayable within one year (or on demand) of approximately
HK$134,673,000 (2015: HK$153,998,000) and borrowings
due after one year of HK$164,879,000 (2015: Nil). These
borrowings bore interest at rates ranging from 1.74% to 9%
per annum (2015: 8.25% to 9% per annum), among which
approximately 62% are subject to fixed interest rates. Out of
the total borrowings, approximately 42% (2015: 100%) were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, approximately 28% (2015:
0%) were denominated in Australian dollars and the balance of
approximately 30% (2015: 0%) were denominated in Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE R m kAT

The Group's primary objectives of managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to operate as a going concern
and to provide an adequate return to the Shareholders
commensurately with the level of risk, and to secure access to
finance at a reasonable cost. The Group considers a number
of factors in monitoring its capital structure, which principally
include the current ratio (being current assets over its current
liabilities), gearing ratio (calculated on the basis of total liabilities
to total assets) and the net debt-to-equity capital ratio (calculated
as total debt less cash and cash equivalents, over equity capital).

The Group's current ratio was approximately 2.61 times (2015:
1.68 times). The increase in the current ratio is mainly due to
the repayment of loan note during the year under review. The
Group's gearing ratio was 0.3 times (2015: 0.34 times) and
the net debt-to-equity capital ratio was 0.35 times (2015: 0.39
times). The decrease was primary due to the enlargement of
the Group's capital base after the completion of the rights issue
during the year under review.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$993,341,000 (2015: HK$819,690,000).

Rights issue

On 14 January 2016, the Company proposed a rights issue
(the "Rights Issue”) of 3,420,670,215 rights shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.155 per rights share on the basis of
five rights shares for every one ordinary share of the Company
(the “Share”) held on the record date (i.e. 10 March 2016). The
subscription price represented: (i) a discount of approximately
45.61% to the closing price of HK$0.285 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 14 January 2016 (the “Last Trading
Day"”); (ii) a discount of approximately 38.49% to the closing
price of approximately HK$0.252 per Share for the five
consecutive trading days preceding the Last Trading Day; (iii) a
discount of approximately 44.44% to the average closing price
of approximately HK$0.279 per Share for the ten consecutive
trading days preceding the Last Trading Day; (iv) a discount
of approximately 12.43% to the theoretical ex-rights price of
approximately HK$0.177 per Share based on the closing price
of HK$0.285 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
Last Trading Day; and (v) a discount of approximately 4.91%
to the closing price of HK$0.163 per Share quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 3 February 2016. Completion of the Rights
Issue took place on 11 April 2016 and 3,420,670,215 Shares
were issued. Further details of the Rights Issue are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 11 February 2016 and the
prospectus of the Company dated 11 March 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The entire net proceeds from the Rights Issue were approximately
HK$515 million and had been applied in accordance with the
intended use as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
11 February 2016 and the prospectus of the Company dated 11
March 2016, as to (i) approximately HK$ 156,750,000 for funding
the repayment of 9% per annum note in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$150,000,000 and the interests accrued thereon on
13 October 2015; (ii) approximately HK$196,000,000 for funding
the repayment of the borrowings of the Group, (iii) approximately
HK$50,000,000 for funding the further development of the
Group’s business in Australia; (iv) approximately HK$66,000,000
for funding the proposed acquisition of certain properties in Yuen
Long, Hong Kong by the Group; and (v) the remaining balance,
as to approximately HK$10,000,000, for funding the money
lending business of the Company, and the rest of such balance
for funding the securities investment of the Group.

Bonus issue

On 23 March 2016, the Company proposed a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015 by way of bonus issue of
Shares (“Bonus Issue”) on the basis of two new Shares of the
Company (“"Bonus Shares”) for every ten existing Shares of
the Company held by the Shareholders on the record date (i.e.
16 May 2016). The Bonus Shares were credited as fully paid by
way of capitalisation of an amount standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus account of the Company. Notwithstanding
that the Company intended to maintain sufficient cash for its
future business development, the Company recommended, the
distribution of final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2015 by way of the Bonus Issue. Although the Bonus Issue would
not provide any immediate monetary benefit to Shareholders
out of the retained earnings of the Group, the Directors believed
that, with the enlarged number of Shares in issue following
completion of the Bonus Issue, the Shareholders would enjoy the
benefit as a result of the continuous growth of different business
segments of the Group, which was expected to be reflected in
the future trading prices of the Shares. The Bonus Issue does not
affect the cash available to the future business development of
the Group. Completion of the Bonus Issue took place on 30 May
2016 and 820,960,850 Shares were issued. Further details of
the Bonus Issue are set out in the circular of the Company dated
5 April 2016.
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MANAGEN\ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E%F lﬂL FIH:E& 7“%

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and Australian dollars. The Group did
not invest in any derivative product for hedging during the year
under review. Nevertheless, the Group will keep monitoring
the foreign currency risk and when there are uncertainty or
material fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates, the Group
will consider to use appropriate hedging instruments, including
futures and forward contracts in the management of exposure
affecting fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, certain borrowing facilities of the
Group were secured by investment properties of approximately
HK$81,110,000, land and building of approximately
HK$179,904,000, available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$246,474,000 and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$212,261,000 (2015: secured by
time deposits of approximately HK$13,000,000 and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$98,011,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital expenditure
commitments contracted for acquiring property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$4,200,000 (2015: capital
commitments mainly contracted for acquiring property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of approximately
HK$66,772,000). The Group had sufficient internal resources to
finance its capital expenditures.

DISPOSAL OF ZHIQU

On 7 December 2015, the Group, Mr. Xu Jialiang, Mr. Xu Xiaofeng
(collectively with the Group, the “Vendors”), Zhiqu and LEO
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (as amended and
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 11 January
2016), pursuant to which LEO agreed to acquire, and the
Vendors agreed to sell, the entire equity interest of Zhiqu (the
“Zhiqu Disposal”). The Vendors and LEO also entered into
the performance compensation agreement (the “Performance
Compensation Agreement”) in relation to the adjustments

SME
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

to the total consideration for the Zhique Disposal. The total
consideration shall be subject to adjustments (“Adjustments”)
in accordance with the Performance Compensation Agreement in
the manner as stipulated below:

For the purpose of the Adjustments, the “Audited NOP" is
Zhiqu's audited net operating profit after tax, after adjustments
for, where applicable, any non-recurring and exceptional gains
or losses, whichever is lower, that are not related to the ordinary
business of Zhiqu, attributable to shareholders of the parent
company of Zhiqu as deduced from the audited consolidated
financial statements of Zhiqu for the relevant financial year
ending 31 December, 2016 ("FY2016"), finaincial year ending
31 December, 2017 (“FY2017") and financial year ending 31
December, 2018 (“FY2018") (“Guaranteed FY"). The Vendors
severally (but among Mr. Xu Jialiang and Mr. Xu Xiaofeng, jointly
and severally) undertook to LEO that:

(i) the Audited NOP of Zhiqu for FY2016 shall be not less than
RMB58,000,000 (“2016 Target NOP");

(i) the Audited NOP of Zhiqu for FY2017 shall be not less than
RMB75,400,000; and

(iii) the Audited NOP of Zhigqu for FY2018 shall be not less than
RMB98,020,000.

The Vendors and LEO agreed that the adjustments amount shall
be settled by the Vendors in the following order:

(i) firstly, by the consideration shares allotted and issued to
Mr. Xu Jialiang, Mr. Xu Xiaofeng, in proportion to the
consideration shares allotted and issued to them (“Xu'’s
Shares”);

(ii) if the Xu's Shares shall be insufficient to settle the relevant
adjustment amounts, secondly, in cash by Mr. Xu lJialiang
and Mr. Xu Xiaofeng in proportion to the cash consideration
received by them (“Xu's Cash”);

(iii) if Mr. Xu Jialiang and Mr. Xu Xiaofeng have not fully
compensated the LEO, thirdly, by the consideration shares
allotted and issued to the Group ("Jixiang’s Shares”),

~

(iv) if the Xu's Shares, the Xu's Cash and the Jixiang's Shares
shall be insufficient to settle the relevant adjustment
amounts, fourthly, in cash by the Group, which is subject to a

cap of RMB25,510,009 ("Jixiang’s Cash”); and

(v) if the Xu's Shares, the Xu's Cash, the Jixiang’s Shares and
the Jixiang's Cash shall be insufficient to settle the relevant
Adjustment Amounts, finally, in cash by Mr. Xu Jialiang and
Mr. Xu Xiaofeng to settle the balance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE R m kAT

Upon the end of the Guaranteed FY and the issue of the special
audit report for FY2018, LEO shall engage qualified auditors to
conduct asset impairment test and issue a report in respect of
any asset impairment. Where the asset impairment of Zhiqu as
reflected in such report shall be more than the total adjustments
amounts compensated by the Vendors to LEO, the Vendors
shall compensate LEO a sum equal to the difference between
such asset impairment and the adjustments amounts then
compensated by the Vendors to LEO, which shall be settled
first by the consideration shares (the value of which shall be
calculated by multiplying such number of consideration shares
with the issue price), with payment of cash to settle the balance
(if any). All liabilities of the Group under the Performance
Compensation Agreement shall at all times be capped at the
total consideration received by it.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the audited consolidated
financial statements of Zhiqu for the year ended 31 December
2016 was not yet available.

Details of the formula for the calculation of the adjustments
above are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
8 December 2015 and 11 January 2016, and the circular of the
Company dated 10 February 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 1,900
employees (2015: approximately 1,530). Staff (including
the Directors) salaries, allowances and bonuses totaled
approximately HK$282,165,000 for the year under review (2015:
HK$156,883,000), of which approximately HK$114,666,000
(2015: 31,095,000) was included in the cost of services. The
Group continues to maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its
workforce by providing them with adequate and regular training.

Remuneration of employee is determined by reference to industry
practices and performance, qualification and experience of
individual employees.

The emolument policy of the Directors are decided by the Board,
taking into account the recommendations of the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to merit, qualifications
and competence of the Directors.
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On top of regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and share
options may be granted to employees and the Directors by
reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual
performance of such employees and/or Directors, and other
benefits including contributions to statutory mandatory provident
fund scheme and medical scheme are also provided to the
employees.

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to an ordinary resolution of all the then Shareholders
passed on 10 November 2010, and the Board is authorised, at
its absolute discretion, to grant options to eligible participants
including any employee, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture partner
of the Group (including any director, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not, of the Group)
who is in full-time or part-time employment with the Group at
the time when an option is granted to such employee, or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed
or may contribute to the Group. Details of the share options
granted and outstanding during the year under review are set
out in the paragraph headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" in the
Directors’ Report in this Annual Report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. ZHANG Xiongfeng, aged 49, has been appointed as
an executive Director and the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) on 9 December 2013 and 31 December 2013
respectively. Mr. Zhang is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor’s of arts
degree in German Language awarded by Shanghai International
Studies University ( =/ 4MNEFE K2 ) in July 1990. Mr. Zhang
has extensive experience in the investment banking industry
specialising in the area of corporate finance. From December
2004 to September 2010, Mr. Zhang was employed at Daiwa
Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited. From October 2010 to
May 2012, Mr. Zhang was the Joint Head of Corporate Finance
of Oriental Patron Asia Limited. Mr. Zhang is currently an
independent non-executive director of Fire Rock Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 8345), a company whose shares are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange, and a non-executive director of Pa
Shun Pharmaceutical International Holdings Limited (Stock code:
574), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. ZHANG Peiao, aged 41, has been appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“Chief Executive Officer”) since 30 January 2014. He is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang
graduated from the Shanghai Institute of Tourism* ( /& ik #% &
L HRER), which together with Shanghai Normal School of
Tourism* (/@ Bl €5 KX 2 ik 7 2t ) have been treated as one
educational institution with two different names since July 1997.
From March 2002 to June 2005, Mr. Zhang was the vice general
manager (Shanghai district) for the marketing department of
Guangzhou Optisp Co., Ltd.* (BN X BBEEEREBR A A]) .
From June 2005 to December 2013, Mr. Zhang was the senior
vice president of KuBao Information Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.* (BEEE 5 E5l7 ( £/8) AR A F]) and was responsible for
the operation and management, media relations, government
relations and legal affairs of China Online Game Service
Network* (A B 48 3% 2 B AR 75 48 ) (www.5173.com).

* English translated name is for identification only
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Since January 2008, Mr. Zhang has been the standing committee
member for Interactive Entertainment Specialty Committee of
Shanghai Information Service Industry Association* ( _E/&M 15 &
RIEHETEBHSEEREFERXZL B) ("Association”) and has
participated in the online game management for the Association,
including but not limited to, the formulation and drafting of the
Shanghai Online Game Service Joint Enterprise Standard* ( &
MR IEE RSB & (%42 %) |, Shanghai Online Game Service
Joint Enterprise Regulation* ( = /8 T 49 4% #2 Bk AR 75 #3 &8 ) and
the preparation and development of Online Game Anti-Pirating
Green Union* (@RI AIRAR G .

Since September 2013, Mr. Zhang has participated in the
management, advisory work and consultancy work for the online
and mobile game industry of China Cultural Industry Association*

(FEXIEEZEBES) .

Mr. HUNG Kenneth, aged 46, has been appointed as an
executive Director since 18 February 2014. He is also a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hung holds
a degree of bachelor of science awarded by Woodbury
University in June 1995. Mr. Hung has extensive experience in
the entertainment industry. From March 2008 to September
2010, Mr. Hung was the China business development director
for Golden Sun Films Distribution Ltd.. From October 2010 to
June 2012, Mr. Hung was the chief operation officer for Top
Action Culture Development Co. Ltd.. From July 2012 to October
2013, Mr. Hung was the business development director for Star
Alliance Movies (Beijing) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Hung was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of DX.com Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 8086) in January 2015, redesignated as an executive
director in October 2015 and appointed as the chairman in
September 2016, positions which he has been holding up to the
present. Mr. Hung is also currently an independent non-executive
director of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (formerly
known as China Demeter Investments Limited) (Stock code:
8120) and IR Resources Limited (Stock code: 8186), and the
shares of all of these companies are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange.

* English translated name is for identification only
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Ms. WU Mei Chu, aged 52, has been appointed as an executive
Director since 1 October 2016. Ms. Wu was graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in arts
in 1987. She is experienced in business management and
has been holding various management positions in a number
of multi-national corporations across banking and finance,
telecommunications and satellite communications businesses.
She has over 20 years of experience in the field of marketing
and business development in the Greater China and Asia
Pacific region. She was an executive director of China Natural
Investment Company Limited (now known as Silk Road Energy
Services Group Limited (Stock Code: 8250), a company whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from
February 2011 to November 2011. Ms. Wu was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Education
(Int'l) Investments Limited (Stock Code: 1082), a company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, on 21
December 2012 and was redesignated as an executive director
on 18 June 2013, a position which she has been holding up to
the present. Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited is a
substantial shareholder (within the meaning ascribed to it in the
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, whose interest in the Shares
of which fall to be disclosed under the provisions in Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"), Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. WONG Siu Keung, Joe, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2011.
Mr. Wong holds a Degree of Master of Arts in International
Accounting from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Wong has
extensive experience in taxation, accounting, financing, audit field
and public listed companies for many years. Mr. Wong is also
an independent non-executive Director of China Water Industry
Group Limited (Stock code: 1129), a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Worldgate
Global Logistics Limited (Stock code: 8292), a company whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is the
chairman of each of the audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee of the Board.
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Mr. LEUNG Ting Yuk, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 May 2016. Mr. Leung
graduated from the University of Wollongong in Australia with
a bachelor’s degree in commerce majoring in accountancy in
July 2000. He has been an associate of the Certified Practising
Accountants of Australia since July 2000 and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2008. Mr. Leung was the chief financial officer and company
secretary of China 33 Media Group Limited (Stock Code: 8087),
whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
from May 2010 to October 2012. He then worked as the chief
financial officer and company secretary of ZMFY Automobile
Glass Services Limited (Stock Code: 8135), a company whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from
September 2012 to February 2015. He has been the chief
financial officer and company secretary of ASD International
Holdings Limited from September 2015 to September 2016. He
has been the chief financial officer of Mega Growth International
Investment Limited since October 2016. Mr. Leung has been
an independent non-executive director of Yanchang Petroleum
International Limited (Stock Code: 346), a company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
December 2009.

Mr. WANG Zhiwei, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 August 2016. Mr. Wang graduated
from Taiyuan Mechanical Engineering Institute in the People’s
Republic of China with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July
1990. He has been qualified as a senior engineer in electronic
engineering since December 2000 conferred by the State Power
Corporation of China. Mr. Wang was the vice president of Beijing
Jun Yang Investments Limited during the period from January
2011 to April 2014 and he has been appointed as the deputy
general manager of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
(formerly known as China Demeter Investments Limited) (Stock
Code: 8120), a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange, from May 2014 to June 2016. Mr. Wang is
currently an independent non-executive director of First Credit
Finance Group Limited (Stock Code: 8215), a company whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LAM CHING YEE, aged 35, was the financial controller and
company Secretary of the Company. She is also a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lam obtained her
Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) in Finance from
the City University of Hong Kong in 2006. Ms. Lam is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has more than ten years of experience in the auditing and
accounting fields. Ms. Lam is currently an executive director of
Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8018),
company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

EELEREEEBB/N

RPEBXRE 2 R-_E—XRERAA+/N\A
ERIABYIFNTEE - REER _TTT
FLrAEENBMNAEEARETESEHE L
B FEeH 2 - _TETTFL/EA
BNEetMAeeERE SN \F— A
AERBEHIMAEEE - RAEEA T —F
hFAE-ZT——-F+AEAYE==FEE
EERAR (ERMAREBZATAIZER Em - &
PR 8087) 2 M BEER NAIME - HHE
B _E——FNARE_FT—RF_AET
EELEAEREREBER AT (HRMD A5
RETBIER ETARGE BRMDARIE:8135) 2
P RERARNE - FE-_T—RAFNLAZE
—E-RNFNAETARBBEIRIERER QA
U BBER A RWE - KRBT —FTA
BEMKIRRIRESRAR M BBE - R
A _ZEENF+-_AREATERAHEA
BERAR (—MEROARBZAERET
AT BN REE - 346) 2 B IEFITESE -

FEBERE 49 R_E—RENA—BE
TEABYIRTES - TRER—NNEF
+t ABRERPEARLFE KRS0
EIRELEBN - FE _ETTFE+ ALK
FREBERENAARTFTER IESRITEM
B THAR_TE—F—AZ_ZT—NF
A BEETIEREGRERRARBERE
BER - Z—NFRAZE T —FAE
ZEAEEEERMIEEFR AR (BITEP 1P
EREARAR —HBERHGREZATAIE
REMZRARBRMDARSE:8120) BB AL -
THEERETF—ZHsREBAERA R (—
BN EE AT RIS ET R A B DR 58
8215) 2B IEHITEE -

SRERE

MBELL 355 AARRIZUBRBRERRA
AIME-FMAARRETHERAR ZES-
MEITR_EENFEESERTAEEET
HMERLEEL (2R)EBN - MEZLTABE
M AEKE YREBFF RS FEEER
T FEEKE oML+ AEM S RIREERAR
ANE] (EBR DR FTRIER £ - BB RSE
8018) CHITE S -

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR 25



The Directors present herewith their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016. The Management Discussion and Analysis in
this Annual Report forms part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue is derived from business activities carried on
in Hong Kong, Australia and the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year ended 31 December 2016 by operating
segment is set out in Note 4(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in the section in the paragraph headed
“BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW" of the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 14 in this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks which are relevant to the Group and its business

(i) Mobile internet cultural business and provision of IT
services

The Group's mobile internet cultural business and provision
of IT services is sensitive to the general economic conditions.
A severe or prolonged downturn in the global economy
or the or Chinese economy could materially and adversely
affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects. Economic conditions in the
PRC are sensitive to the global economic conditions. Since
37.9% of the Group's revenue for the year under review
(2015: 17.6%) was derived from the mobile internet cultural
business and provision of IT services in the PRC, the Group’s
business and prospects are substantially affected by the
economic conditions in the PRC. Following the completion
of the acquisition of the granges and the related resort in
Australia in late 2015 and 2016 respectively, the Directors
considered the income stream of the Group will then be
diversified. The Group will look into the changes in the
economic environment in the PRC to facilitate its strategic
development of mobile internet culture business and cultural
of IT services.
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The IT industry is characterised by rapid technological
changes, changes in consumer preferences, quick
development and enhancement of services and products and
emerging industry standards. The introduction of services or
products embodying new technologies and the emergence
of new industry standards and practices can render existing
services or products obsolete and unmarketable. The
Company's future success will depend, in part, on its ability
to: (i) develop new products and services that address the
increasingly sophisticated and varied needs of prospective
customers; and (ii) respond to technological advances and
emerging industry standards and practices on a timely and
cost-effective basis. If the Company is unable to develop and
introduce new products in a timely manner in response to
changing market conditions and/or customer requirements,
or if its new products and services do not achieve market
acceptance, the Company’s business will be harmed. The
Company’s development of new products and services
entail significant technological risks. The Company cannot
assure that it will succeed in using new technologies
effectively, adapting its services and products to emerging
industry standards, developing, introducing and marketing
enhancements of its services and products, or introducing its
new products and services.

As the market for mobile games is highly competitive, when
the Group develops new games in the future, it may face
further operating and marketing challenges. If the Group
fails to successfully develop and launch new games in the
competitive markets or if the games developed by the Group
lack popularity, the Group may not be able to capture the
growth opportunities associated with these new games or
recover the costs associated with developing and marketing
such games, which may materially and adversely affect the
Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations
and growth strategies.

The Group owns 28.8% equity interest of Something Big and
does not have control over the Something Big Group. The
Group will rely on PrimeVision to exercise control over the
Shanghai Group through the Contractual Arrangements. If
PrimeVision fails to exercise its right under the Contractual
Arrangements or otherwise fails to exercise control and
obtain the economic benefits from the Shanghai Group
through the Contractual Arrangements, the financial results
of Something Big could be materially and adversely affected.
As a result, the Group's investment in Something Big could
also be materially and adversely affected.
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(i)

28

Details of the Contractual Arrangements of Something Big
Group and risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements
are set out in the paragraph headed “INFORMATION ON
THE CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS OF SOMETHING BIG
GROUP" in this Directors’ Report.

In addition, details of the concentration risk and credit risk
associated with the major customer in the provision of IT
services business are discussed in the paragraph headed
“RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS" in this Directors’
Report.

Provision of hospitality and related services in Australia

The local business risks in Australia in relation to the Group's
provision of hospitality and related services could have
material impact on the businesses, financial condition, results
of operations or growth prospects of the Group’s business
in hospitality in Australia. The Group is, and may increasingly
become, exposed to different and changing political, social,
legal, tax, regulatory and environmental requirements at the
local, national or international level. Also, new policies or
measures introduced by the governments, whether fiscal, tax,
regulatory or environmental, or other changes taking place
which affect market competition, may lead to an increase
in the Group’s operating expenses and capital expenditures,
an increase in market competition, a decrease in the overall
investment return of the Group's businesses and may delay
or disrupt the commercial operation of a business resulting
in loss of revenue and profit, which may adversely affect the
Group's businesses, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects. The Group will pay close attention
to the changes in the business environment in Australia to
formulate its development of hospitality business.

The results of the Group are recorded in Hong Kong dollars
but its subsidiaries, may receive revenue and incur expenses
in other currencies. Any currency fluctuations arising from
translation of the accounts of these subsidiaries, and the
repatriation of earnings, equity investments and loans may
adversely affect the Group's businesses, financial condition,
results of operations and growth prospects. A depreciation or
fluctuation in the currencies in which the Group conducts its
operations relative to the Hong Kong dollar could adversely
affect the Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations and growth prospects.

The Group is in the process of implementing its strategy of
achieving a diversified business portfolio to reduce its reliance
on revenue and income generated from one single segment
or geographical location, so as to minimise the risks related
to fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates.
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(iii) Provision of medical diagnostic and health check

services

Notwithstanding the medical diagnostic and health check
services provided by the Group are performed by qualified
medical practitioners and laboratory technicians in the health
check centres and the laboratories, it is possible that the
Group may face liability claims from its customers arising
from professional negligence and employee misconduct. The
Group has adopted internal control measures and protocol
for provision of medical diagnostic and health check services.
However, there is no assurance that such measures can
completely eliminate the risk of professional negligence and/
or employee misconduct, and failure to defend against any
possible claims could adversely affect the business reputation
and operation of the Group.

(iv) Money lending business

The money lending business of the Group is exposed to
possible default from the customers, which involves the risk
of loss due to the inability or unwillingness of customers
to meet their contractual obligations. If the customers of
the money lending business of the Group fail to meet their
contractual obligations, the Company may incur additional
costs to realise the collaterals for the secured loans. The
risks of losses will be higher for the unsecured loans in the
event of default. However, the Group adopted prudent credit
procedures in customers’ acceptance so as to minimise the
credit risk of the Group.

(v) Assets investments business

For the Group’s business of trading of securities in Hong
Kong, the Group aims at maximising the profits of the
Company for the Shareholders and will revamp its investment
strategy and explore securities investment opportunities with
due care and diligence. Due to the volatility and uncertainties
of the securities market in Hong Kong, the Group may suffer
losses on securities trading in the future if the investment
strategy the Group has adopted does not fit the current
market conditions. The Group will regularly review its
investment portfolio and determine suitable investment
strategy to cater for the changes in the market conditions.
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For the Group's property investment in Hong Kong, the
trends in the property market sentiment and conditions,
political developments, governmental regulations and
changes in planning or tax laws, levels of interest rates in
Hong Kong may affect the Group’s property value and rental
values and may pose risks to the Group'’s businesses, financial
condition, results of operations and growth prospects.

Risks which are relevant to the industry and market in
which the Group operates

The Group’s success will depend, in part, on its ability to respond
to technological advances. The Company may not be successful
in responding quickly, cost-effectively and sufficiently to these
developments. If the Company is unable, for technical, financial
or other reasons, to adapt in a timely manner in response to
technological advances, it will not be able to compete effectively
and the business of the Group will be adversely affected.

The Group may face risks and uncertainties posed by local
political, regulatory and religious environments and failure to
comply with country-specific regulatory restrictions may expose
the Group to fines, penalties and liabilities. There is no assurance
that the current government policies, economic and social
conditions in the regions where the Group’s business operates
will not undergo significant changes in the future. Any new rules
and regulations introduced and implemented in the future which
regulates the provision of IT services (including mobile internet
cultural business), medical diagnostic and health check services,
hospitality business and related services offering in Australia
business, money lending business and assets investments
business, may adversely affect the business, international
expansion and growth prospects of the Group.

Financial Instrument Risks

The Group is subject to market risks, such as those in relation
to currency fluctuations and volatility of interest rates, price
risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk in the normal course of the
Group’s business. Particulars of the nature and extent of financial
instrument risks of the Company are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated financial results and the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years are set out on page 244 in this Annual Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year under review are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 114 and 115. The Board does
not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: final dividend by way of bonus issue
(“Bonus Issue”) of shares on the basis of two new shares of
the Company for every ten existing shares of the Company held
by the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 16 May 2016).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 41% of the total sales for the year under
review from continuing operations, and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 33%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 19% of the total purchases for the year under
review from continuing operations, and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
12%.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest at any time
during the year under review in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year under
review amounted to approximately HK$376,000.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Group’s acquisitions and disposals during the
year under review and the particulars of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in Notes 36, 37 and 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year under review are set out in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 28(a) to the consolidated financial statements. Details of
change in the capital structure of the Company are set out in the
paragraph headed "CAPITAL STRUCTURE" in the section headed
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 16 to
17 in this Annual Report and the paragraph headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME" in this Directors’ Report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 118 in this Annual
Report and Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the company had reserves available for
distribution as set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or

any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the year under review and
up to the date of this Directors’ Report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng
(Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Peiao
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Kenneth
Ms. Wu Mei Chu (appointed with effect from

1 October 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe
Mr. Leung Ting Yuk (appointed on 18 May 2016)

Mr. Wang Zhiwei (appointed on 1 August 2016)

Ms. Lin Ting (resigned with effect from
22 June 2016)

Mr. Wong Ching Yip (passed away on 28 June 2016)

Pursuant to Bye-Law 83(2) of the bye-laws of the Company
(the "Bye-Laws”), Ms. Wu Mei Chu, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk and
Mr. Wang Zhiwei were appointed by the Board and will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-Law 84 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Hung
Kenneth and Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe will retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors who are being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Each of Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng, Mr. Zhang Peiao, Mr. Hung
Kenneth, Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk and Mr.
Wang Zhiwei have been re-appointed for a term of 12 months
commencing from 1 January 2017. Ms. Wu Mei Chu has been
appointed for a term commencing from 1 October 2016 to 31
December 2017.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Pursuant to the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has received an annual written confirmation of his/
her independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the interests of Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng, an executive
Director and the Chairman, in the Underwriting Agreement,
as mentioned in the paragraph headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in this
Directors’ Report which subsisted during the year under review,
no Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangement or contract of significance
subsisting during or at the end of the year under review.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

None of the Directors or their respective associates had an
interest in any business, apart from the businesses of the
Group, which may compete either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for those disclosed in the paragraphs headed "SHARE
OPTION SCHEME" and "RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS"” in this Directors’ Report, at no
time during the year under review were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
directors of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.48 to Rule 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in the underlying shares of the Company

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
SEEERES

E/\\\:? /\ﬂz"f— H + H - %$&$
THRBHSERAEAR Tiﬁfﬂ?iﬁaﬂwﬁl(&
BHEMEIEMIEXVIZ EE) 2D - 1HE
f&1n RfEHR - A R AREE %&Hﬂiﬂwﬁu
FINFEHFEZELMzERZ AR iR
?FE'J%WJ:FH%ﬁE'J%5.4815.671|7H5ﬁ?§22§£
AEFETRI A TER M RAQ T KB
RFfzEmBEABIT

REQXTEERG 2R

Number of
ordinary Approximate
shares percentage

Name of Director Capacity involved (Note 1)
HREBR #BAOBESHK

EEpnS 5% gk 4= (FM43E1)

Zhang Xiongfeng Beneficial owner (Note 2) 68,044,184 1.28%

R I8 EnEE A (MiE2)

Zhang Peiao Beneficial owner (Note 3) 9,321,042 0.17%

RIFHE ERlEAA (MEE3)

Notes: BsE:

1. This is based on the total issued shares of the Company as at 31 1. HIBRERARATRN -_E—ANE+_A=+—

December 2016, i.e. 5,336,235,108 Shares.

2. These are 68,044,184 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
unlisted physically settled share options granted to Mr. Zhang
Xiongfeng on 19 January 2016 pursuant to the Scheme with
the vesting date of the said options on 31 May 2016 and can be
exercised by Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng between 1 June 2016 and 11
November 2020 at the subscription price of HK$0.161 per Share.

3. These are 9,321,042 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
unlisted physically settled share options granted to Mr. Zhang
Peiao on 19 January 2016 pursuant to the Scheme with the
vesting date of the said options on 31 May 2016 and can be
exercised by Mr. Zhang Peiao between 1 June 2016 and 11
November 2020 at the subscription price of HK$0.161 per Share.

A2z B a7 (7488 (B15,336,235,108% %
M)ETEEH-

2. ZEBRMBRBELEFTER T —XNF
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had, or was
deemed to have, any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
directors of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.48 to Rule 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSON'S INTEREST

As at 31 December 2016, the following person (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or was deemed
to have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

(i) Substantial shareholders — long position in the shares
of the Company

BREXHBEREEN R-_T—XF+_H
=t B BMEEFIARRTHRAEINAR
Al R AEROEE (RE S M S REI%
XV &2 #E) 2 B R REST %
BERWRAEALAREES KBRS
2R AFEZERMZEMERIOAR 3K
RIFEIZFIR - AR BISE5.48E5.67 KT8 2 7K
NRAEFETR G ZREENNMERRE R
B 3P 2 (XA A ek SR R

TERREAMALTZERS

RZEBE—RF+-_A=+—H THAL(E
FRARBITHABERIN) RAA 7D 247
AROFHEE I W R AEEELARRRBRIE
BELEEGEHNEXV I EI6CEREBFE
2Bz ERIOAR

() TZERFR-REXTARDZEFR

Number of
ordinary Approximate
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares percentage
HER
IR E B 54 gz BABEDH
Fastek Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,422,572,191 26.66%
("Fastek”) (Note 1)
Fastek Investments Limited EmEA A (KMEE2) (MIE1)
([Fastek ] )
Rosy Lane Investments Limited Interest of a controlled 1,422,572,191 26.66%
("Rosy Lane”) corporation (Note 2) (Note 1)
HEREFRAR RYEHI ARz (FiEE2) (Mg&ET)
(rg=])
Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Interest of controlled 1,422,572,191 26.66%
Limited ("HK EDU INTL") corporations (Note 2) (Note 1)
EREHE (BRI KREEEBRAR RSN Rz (FiEE2) (MFE1)

(I&88HE (EK) )
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(ii) Other person - long position in the shares of the
Company

Name of Shareholder Capacity

IR &R %)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
SEEERES

(i) EA L -RERTARD 2 HFRE

China New Economy Fund Limited (“CNEFL") Beneficial owner

HEMEEREARAR BEamfEA A

(THhEFER])

Universe International Financial
Holdings Limited (“Universe”)
EFEBSRBRERAT ([EF))

Notes:

1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 31 December
2016, i.e. 5,336,235,108 Shares.

2. Based on the notices of disclosure of interests of Fastek, Rosy
Lane and HK EDU INTL filed with the Stock Exchange on
3 October 2016, such Shares were held by Fastek, which is
wholly-owned by Rosy Lane, which is in turn wholly-owned by
HK EDU INTL. As such, each of Rosy Lane and HK EDU INTL is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Fastek by virtue
of the SFO.

3. Such Shares held by CNEFL represented (i) approximately 5.88%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 May 2016
(i.e. 4,925,765,108 Shares) based on the notice of disclosure
of interests of CNEFL filed with the Stock Exchange on 10 June
2016; and (ii) approximately 5.43% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2016 (i.e. 5,336,235,108
Shares).

4. Based on the notice of disclosure of interests of Universe filed
with the Stock Exchange on 26 September 2016, such Shares
were held by Weluck Development Limited (“Weluck”), which
is wholly-owned by Fragrant River Entertainment Culture
Holdings Limited (“Fragrant”), which is in turn wholly-owned
by Universe. As such, each of Fragrant and Universe is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Weluck by virtue of the
SFO.

Such Shares held by Weluck, Fragrant and Universe represented
(i) approximately 5.86% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 22 September 2016 (i.e. 5,174,885,108 Shares);
and (ii) approximately 5.68% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 (i.e. 5,336,235,108 Shares).

Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 4)
RPEEH AR 2 s ()

Number of
ordinary Approximate
shares percentage
HEER
®E RS EE
289,800,000 5.88%
(Note 3)
(M15E3)
303,000,000 5.86%
(Note 4)
(B &E4)

GEE

1.

WHRER - Z—AF+-_A=+—HZ
BETTRR D #2.2 (F5,336,235, 108/ A% 1D )

-

B Fastek BB R EBHE (HE)R=
Z-ARFTAZHRABIMER 2 s iF
FBEAN ZE WD A Fastek 5 © Fastek A
HE2EEE  mMEEAEEEHE (BE)
2EHEE A BEZBHFRBAEKN 5
TREBHE (HER) Y18 AR Fastek #
BB HERER-

PR AOE T 2 SRR DG () RES
B & BER —Z—/NFENA+ AR
BERXZ7EZEEBOARTNR T —NF
A A=+HBEETH A (814,925,765,108
A RS 1) B9 £95.88% & R (ii) R AR - Z
—RNEF+ZA=+—BEB%TRA(H
5,336,235, 108 % {7 ) H9495.43% -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, there were
no shareholders of the Company or other persons (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company, which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
recorded in the register as required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the emolument policy of the Company are set out in
the paragraph headed “EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION POLICIES”
in the section headed “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” on pages 20 and 21 in this Annual Report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the Scheme, the Board is authorised, at
its absolute discretion, to grant options to eligible participants
including any employee, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner
of the Group (including any director, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not, of the Group)
who is in full time or part time employment with the Group at
the time when an option is granted to such employee, or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed
or may contribute to the Group.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and help the
Group in retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct economic interest
in attaining the long term business objectives of the Company.
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Details of the share options granted under the Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2016 and outstanding as at 31

REBEZTENBE 2
BLEFEREER -_F—RFEF+_A=1+—

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SEERLE
E—RF+_A=1+—

December 2016 are as follows: B R ARTTE 2 AR BT
Adjusted exercise Adjustments
price per Share after Outstanding due to the Exercised  Outstanding
completion of the Rights asat Cancelled Granted  Rights Issue during asat
Issue and Bonus Issue 1 January during during  and Bonus Lapsed during the year 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Vesting date (Note 1) Exercisable period 2016 the year the year Issue (Note 1) the year (Note 5) 2016
RZB-AF
E@;"‘Eﬁmﬂﬂéﬁlﬂﬁ RZB-RE BRBRRAR e
Biifo8RE -B-B BifLz RERTE =t-8
ERA RERH BREH SRRAGEE (W)  ARH HATE  REAEE  REARY  BEB(NEY  RERZN (H&E5) HATE
Director - Zhang Xiongfeng 19 June 2014 31 December 2015 HKS0.973% T 1 January 2016 - 5,716,357 (5,716,357) - - - - -
30 June 2016
E3-FIEE ZT-BERATAE Z5-0E “E-RE-A-RE
+-A=1-H “I-RERAZTE
22 June 2015 30 June 2016 HKS1.466% 1T 1July 2016 - 2,674,671 (22,674,671) - - - - -
31 December 2016
—E-1f ZE-AERAZTA ZE-RELR-BE
~AZTZH ZE-REtZAZT-R
19 January 2016 31 May 2016 HKS0.161E L 1June 2016 - - 47,293,536 20,750,648 - - 68,044,184
11 November 2020 (Notes 2 and 4)
ZE-NE-AthB 23R ZE-R"ERR-BE (H&2Ra)
7A=t-A ZEITET-A1-R
Director - Zhang Peiao 19 June 2014 31 December 2015 HKS0.973% T 1 January 2016 - 3,810,904 (3,810,904) - - - - -
30 June 2016
E3-FiRE ZE-RERATNAE ZE-1F “E-RE-R-RE
+-A=1-H “I-RERAZTE
22 June 2015 30 June 2016 HK$1466% T 1uly2016- 2,667,608 (2,667,608) - - - - -
31 December 2016
—E-1f ZE-AERAZTH “F-/Eth-REZ
~AZTZH ZE-REtZAZT-R
19 January 2016 31 May 2016 HKS0.161E L 1June 2016~ - - 6,478,512 2,842,530 - - 9,321,042
11 November 2020 (Notes 2 and 4)
ZI-RE-ANE ZE-RF ZE-R"ERR-BE (HrsF2Ra)
7A=t-A ZEIFET-A1-R
14 September 2016 14 September 2016 HK$0.06387 T 15 September 2016 - - - 39,930,000 - - (39,930,000) -
14 September 2017 (Note 3)
ZE-AEAATER ZE-AFAATRA “E-RENATRAER (W)
“T-LENATIE
Employee 19 June 2014 31 December 2015 HKS0.973 T 1 January 2016 - 1,905,455 - - 835270 (2,740,725) - -
30 June 2016
2 ZE-BERATAE ZE-1E ZE-RE-A-RZ
TZR=1-H ZE-RERAZTE
22 June 2015 30 June 2016 HKS1.4667C 1 July 2016~ 1,333,805 - - 585,055 (1,918,860) - -
31 December 2016
“T-1f “E-~E/R=TH “E5-REtR-RE
REZtZR ZT-RETZA=t-B
19 January 2016 31 May 2016 HKS0.161ET 1 June 2016 - - - 3,239,256 1,421,266 - - 4,660,522
11 November 2020 (Note 2)
ZEE-AThE ZB-RE ZE-RERR-BE (Hz2)
AA=1-A “ECREH-A1-8
14 September 2016 14 September 2016 HKS0.0638% T 15 September 2016 - - - 46,090,000 - - (46,090,000) -
14 September 2017 (Note 3)
ZE-REAATIE ZE-REAATER ZE-REARTERZ (I33)
“E-tEAATIA
Other participants 19-June-14 31-December-15 HKSO.973% 70 1 January 2016~ 30 June 2016 7,621,808 - - 3341064 (10,962,872) - -
Asaz ZE-MESATAE ZB-1% 5 E-R-RZ
+-A=1-H “I-RERAZTE
14-September-16 14-September-16 HKS0.0638% T 15 September 2016~ 14 - - 324,450,000 - - (324,450,000) -
September 2017 (Note 3)
“I-REAATIE ZE-REAATER ZE-REARTRRZ (I33)
“E-tEAATIA
45,730,608 (34,869,540) 467,481,304 29775833 (15,622457) (410,470,000 82,025,748
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As at the date of this Annual Report, there were outstanding
options carrying the rights to subscribe for up to a total of
82,025,748 Shares since the adoption of the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.54% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of this Annual Report.

Details of the Scheme are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options were
exercised was approximately HK$0.0673.

Notes:

1. The exercise price of the outstanding share options of the Company
(the "Outstanding Options”) granted and the total number of the
Shares comprised in the Outstanding Options which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all such Outstanding Options have been
adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue and the Bonus Issue, details
of which are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 8
April 2016 and 27 May 2016 respectively.

2. In respect of the share options granted on 19 January 2016, the
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted was HK$0.184 per Share.

3. In respect of the share options granted on 14 September 2016, the
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted was HK$0.062 per Share.

4. On 19 January 2016, share options entitling the holders thereof
to subscribe for an aggregate of 47,293,536 Shares (the “ZX
Options”) and 6,478,512 Shares (the “ZP Options”) were
conditionally granted to Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng and Mr. Zhang Peiao
respectively. As the total number of Shares to be issued upon the
exercise of each of (1) the ZX Options; and (2) the ZP Options,
aggregated with the share options granted to Mr. Zhang Peiao
under the share option scheme on 22 June 2015 to subscribe for
2,667,608 Shares, would exceed the maximum entitlement of each
eligible participant under the share option scheme stipulated in the
Note to Rule 23.03(4) of the GEM Listing Rules (i.e. the aggregate
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted (including exercised and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue),
the grant of each of the ZX Options and the ZP Options have been
approved by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held
on 9 May 2016 in accordance with the Note to Rule 23.03(4) of the
GEM Listing Rules, at which Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng and Mr. Zhang
Peiao and their close associates abstained from voting. Further
details of the grant of each of the ZX Options and the ZP Options
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 5 April 2016 and the
Company’s announcement dated 9 May 2016.

5. During the year ended 31 December 2016, 410,470,000 Shares
were issued pursuant to the exercise of 410,470,000 share options
by the grantees at the aggregate subscription price of approximately
HK$26,187,000.

Consideration of HK$1 was paid by each of the grantee on
acceptance of the share options granted on 19 January 2016 and
14 September 2016.

RAFHRBE BRMWERET S LAR &
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions undertaken by the Group during the year
under review are set out below:

(i)

On 7 December 2015, the Group, Mr. Xu lJialiang,
Mr. Xu Xiaofeng, Zhiqu and LEO entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (as amended and supplemented
by a supplemental agreement dated 11 January 2016)
in relation to the Zhiqu Disposal at a total consideration
of RMB754,000,000, RMB237,010,000 of which was
payable to the Group. Completion of transfer of the entire
equity interest in Zhiqu took place in July 2016 and the
consideration was received by the Group in September
2016. As each of Mr. Xu Jialiang and Mr. Xu Xiaofeng was
a substantial equity holder of Zhiqu and thus a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level, the sale and
purchase agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute connected transactions of the
Company. The Zhiqu Disposal represents a lucrative
opportunity to the Group to realise its investment in the
provision of integral marketing services business. Details
of the transaction (including its terms) are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 11 February 2016 and the
announcement of the Company dated 8 December 2015.

On 14 January 2016, Timely Investments Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the
purchaser, Dynamic Creative Limited and Joyful Dream
Limited as the vendors and Mr. Xu Xiaofeng and Mr.
Xu Jialiang as the guarantors entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the Group’s acquisition
of 49% of the issued share capital of Charm Team Group
Limited (“Charm Team”), which was owned as to 51%
by the Company immediately before completion, at the
consideration of HK$2. Each of the vendors and the
guarantors, being the respective ultimate beneficial owner
of each of the vendors, is a connected person of the
Company. Through the acquisition, the Group has avoided
to form any new joint venture with any other third party,
while the vendors intended to dispose of its investments
in Charm Team. Details of the transaction (including its
terms) are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 14 January 2016.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
SEEERES

A LRZ NEER S

(i)

AEBRBBEFENETZEER NN
T

R-_E—RAF+-_A+H KEB %HEF
SR CBREIRL LS BEF BT —
NESEHE(K-_ZT—X F—AF+—HZ
HrhHREeIk#ER) AEE@EEHED
EE5H BNREAARKT54,000,0007T
Hr AR#237,010,0007T B AN 52 @ X £+ o
HENBNEIREER - —F+tA
TRk MRBENR-_E—NEHLABAE
EWE R BRESLRGBRERLESH
ARBZITEEZFBEA BHRALRAT
EHNBRAIEE 2B EAL EHEERH
FNEBETRETZRIEBRARNGE 2
EXS EBLEFHNAEEZERER
BALHERGEBZKRENRE -FEAX
S (BREKFFBIRARFBHEA
—E-RF_At+—BZBEHAARRAFH

HE-—ZT—RAF+-_ANHZAMH-

RZE—-RFE-—A+HB - XRGE2EMH
J& /A &) Timely Investments Limited (1E&E
7)) BEIBRARIRELBERNR (R
BH)REREELEERIRESEE (ER
ERAN)FIN—HEEME NEEHAR
EEWEEREEERAG (TEF]) (B
BETEKBIBEARRAIERS1% Em) B &7
BARZ249%  RER2E T -BEH RERA
(BREFZEEBEHEREREEAN)ZE
BARBZBEANT ANEBEEFEBKE
FEB RN EMEME=FKIIEMFE
EhE MEREFELEHRERZIKE -
XS (BREREGR)FBHNR AR A
BB AT —RF-—ATHEAZAf-

IIF

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR 41



(iii)

(iv)

42

On 14 January 2016, the Company entered into an
underwriting agreement (“Underwriting Agreement”)
with the underwriters, namely Turbo Pointer Limited
("Turbo Pointer”) and Astrum Capital Management
Limited in respect of the Rights Issue pursuant to which
Turbo Pointer (beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
Xiongfeng, the Chairman and an executive Director) as
one of the underwriters, has undertaken (i) to apply for
and pay for 190,539,000 rights shares (the “Committed
Shares”) provisionally allotted to it pursuant to the
Rights Issue and (ii), in the first priority over the other
underwriter to subscribe on the terms of the prospectus
documents for the rights shares not taken up by the
qualifying Shareholders (the “Untaken Shares”) (to
the extent of 181,833,626 rights shares, being the
commitment of Turbo Pointer under the Underwriting
Agreement). Turbo Pointer was not entitled to any
underwriting commission in respect of its underwriting of
the Rights Issue. On the completion of the Rights Issue,
Turbo Pointer has subscribed for 190,539,000 Committed
Shares and 181,833,626 Untaken Shares at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$57,718,000. Further
details of the Rights Issue are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 11 February 2016, the prospectus of the
Company dated 11 March 2016 and the announcements
of the Company dated 8 April 2016 and 11 April 2016.

On 6 October 2016, Joyful Honor Limited (“Joyful”)
(wholly-owned by Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin (“Mr. Cho"),
a director of Luck Key) and Town Health Healthcare
Services Limited ("THHSL") as the subscribers and
Mr. Cho as the guarantor entered into the subscription
agreement with Luck Key in relation to the subscription of
approximately 22.28% of the issued share capital of Luck
Key at the aggregate subscription price of approximately
HK$21,136,000. As (i) Mr. Cho being the guarantor is a
director of Luck Key, and Joyful is wholly-owned by the
guarantor; and (ii) THHSL is a substantial shareholder of
Luck Key, each of the subscribers and the guarantor is a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level.
The subscription would enable the Group to retain the key
management of Luck Key and to enhance the dedication
of the key management of Luck Key in the development
and operation of the healthcare business of the Group.
Details of the transaction (including its terms) are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 6 October
2016.
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Continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group
during the year under review subject to reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules are set out below:

Town Health International Medical Group Limited (“Town Health
International”), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3886), is the holding
company of THHSL, a substantial shareholder of Luck Key (a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). As such, each of
Town Health International and its subsidiaries (being an associate
of Town Health International) has become a connected person of
the Company for the purpose of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules, and the transactions contemplated under the Licence
Agreement (defined below) and the Master Tenancy Agreement
(defined below) constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

On 29 May 2015, Town Health Medical and Dental Services
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Town Health International
“THMDS") as licensor and Hong Kong Health Check Centre
Limited (an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, "HKHCC") as licensee entered into another a licence
agreement (“Licence Agreement”) in relation to the grant
by THMDS to HKHCC of the exclusive right to use, enjoy and
occupy the premises as a health check centre for the Group
from 1 June 2015 to 31 August 2017 at a monthly licence fee
of approximately HK$118,000. On the same date, Fair Jade
Group Limited (“Fair Jade"”) as landlord and the Company as
tenant entered into a master tenancy agreement (“Master
Tenancy Agreement”) to regulate the renting arrangements of
a number of premises as a health check centre, laboratory and
supporting office of the Group and the properties owned by Fair
Jade or its subsidiaries (“Landlords”) which the Group may rent
during the term of the Master Tenancy Agreement (“Renting
Arrangements”, each a “Renting Arrangement”) from the
respective Landlords during the period from 1 June 2015 to
31 December 2017 at rents to be determined by the parties to
each Renting Arrangement with reference to the then prevailing
market rents on premises comparable in location, area and
permitted use.

Major terms of the Licence Agreement and Master Tenancy
Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 May 2015.

The continuing connected transactions under the Licence
Agreement and the Master Tenancy Agreement (collectively
"CCT") are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement but are subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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As the Group has been occupying these premises as the Group's
health check centres, laboratory and supporting office in Hong
Kong, the entering into the Licence Agreement and the Master
Tenancy Agreement allows the Group to continue to use these
premises and shelter the Group from any potential loss due to
relocation of its existing health check centres, laboratory and
supporting office and save the relocation costs of the Group. In
addition, the Master Tenancy Agreement will also provide the
Group with opportunities to rent premises from the Landlords
based on market prices which the Company considers suitable
for the continuous expansion of its business.

The Company's auditor has provided a letter to the Board and
confirmed that, for the year ended 31 December 2016:

(@) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the CCT have not been approved by
the Board,;

(b) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the CCT were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the CCT; and

() with respect to the aggregate transactions amounts of the
CCT under the Licence Agreement and the Master Tenancy
Agreement, nothing has come to the Board’s attention that
causes the Board to believe that those CCT have exceeded
the relevant annual caps as set by the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken by
the Group during the year under review in the ordinary course
of business are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. Certain of those related party transactions also fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS OF SOMETHING BIG GROUP

The Group owns 28.8% equity interest of Something Big.
A wholly-owned subsidiary of Something Big, Something
Big Technology Company Limited (“"HK SBT"”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and another wholly-owned subsidiary
of HK SBT, & ( /&) A4 Bt B R 2 7] (unofficial English
translation being “PrimeVision Tech Company Limited")
("PrimeVision”), a company incorporated in the PRC,
have been operating their business through contract-based
arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual Arrangements”)
for the purpose of enabling the Something Big Group and the
shareholders of Something Big, including the Company, as
foreign investors to control and benefit from the PRC operating
companies (“OPCO") of the Something Big Group, i.e. Shanghai
Wanjia (as defined below) and Shanghai SBT (as defined below),
in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

A summary of the information of the Contractual Arrangements
and the OPCO is as follows:

1. EEENAKZRHRERA A (unofficial English translation
being “Shanghai Wanjia Network Technology Co.,
Ltd.) (“Shanghai Wanjia”) and its subsidiary, -5
BB R AR 2 7 (unofficial English translation
being “Shanghai Something Big Technology Co., Ltd.)
(“Shanghai SBT"”) (Shanghai Wanjia and Shanghai SBT
collectively as “Shanghai Group”)

1.1 Particulars of the OPCO and their registered owners

Shanghai Wanjia is a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 17 July 2012. As at the date of this Annual
Report, Shanghai Wanjia held the entire equity interest
in Shanghai SBT, which is a limited liability company
established in the PRC.

The registered shareholders of Shanghai Wanjia are Mr.
Lu Le ("Mr. Lu”) (50%) and Mr. Mao Yiging (“Mr. Mao")
(50%).

1.2 Description of the OPCO’s business

Shanghai Wanjia is principally engaged in the
development and operation of mobile online games
business and is considered to be engaged in the provision
of Internet culture business. Shanghai Wanjia holds
certain network cultural operation licences issued by the
relevant authority of the PRC government in relation
to the operation of the Shanghai Group, including the
value-added telecommunications business operating
licence (B EEZE B L EFT ), which is generally
known as the “Internet content provider licence” (“ICP
Licence”) and the Online Cultural Business Operation
Licence.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
SEEERES

BRAREMXEBSNLENE
ol

AR B K F R 2 28.8% MU © K H I
Z2ANBRATNAFHRERAR ([EEKX
BB AREBEMRAIZ A HE>
REREZ S —2EMBARTE (L5)18
BREARAT ([FR]) AR5 B MR
ZRACRERFEBE BTN R
((ARREDCEEY SERAFREE
B R AR (BREARA) EIMEEE S
PEHASHREE 2 FEREEAR ([
AT B LM (FE RT3 R LEER
(% ETX))LRFEZGIE R L
U &8

BRLHREERRZERBEZMT -

1. ERENRASZNEAERAT ([ Lig®m])
REMEAR LBERBBNEARAF
(TEsER]) (EBENR LBERLK
BlEessE])

1.1 EHEERARREBTIHFEANER

FEENAR-_ZTE-——_F+A++H
EHRBRKILZER DA -RAFFHRA
H BB LLEER 2 2HR
- FBBEEAEPBRRIIZABRA
ﬁ}o

EEmEm s ERRRAESEE ([
REDREZXFEE([BRE]) &

FA50% R
1.2 BE R A ZREHR

LERNTENERBELLERHH
FREEER BRR SN ERHE LR
MXALEF - LBRNTAE BB
HEHPIR EBEEEBEL 2ET
WMEXCRLFAE BRIBEERRE
EBRETFIE(RFEA T EBREN
AEmeraE] ([ICPRFARE]) ) &
AR X EFF AT A8 ©

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR 45



46

Pursuant to the Catalogue for the Guidance of Foreign
Investment Industries ( S NEIREEXIEEH %) )
of 2015 jointly issued by the Ministry of Commerce of
the PRC (H Bl A R # A1 % 7% %6 ) ("MOFCOM”) and
the National Development and Reform Commission of
the PRC, the Internet culture business falls within the
category of industries prohibiting foreign investment.
On 17 February 2011, the Ministry of Culture of the
PRC (Bl AR KX ME /L #) ("MOC”) issued the
revised Interim Provisions on the Administration of the
Internet Culture ((EHEXELEBEEITHRE))
(“Internet Culture Interim Provisions”), effective as of
1 April 2011. According to the Internet Culture Interim
Provisions, “Internet cultural products”are defined
as including the online games specially produced for
Internet and games reproduced or provided through
the Internet. Provision of Internet cultural products
and related services is subject to the approval of the
MOC or its provincial counterpart. The MOC issued the
Circular on Implementation of the Newly Revised Interim
Provisions on the Administration of Internet Culture
(EREBERFEIT(CEBABAXERETRE) B
#A) on 18 March 2011, which provides that any
competent government authorities of the PRC will not
accept applications by foreign-invested Internet content
providers for operation of Internet culture business (other
than online music business) at the moment. Accordingly,
Something Big cannot acquire equity interest in Shanghai
Wanjia through PrimeVision, as the Something Big Group
conducts operation of mobile-online games, which falls
within the ambit of online culture business, a category of
business in which foreign investors are prohibited to hold
any equity interest.
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As a result of the foregoing, Something Big, through
PrimeVision, has entered into the Contractual
Arrangements with Shanghai Wanjia to conduct the
online games business in the PRC in order to comply
with the applicable PRC laws and regulations and to
assert management control over the operations of, and
enjoy all of the economic benefits of, the Shanghai
Group. The Contractual Arrangements are designed
specifically to confer upon PrimeVision the right to enjoy
all the economic benefit of Shanghai Group, to exercise
management control over the operations of Shanghai
Group, and to prevent leakages of assets and values
of Shanghai Group to the registered shareholders of
Shanghai Wanjia.

1.3 Summary of the major terms of the underlying

contracts of the Contractual Arrangements

Exclusive Technology Services and Management
Consulting Agreement

PrimeVision and Shanghai Wanjia entered into the
Exclusive Technology Services and Management
Consulting Agreement and its supplemental agreements,
pursuant to which Shanghai Wanjia agrees to engage
PrimeVision as its exclusive consultant and service
provider. Accordingly, PrimeVision shall provide advice
and recommendations to Shanghai Wanjia and its
subsidiary in respect of, among others, (i) consulting
services on the management and operations of Shanghai
Wanijia; (i) consulting services on professional training to
the employees of Shanghai Wanjia; (iii) consulting services
on market research; (iv) technical consulting services on
research and development of computer and portable
device software and games; (v) technical consulting
services on development or design of webpages
and websites; (vi) provision of relevant information
management system; (vii) provision of technology
supports and related consulting services; and (viii) hiring
of relevant technical personnel and provision of training
and field guidance.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Technology Services and
Management Consulting Agreement, Shanghai Wanjia
shall pay to PrimeVision a service fee that equals to the
profit of Shanghai Wanjia, after offsetting the prior-year
loss (if any), expenses and tax of Shanghai Wanjia, thus
all economic benefits of Shanghai Wanjia will belong to
PrimeVision. Shanghai Wanjia shall pay the service fee
every six months.

The Exclusive Technology Services and Management
Consulting Agreement is for an indefinite term
commencing from the date of the agreement (i.e.
31 January 2014), until it is terminated (i) by PrimeVision
by giving a 30 days’ prior notice of termination; or (ii)
upon the acquisition of the entire equity interests in, and/
or all assets of, Shanghai Wanjia by PrimeVision pursuant
to the Exclusive Option Agreement (as defined below).
Shanghai Wanjia is not contractually entitled to terminate
the Exclusive Technology Services and Management
Consulting Agreement.

Proxy Agreement

PrimeVision, Shanghai Wanjia and its shareholders entered
into the proxy agreement (the “Proxy Agreement”) and
its supplemental agreements, pursuant to which Mr. Lu
and Mr. Mao agreed to enter into powers of attorney to
irrevocably authorise PrimeVision to exercise all of their
rights and powers as shareholders of Shanghai Wanijia.
PrimeVision will act on behalf of Mr. Lu and Mr. Mao on all
matters pertaining to Shanghai Wanjia and, to the extent
permissible under applicable PRC laws, exercise all of their
respective rights as a shareholder thereof, including (i) rights
to attend shareholders” meeting; (i) rights to exercise voting
rights in a shareholders’ meeting; (iii) rights to convene
extraordinary shareholders’ meeting; (iv) rights to sign
minutes or resolutions of shareholders’ meetings or other
legal documents; (v) rights to instruct directors or the legal
representative of Shanghai Wanjia to act in accordance
with all instructions of PrimeVision; (vi) other shareholders’
rights and voting rights under the articles of association of
Shanghai Wanjia; (vii) rights to file documents with relevant
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies; (viii) rights
to decide any transfer or otherwise disposal of the equity
interest of Mr. Lu and Mr. Mao in Shanghai Wanjia; and
(ix) such other shareholders’ rights as stipulated under
applicable PRC laws, rules and regulations and the articles
of association of Shanghai Wanjia. No prior consent of
Mr. Lu and Mr. Mao is required for the exercise of any of
the aforesaid shareholders’ rights by PrimeVision.
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The Proxy Agreement is for an indefinite term
commencing from the date of the agreement (i.e. 31
January 2014), until it is terminated (i) by PrimeVision by
giving a 30 days’ prior notice of termination; or (i) upon
the acquisition of the entire equity interests in, and/or
all assets of, Shanghai Wanjia by PrimeVision pursuant
to the Exclusive Option Agreement. Mr. Lu, Mr. Mao
and Shanghai Wanjia are not contractually entitled to
terminate the Proxy Agreement.

Business Cooperation Agreement

PrimeVision, Shanghai Wanjia and its shareholders
entered into a business cooperation agreement
(the "Business Cooperation Agreement”) and its
supplemental agreements, pursuant to which Shanghai
Wanjia and its shareholders agreed to appoint persons
designated by PrimeVision to be the chairman (when
applicable), directors/executive directors, general
manager, chief financial controller and other senior
management of Shanghai Wanjia and its subsidiaries. Mr.
Lu and Mr. Mao, together with Shanghai Wanjia, have
also agreed in the Business Cooperation Agreement that,
unless there is a prior written consent from PrimeVision
or its appointee, Mr. Lu, Mr. Mao and Shanghai Wanjia
will not sell, transfer, lease or authorize any or all
material assets of Shanghai Wanjia, including but not
limited to, intellectual property. In addition, under the
Business Cooperation Agreement, PrimeVision shall
have the right to obtain and review the business data,
financial information and other information relevant to
the operations and business of Shanghai Wanjia and
its subsidiary. Pursuant to the Business Cooperation
Agreement, in the event that there occurs circumstances
of dissolution, liquidation, bankruptcy or restructuring
of PrimeVision, Shanghai Wanjia and its shareholders
shall, as HK SBT so instructs, procure Shanghai Wanjia
and its subsidiary to sell or otherwise dispose of the
whole or part of their equity interest or assets and all the
proceeds obtained therefrom shall be transferred, at nil
consideration, to HK SBT or its nominee. The shareholders
of Shanghai Wanjia undertake that in the event that
there occurs circumstances of dissolution or liquidation of
Shanghai Wanjia, all the proceeds from such dissolution
or liquidation shall be transferred, at nil consideration, to
PrimeVision's or HK SBT's nominee.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
SEEERES

REZTHZLERTFH Bz
B (ZE-—mO&E—-—A=1+—H)i&
AEREOTEELI0OAZEFLERIL
AN 3 () 17 B AR IR 08 R B R 1
U Eg a2 AR &
BEN 2 2HMEERTAKIERIE-
RIBERBIREGS AL FEXLE
K bgmEmEEg FRRE T

E=Nia 71

TE LBRANERRDILER
BEH#E ([REBEERR]) LA
Wk - it BRI N ERRREE
EHREBHIKRZALRLEREDN & HEH
BRAAZER (WEAR) BF /AT
B AKE UHeEREMsRE
BE-EEENERLERLBEN
NREBHAFEBETHE FRIFGE
FEIEZEAZELEARE &
AfESEAE ERERLEERAE TS
HE R HE LBENEAHEE
BEAREE (BREETRRANBMERE) X
SLULLIE IR A - B ON - RIBXF A 1F 1
ZTERARNGLENE SR
mEEMEAREENREEABMNE
BEIE MBER MEMER RIEXE
BalEmE HEBR M B8
WESXBHASZEN LEEDEER
RERBBAERZOETR REL
TR R A B AR HE S AT
NREEZF QR HE D 2 A K
BE UHHEMBZAERATH
BESETESREMZHERBA
FETRN 2 BRR R A e 8 TR
DA SBERERN BB
BRAIBZAMEFA/THEEER
THEBABBATRRZRBA-

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR 49



50

The Business Cooperation Agreement is for an indefinite
term commencing from the date of the agreement (i.e.
31 January 2014), until it is terminated (i) by PrimeVision
by giving a 30 days’ prior notice of termination; or (ii)
upon the acquisition of the entire equity interests in, or
all assets of, Shanghai Wanjia by PrimeVision pursuant to
the Exclusive Option Agreement. Shanghai Wanjia and its
shareholders are not contractually entitled to terminate
the Business Cooperation Agreement.

Appropriate arrangements have been made to protect
Something Big's interest in the event of the death,
bankruptcy or divorce of the registered shareholders
of Shanghai Wanjia to avoid any practical difficulties
in enforcing the Contractual Arrangements. Under the
Business Cooperation Agreement, Mr. Lu and Mr. Mao
warrant to PrimeVision that appropriate arrangements
will be made to protect PrimeVision’s interests in the
event of their death, loss of civil capacity, bankruptcy
or divorce to avoid any practical difficulties in enforcing
the Business Cooperation Agreement. In this regard,
the spouse of each of the registered shareholders of
Shanghai Wanijia has executed an irrevocable undertaking
on 5 June 2014, whereby the spouses expressly and
irrevocably acknowledged that, among other things,
they would not claim any rights including but not limited
to communal property interests in the equity interests
held by the shareholders of Shanghai Wanjia, would
assume all the responsibilities and obligations under the
Contractual Arrangements whenever they get the equity
interests in Shanghai Wanjia as a result of any reason and
would not take any actions or launch any suits in conflicts
with the purposes of the Contractual Arrangements.
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Exclusive Option Agreement

PrimeVision, Mr. Mao, Mr. Lu and Shanghai Wanijia entered
into an exclusive option agreement (the “Exclusive Option
Agreement”) and its supplemental agreement, pursuant
to which Mr. Mao and Mr. Lu irrevocably grant to
PrimeVision or the person as designated by PrimeVision
exclusive options to purchase, to the extent permitted
by PRC laws and regulations, their equity interests in
Shanghai Wanjia, entirely or partially, at an aggregate
consideration of RMB1 for each option or a minimum
purchase price permitted by PRC laws and regulations. In
addition, pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement,
Mr. Mao, Mr. Lu and Shanghai Wanjia irrevocably
granted to PrimeVision or the person as designated by
PrimeVision, exclusive options to acquire, to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations, all or part of
the assets of Shanghai Wanjia which include intellectual
property at an aggregate consideration of RMB1 for each
option or a minimum purchase price permitted under
PRC laws and regulations. PrimeVision may exercise such
options at any time until it or person designated by it has
acquired all equity interests or assets of Shanghai Wanjia
or unilaterally terminated the Exclusive Option Agreement
by giving 30 days’ prior notice, subject to the applicable
PRC laws and regulations.

In addition, Mr. Lu and Mr. Mao may not (i) dispose
of or procure senior management to dispose of any
material assets of Shanghai Wanjia without prior written
consent from PrimeVision, or (ii) pass or approve any
resolution with respect to the liquidation and dissolution
of Shanghai Wanjia. Based on this, the Contractual
Arrangements encompass dealing with the assets of
Shanghai Group, and not only the right to manage its
business and the right to revenue. This is to ensure that
the liquidator, acting on the Contractual Arrangements,
can seize the assets of Shanghai Group in a winding up
situation for the benefit of the shareholders and creditors
of PrimeVision.
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The Exclusive Option Agreement is for an indefinite term
commencing from the date of the agreement (i.e. 31
January 2014), until it is terminated (i) by PrimeVision
by giving a 30 days’ prior notice of termination; or (ii)
upon the acquisition of the entire equity interests or all
assets of, Shanghai Wanjia by PrimeVision or person
designated by it pursuant to the Exclusive Option
Agreement. Shanghai Wanjia and its shareholders are not
contractually entitled to terminate the Exclusive Option
Agreement. In addition, Mr. Mao and Mr. Lu undertake
under the Exclusive Option Agreement that they will
return to PrimeVision or the person as designated by
PrimeVision or HK SBT any proceeds, which exceed the
aggregate consideration of RMB1 as agreed under the
Exclusive Option Agreement, they will receive upon the
exercise of the aforesaid exclusive options.

Equity Pledge Agreement

PrimeVision, Mr. Mao, Mr. Lu and Shanghai Wanjia entered
into an equity pledge agreement and its supplemental
agreement (collectively, the “Equity Pledge Agreement”),
pursuant to which Mr. Mao and Mr. Lu shall pledge all
of their respective equity interests in Shanghai Wanjia
to PrimeVision to secure the performance of all of their
obligations and the obligations of Shanghai Wanjia
under the Contractual Arrangements. Pursuant to
the Equity Pledge Agreement, PrimeVision has a first
priority pledge on all or any part of the equity interests
in Shanghai Wanjia held by Mr. Lu and Mr. Mao. Under
the Equity Pledge Agreement, if Mr. Mao and/or Mr. Lu
and/or Shanghai Wanjia breach any obligation under the
Contractual Arrangements, PrimeVision, as the pledgee,
is entitled to request Mr. Mao and/or Mr. Lu to transfer
the pledged equity interests, entirely or partially to
PrimeVision and/or any entity or person as designated by
PrimeVision. In addition, pursuant to the Equity Pledge
Agreement, each of Mr. Mao and Mr. Lu undertakes to
PrimeVision, among other things, not to transfer the
interest in his respective equity interests in Shanghai
Wanjia and not to create any pledge thereon without
PrimeVision's prior written consent.
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The Equity Pledge Agreement is for an indefinite
term commencing on the date of the agreement (i.e.
31 January 2014), until (i) all the relevant obligations
under the Contractual Arrangements have been
fulfilled; (ii) all the relevant debts under the Contractual
Arrangements have been settled; or (iii) it is terminated
by PrimeVision by giving a 30 days’ prior notice of
termination. Shanghai Wanjia and its shareholders are
not contractually entitled to terminate the Equity Pledge
Agreement.

Power of Attorney

Mr. Lu and Mr. Mao has severally issued a power
of attorney to PrimeVision, pursuant to which they
irrevocably authorize PrimeVision to exercise all of their
rights and powers as shareholders of Shanghai Wanjia,
including (i) the rights to attend shareholders’ meeting;
(i) the rights to exercise voting rights in a shareholders’
meeting; (iii) the rights to convene extraordinary
shareholders’ meeting; (iv) the rights to sign minutes
or resolutions of shareholders’ meetings or other legal
documents; (v) the rights to instruct directors or the legal
representative of Shanghai Wanjia to act in accordance
with all instructions of PrimeVision; (vi) the rights to file
documents with relevant governmental authorities or
regulatory bodies; and (vii) other shareholders’ rights and
voting rights under the articles of association of Shanghai
Wanijia.

Spousal Consent

Each of the spouse of Mr. Lu and Mr. Mao has issued a
spousal consent to PrimeVision and HK SBT, pursuant to
which they irrevocably promised that they will observe
the Contractual Arrangements in any case if they
obtain any of the equity interests of Shanghai Wanjia or
Shanghai SBT as a result of any reason and make best
effort to ensure the obligations of Shanghai Wanjia and
Shanghai SBT under the Contractual Arrangements will
be observed.
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Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The revenue attributable to Shanghai Group (i.e. the
Contractual Arrangements) amounted to approximately
RMB34,265,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
total assets and net assets attributable to Shanghai Group (i.e.
the Contractual Arrangements) amounted to approximately
RMB26,763,000 and RMB20,294,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016. As Something Big is an associate of the
Company, the revenue and assets of the Shanghai Group
have not been consolidated into the financial results of the
Group for the year under review.

Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The PRC government may determine that Corporate
Structure of the Something Big Group or the
Contractual Arrangements are not in compliance
with any existing or future applicable PRC laws or
regulations.

If the PRC government finds that the agreements that
establish the structure for operating the mobile-online
game businesses of the Something Big Group in the PRC
do not comply with applicable PRC laws and regulations,
or if these regulations or their interpretations change in the
future, the Something Big Group could be subject to severe
consequences, including nullification of the Contractual
Arrangements and relinquishment of PrimeVision's interests
in Shanghai Wanjia.
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Shanghai Wanijia is principally engaged in development,
distribution, and operation of mobile-online games. Under
the current PRC regulatory circumstances, PrimeVision as a
wholly foreign owned enterprise would not be able to obtain
the relevant business license(s) of such businesses and thus
would be unable to provide the Internet culture business
and mobile game publication in PRC directly. In compliance
with the relevant laws, any direct or indirect acquisition
by PrimeVision of the equity interests in Shanghai Wanjia
would constitute a foreign investment in the value-added
telecommunications industry in the PRC and would render
PrimeVision or the acquired entity ineligible to obtain the
business license(s).

The Contractual Arrangements enable PrimeVision to
have substantial control of Shanghai Wanjia, under which
all economic benefits and risks arising from the business,
financial and operating activities of Shanghai Wanjia are
transferred to PrimeVision by means of technical consulting
services fees, and thus are fundamental to the Something Big
Group's legal structure and business operations.

On 13 July 2006, the MIIT issued the Circular on
Strengthening the Administration of Foreign Investment in
and Operation of Value added Telecommunications Business
(AR EREREREETEXEFEENRA) ("MIT
Notice”), which reiterated restrictions on foreign investment
in telecommunications businesses. Under the MIIT Notice,
a domestic company that holds an ICP License is prohibited
from leasing, transferring or selling the license to foreign
investors in any form, and from providing any assistance,
including providing resources, sites or facilities, to foreign
investors to provide ICP services illegally in the PRC. Due
to a lack of interpretative materials from the authorities,
it cannot be assured that the MIT will not consider the
corporate structure of the Something Big Group and the
Contractual Arrangements as a kind of foreign investment in
telecommunication services, in which case the Something Big
Group may be found in violation of the MIIT Notice.
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Pursuant to the Catalogue for the Guidance of Foreign
Investment Industries (SN 1R & & ¥ 58 B $&) of 2015
jointly issued by the MOFCOM and the National Development
and Reform Commission of the PRC, the Internet culture
business falls within the category of industries prohibiting
foreign investment. On 17 February 2011, the MOC issued
the revised Interim Provisions on the Administration of
Internet Culture ( B Bt @30 {v B IR E 1741 F ) ("Internet
Culture Interim Provisions”), effective as of 1 April
2011. According to the Internet Culture Interim Provisions,
“Internet cultural products” are defined as including the
online games specially produced for the Internet and games
reproduced or provided through the Internet. Provision of
Internet cultural products and related services is subject to
the approval of the MOC or its provincial counterpart. The
MOC issued the Circular on Implementation of the Newly
Revised Interim Provisions on the Administration of Internet
Culture (AR EMIES] (BBBXXLEEETHRE) &
%) on 18 March 2011, which provides that the authorities
will temporarily not accept applications by foreign invested
Internet content providers for operation of Internet culture
business (other than online music business).

Something Big is a Cayman Islands company and its
wholly-owned PRC subsidiary, PrimeVision is considered
as a wholly foreign-invested enterprise. As stated above,
the PRC government restricts foreign investment in
telecommunications and online cultural businesses. Due to
these restrictions, Something Big conducts its operations
in the PRC through Shanghai Wanjia. Although Something
Big does not have any equity interest in Shanghai Wanjia,
Something Big is able to, through PrimeVision, exercise
effective control over Shanghai Wanjia and its subsidiary,
Shanghai SBT, and receive all of the economic benefits of
its operations through the Contractual Arrangements with
Shanghai Wanjia and its shareholders.
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On 28 September 2009, the General Administration of Press
and Publication of the PRC (2 A R 1 B 37 B H ix 42
£ ), currently known as the State Administration of Press
Publication, Radio, Film and Television ( B R %1 B i /& &
# ) ) ("GAPP"), the National Copyright Administration
of the PRC (FE AR A BB R R) ("NCA”) and
the National Office of Combating Pornography and lllegal
Publications (B X 1% = T 3E#¥ 2 = ) jointly published the
Notice Regarding the Consistent Implementation of the
Stipulations on Three Provisions of the State Council and the
Relevant Interpretation of the State Commission Office for
Public Sector Reform and the Further Strengthening of the
Administration of Pre examination and Approval of Internet
Games and the Examination and Approval of Imported
Internet Games (AR EBUEEE B  [=E]HE) M
RRGHEBEE E- P INARKHEAESEHANED
BEMEIEAEERNBA) ("GAPP Notice 13"). The GAPP
Notice 13 prohibits foreign investors from participating in
online game operating businesses through foreign-invested
enterprises in the PRC, and from controlling and participating
in such businesses of domestic companies indirectly through
other forms of joint ventures or contractual or technical
support arrangements. As no detailed interpretation of the
GAPP Notice 13 has been issued to date, it is not clear how
the GAPP Notice 13 will be implemented. Furthermore, as
some other primary government regulators, such as the
MOFCOM, the MOC and the MIIT, did not join the GAPP in
issuing the GAPP Notice 13, the scope of the implementation
and enforcement of the GAPP Notice 13 remains uncertain.
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In or around September 2011, various media sources
reported that the China Securities Regulatory Commission (
FEARHNMBEEFESEEETEZEE) ("CSRC") had prepared
a report proposing regulating the use of the variable interest
equity (“VIE") structures, such as that of Something Big, in
industry sectors subject to foreign investment restrictions in
the PRC and overseas listings by China-based companies.
However, it is unclear whether the CSRC officially issued
or submitted such a report to a higher level government
authority or what any such report provides, or whether any
new PRC laws or regulations relating to VIE structures will be
adopted or if adopted, what they would provide.

In addition, several recent articles, including an article
published in early June 2013 on The New York Times and
another one on The Economic Observer ( £ /5 BI5X %) ,
reported discussions that a recent PRC Supreme Court
decision and two VIE structure-related arbitration decisions
in Shanghai had cast doubt on the validity of the contractual
arrangements for a VIE structure. According to these
articles, the PRC Supreme Court ruled in late 2012 that
an entrustment agreement entered into by and between a
Hong Kong company and a PRC domestic entity, which was
purported to enable such Hong Kong company to make
equity investment in a PRC bank through the proxy PRC
domestic entity, was void on the ground that this agreement
established an entrustment relationship meant to circumvent
the PRC laws and regulations that prohibit foreign investment
in PRC financial institutions and as such, constituted an act
of concealing illegal intentions with a legitimated form.
These articles argued that as the contractual arrangement
in a VIE structure and the entrustment agreement in the
cited case were similar in that the contractual arrangements
in the VIE structure were also designed to “get around”
the regulatory restrictions on foreign investment in certain
industries. As such, the articles noted that this Supreme
Court decision might increase the uncertainties relating to
the PRC government’s view on the validity of the contractual
arrangements used in a VIE structure. These articles also
reported, without providing sufficient details, that two
arbitration decisions by the then Shanghai CIETAC which
invalidated the contractual arrangements used in a VIE
structure in 2010 and 2011.
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It cannot be assured that the PRC government or judicial
authorities would agree that the corporate structure of the
Something Big Group or the Contractual Arrangements
comply with PRC licensing, registration, other regulatory
requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future.
If the PRC government or judicial authorities determines that
the Something Big Group does not comply with applicable
laws and regulations, it could have broad discretion in
dealing with such incompliance, including:

1. requiring the nullification of the Contractual
Arrangements;

2. levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated
from the operations under the Contractual Arrangements;

3. revocation of the business licenses or operating licenses
of Shanghai Wanjia and/or PrimeVision;

4. discontinuing or placing restrictions or onerous conditions
on the business operations of Shanghai Wanjia and/or
PrimeVision;

5. imposing conditions or requirements which the
Something Big Group may not be able to comply with or
satisfy;

6. requiring the Something Big Group to undergo a costly
and disruptive restructuring; and

7. taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could
be harmful to or even shut down the business of the
Something Big Group.

The imposition of any of the above mentioned consequences
could result in a material and adverse effect on the
Something Big Group's ability to conduct its business. In
addition, if the imposition of any of these consequences
causes PrimeVision to lose the rights to direct the activities of
Shanghai Wanjia or its right to receive its economic benefits,
Something Big would no longer be able to consolidate the
financial results of Shanghai Wanjia and thus would affect
the financial results of Something Big as well as the Group’s
investment in Something Big.
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Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to
the enactment timetable, interpretation and
implementation of the draft PRC Foreign Investment
Law and how it may impact the viability of the current
corporate structure of the Shanghai Group, and
its corporate governance, business operations and
financial results.

The Ministry of Commerce, or the MOFCOM, published a
discussion draft of the proposed Foreign Investment Law in
January 2015 aiming to, upon its enactment, replace the trio
of existing laws regulating foreign investment in the PRC,
namely, the Sino-foreign Equity Joint Venture Enterprise Law,
the Sino-foreign Cooperative Joint Venture Enterprise Law
and the Wholly Foreign-invested Enterprise Law, together
with their implementation rules and ancillary regulations.
The draft Foreign Investment Law embodies an expected
PRC regulatory trend to rationalise its foreign investment
regulatory regime in line with prevailing international practice
and the legislative efforts to unify the corporate legal
requirements for both foreign and domestic investments.
While the MOFCOM was solicited comments on this draft
earlier in 2015, substantial uncertainties exist with respect to
its enactment timetable, interpretation and implementation.
The draft Foreign Investment Law, if enacted as proposed,
may materially impact the entire legal framework regulating
the foreign investments in the PRC and may also impact the
viability of the current corporate structure of the Shanghai
Group, and its corporate governance, business operations
and financial results to some extent.
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Among other things, the draft Foreign Investment Law
expands the definition of foreign investment and introduces
the principle of “actual control” in determining whether
a company is considered a foreign invested enterprise, or
a foreign invested enterprise (a “FIE"). The draft Foreign
Investment Law specifically provides that entities established in
the PRC but “controlled” by foreign investors will be treated
as FIEs, whereas an entity set up in a foreign jurisdiction
would nonetheless be, upon market entry clearance by the
MOFCOM, treated as a PRC domestic investor provided that
the entity is “controlled” by PRC entities and/or citizens. In this
connection, “control” is broadly defined in the draft law to
cover any of the following summarised categories: (i) holding
50% or more of the voting rights or similar equity interest
of the subject entity; (ii) holding less than 50% of the voting
rights or similar equity interest of the subject entity but
having the power to secure at least 50% of the seats on the
board or other equivalent decision making bodies, or having
the voting power to material influence on the board, the
shareholders’ meeting or other equivalent decision making
bodies; or (iii) having the power to exert decisive influence,
via contractual or trust arrangements, over the subject
entity’s operations, financial matters or other key aspects of
business operations. Once an entity is determined to be an
FIE, and its investment amount exceeds certain thresholds
or its business operation falls within a “negative list” to be
separately issued by the State Council in the future, market
entry clearance by the MOFCOM or its local counterparts
would be required. Otherwise, all foreign investors may make
investments on the same terms as Chinese investors without
being subject to additional approval from the government
authorities as mandated by the existing foreign investment
legal regime.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
SEEERES

AN QNI EZER) EENHERE
NEHR UHEBFARREHAABINED
E2([HELE]SIATERES ] RA-
GMNREEFER) BRIRERFBEK L
BHRMRLEEEH HERBERRIE
INEDE MPAIRINRNERK T A E S
EESHEMOMISEAFAEZ WEAE
FEEANKEE HAIRREZERBATE
RN NERMES] o5t (5 54
EERPEZRTE WRETMA THEER
WME () B BIZEE50% s A ERRHE
AL IE : (N EEZEE D MN50% K
FESREUREREEENTNESESS
R EMRAIERREERDS0% HF
EHEES BEASHEMRBEZERRE
BREKEAFENNRAE: (i) HEEE
DA B BN EALHE B EEEMNE
B PR EE AN T EERLEEHAEMG
IAEHEFE - BE—BHETFTAINED
¥ MEKLEBEBEETPAEREEKE
BRAEBEKRBESIT MR [BEEE]
gE ABEESEHSBE M AEEZT
BN BRIE AN FTBINR R E &
AR BRI EEERMNIETETIRE -
MBAERSHEABIINEIEEERTEMETE
B R AT 2B P B BE SN

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR 61



62

The “variable interest entity” structure, or VIE structure, has
been adopted by many PRC-based companies, including
Shanghai Wanjia, to obtain necessary licenses and permits
in the industries that are currently subject to foreign
investment restrictions in the PRC. Under the draft Foreign
Investment Law, variable interest entities that are controlled
via contractual arrangements would also be deemed as
FIEs, if they are ultimately “controlled” by foreign investors.
Therefore, for any companies with a VIE structure in an
industry category that is on the “negative list”, the existing
VIE structure may be deemed legitimate only if the ultimate
controlling person(s) is/are of PRC nationality (either PRC state
owned enterprises or agencies, or PRC citizens). Conversely, if
the actual controlling person(s) is/are of foreign nationalities,
then the variable interest entities will be treated as FIEs and
any operation in the industry category on the “negative list”
without market entry clearance may be considered as illegal.

The draft Foreign Investment Law has not taken a position
on what will happen to the existing companies with a VIE
structure, although a few possible options were proffered
at the comment solicitation stage. Under these options,
a company with VIE structures and in the business on the
“negative list” at the time of enactment of the new Foreign
Investment Law has either the option or the obligation to
disclose its corporate structure to the authorities, while the
authorities, after reviewing the ultimate control structure of
the company, may either permit the company to continue
its business by maintaining the VIE structure (when the
company is deemed ultimately controlled by PRC citizens), or
require the company to dispose of its businesses and/or VIE
structure based on circumstantial considerations. Moreover,
it is uncertain whether the current businesses that Shanghai
Wanijia operates or plans to operate through Shanghai Wanijia
and Shanghai SBT, will be subject to the foreign investment
restrictions or prohibitions set forth in the “negative list” to
be issued. If the enacted version of the Foreign Investment
Law and the final “negative list” mandate further actions,
such as the MOFCOM market entry clearance, to be
completed by companies with existing VIE structure like the
Shanghai Group, the Shanghai Group face uncertainties
as to whether such clearance can be timely obtained, or at
all. Furthermore, it cannot be assured that Shanghai Wanjia
and Shanghai SBT will still be controlled. If such corporate
structure is required to be changed, further actions required
to be taken by the Shanghai Group under the enacted
Foreign Investment Law may materially and adversely affect
the business and financial condition of the Shanghai Group.
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The draft Foreign Investment Law is a draft without any
legal effect, and a number of legislative procedures have to
be undergone before its promulgation and implementation.
The draft Foreign Investment Law, if enacted as proposed,
may also materially impact the corporate governance
practice and increase the compliance costs of the Shanghai
Group. For instance, the draft Foreign Investment Law
imposes stringent ad hoc and periodic information reporting
requirements on foreign investors and the applicable FIEs.
Aside from investment implementation report and investment
amendment report that are required at each investment
and alteration of investment specifics, an annual report
is mandatory, and large foreign investors meeting certain
criteria are required to report on a quarterly basis. Any
company found to be non-compliant with these information
reporting obligations may potentially be subject to fines
and/or administrative or criminal liabilities, and the persons
directly responsible may be subject to criminal liabilities.

PrimeVision relies on the Contractual Arrangements
to control and obtain the economic benefits from
Shanghai Group, the operating entities in the PRC,
which may not be as effective in providing operational
control as direct ownership.

Due to the PRC's legal restrictions on foreign investment
in mobile-online game operators, Something Big, through
PrimeVision, controls, through the Contractual Arrangements
rather than equity ownership, Shanghai Group, the operating
entities in the PRC and the holder of the key licenses required
to operate online game business in the PRC.

However, the Contractual Arrangements may still may not
be as effective in allowing PrimeVision to exercise control
over Shanghai Wanjia as equity ownership. For example,
Shanghai Wanjia and its shareholders could breach or
fail to perform their obligations under the Contractual
Arrangements. If PrimeVision had direct ownership of
Shanghai Wanjia, PrimeVision would be able to exercise
its rights as a shareholder to effect changes in its board of
directors, which in turn could effect changes, subject to any
applicable fiduciary obligations, at the management and
operational level. Under the Contractual Arrangements,
PrimeVision would need to rely on its rights under the
Business Cooperation Agreement, the Exclusive Technology
Services and Business Consulting Agreement and the Proxy
Agreement to effect such changes, or designate new
shareholders for Shanghai Wanjia under the Exclusive Option
Agreement.
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If Shanghai Wanjia or its shareholders breach their obligations
under the Contractual Arrangements or if PrimeVision loses
the effective control over Shanghai Wanjia for any reason,
PrimeVision would need to bring a claim against them under
the terms of the Contractual Arrangements. The Contractual
Arrangements are governed by the PRC law and provide
that any dispute arising from these arrangements will be
submitted to the Shanghai International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission (“SIETAC") for arbitration,
the ruling of which will be final and binding. Furthermore,
personal liabilities of the shareholders of Shanghai Wanjia
may also subject the equity interest they hold in Shanghai
Wanjia to court preservation actions or enforcement. The
legal framework and system in the PRC, particularly those
relating to arbitration proceedings, is not as developed
as other jurisdictions such as Hong Kong or the United
States. As a result, significant uncertainties relating to the
enforcement of legal rights through arbitration, litigation
and other legal proceedings remain in the PRC, which
could limit PrimeVision's ability to enforce the Contractual
Arrangements and exert effective control over Shanghai
Wanijia. If Shanghai Wanjia or any of its shareholders fails
to perform its respective obligations under the Contractual
Arrangements, and PrimeVision is unable to enforce the
Contractual Arrangements, or suffers significant delay or
there are other obstacles in the process of enforcing the
Contractual Arrangements, the Something Big Group's
business and operations could be severely disrupted, which
could materially and adversely affect its results of operations.
As a result, the Group's investment in Something Big could
also be materially and adversely affected.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement, Mr. Mao and
Mr. Lu irrevocably grant to PrimeVision or the person as
designated by PrimeVision exclusive options to purchase,
to the extent permitted by PRC laws and regulations, their
equity interests in Shanghai Wanjia, entirely or partially,
at an aggregate consideration of RMB1 for each option
or a minimum purchase price permitted by PRC laws and
regulations. In addition, Mr. Mao and Mr. Lu undertake under
the Exclusive Option Agreement that they will return to
PrimeVision or the person as designated by PrimeVision or HK
SBT any proceeds, which exceed the aggregate consideration
of RMB1 as agreed under the Exclusive Option Agreement,
they will receive upon the exercise of the aforesaid exclusive
options. If the final purchase price permitted by PRC laws
is substantially more than RMB1 and Mr. Mao and Mr. Lu
fails to return to PrimeVision or the person as designated
by PrimeVision or HK SBT any proceeds, which exceed the
aggregate consideration of RMB1 as agreed under the
Exclusive Option Agreement, they will receive upon the
exercise of the aforesaid exclusive options, the financial
conditions of PrimeVision or its subsidiaries may be materially
and adversely affected. As a result, the Group’s investment
in Something Big could also be materially and adversely
affected.

Certain terms of the Contractual Arrangements may not
be enforceable under PRC laws.

The Contractual Arrangements provide for dispute resolution
by way of arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules
of the SIETAC in the PRC. The Contractual Arrangements
contain provisions to the effect that the arbitral body may
award remedies over the shares and/or assets of Shanghai
Wanjia, injunctive relief and/or winding up of Shanghai
Wanjia. In addition, the Contractual Arrangements contain
provisions to the effect that courts in Hong Kong and Samoa
are empowered to grant interim remedies in support of the
arbitration pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal.

English translated name is for identification only
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However, the Group has been advised by PRC legal advisor
that the abovementioned provisions contained in the
Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable. Under
PRC laws, an arbitral body does not have the power to grant
any injunctive relief or provisional or final liquidation order
to preserve the assets of or any equity interest in Shanghai
Wanjia in case of disputes. Therefore, such remedies may
not be available to PrimeVision, notwithstanding the
relevant contractual provisions contained in the Contractual
Arrangements. PRC laws allow an arbitral body to award
the transfer of assets of or an equity interest in Shanghai
Wanjia in favour of an aggrieved party. In the event of
non-compliance with such award, enforcement measures
may be sought from the court.

However, the court may or may not support the award of an
arbitral body when deciding whether to take enforcement
measures. Under PRC laws, courts of judicial authorities
in the PRC generally would not grant injunctive relief or
winding-up order against Shanghai Wanjia as interim
remedies to preserve the assets or shares in favour of any
aggrieved party. Even though the Contractual Arrangements
provide that courts in Hong Kong and Samoa may grant
and/or enforce interim remedies or in support of arbitration,
such interim remedies (even if so granted by courts in Hong
Kong or Samoa in favour of an aggrieved party) may not
be recognized or enforced by PRC courts. As a result, in
the event that Shanghai Wanjia or any of its shareholders
breaches any of the Contractual Arrangements, PrimeVision
may not be able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely
manner, and its ability to exert effective control over
Shanghai Wanjia and conduct its business could be materially
and adversely affected and the financial performance of
Something Big could be materially and adversely affected. As
a result, the Group's investment in Something Big could also
be materially and adversely affected.

The Contractual Arrangements between PrimeVision and
Shanghai Wanjia may be subject to the scrutiny by the PRC
tax authorities and any finding that PrimeVision or Shanghai
Wanjia owes additional taxes could substantially reduce the
consolidated net income of Something Big and the value of
the Group’s investment in Something Big.

English translated name is for identification only
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Under the Contractual Arrangements among PrimeVision
and Shanghai Wanjia and its equity holders, Shanghai
Wanjia will transfer all of its profits to PrimeVision less any
accumulated loss, working capital requirements, expenses
and tax of Shanghai Wanjia, which will substantially reduce
Shanghai Wanjia’'s taxable income. These arrangements and
transactions are related-party transactions which must be
conducted on an arm'’s length basis under the applicable
PRC tax rules. In addition, under PRC laws and regulations,
arrangements and transactions among related parties may
generally be subject to the audit or scrutiny by the PRC tax
authorities within ten years after the taxable year when the
arrangements or transactions are conducted. As a result,
the determination of service fees and other payments to
PrimeVision by Shanghai Wanjia under the Contractual
Arrangements may be challenged and deemed not to be in
compliance with such tax rules. The Something Big Group
could face material and adverse tax consequences if the PRC
tax authorities determine that the Contractual Arrangements
were not entered into on an arm’s length basis and therefore
adjust the taxable income of Shanghai Wanjia in the form of
a transfer pricing adjustment which refers to the prices that
one member of a group of an affiliated corporation charges
to another member of the group for goods, assets, services,
financing or the use of intellectual property. A transfer pricing
adjustment could, among other things, result in a reduction,
for PRC tax purposes, of expense deductions recorded by
Shanghai Wanjia, which could in turn increase Shanghai
Wanjia's tax liabilities. Any such adjustment could result in
a higher overall tax liability of the Something Big Group. In
addition, the PRC tax authorities may impose late payment
fees and other penalties on Shanghai Wanjia for any unpaid
taxes. The consolidated net income of Something Big may
be materially and adversely affected if Shanghai Wanjia’s
tax liabilities increase or if it is subject to late payment fees
or other penalties. As a result, the value of the Group’s
investment may be materially and adversely affected.

Material change

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual Report,
there is no material change in the Contractual Arrangements
and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted.
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5. Other requirements

Pursuant to the Administrative Measures on Licensing
of Telecommunication Business (B Z £ KK & &
I %) promulgated by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology on 1 March 2009, applicants for
value-added telecommunication business operation shall
satisfy certain requirements, among which, there should be
no violation record of the telecommunication supervision
and administration regulations by the company, or its major
equity owner or major business management during the
past three years. During the past three years, the Group was
not in violation of any telecommunication supervision and
administration regulations in the PRC.

6. Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements

It is the intention of the Something Big Group to unwind the
Contractual Arrangements when foreign investment in the
development and operation of mobile-online games business
is no longer restricted in the PRC.

However, as at the date of this Annual Report, there is no
unwinding of any of the Contractual Arrangements or failure
to unwind when the restrictions that led to the adoption of
the Contractual Arrangements are removed.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group encourages environmental protection and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection to its employees.
The Group has adopted paperless systems and practices in its
daily operations, such as human resources and procurement as
appropriate. Creating a paperless working environment not only
alleviates environmental damages but also fits the commercial
goals of the Group, and saves physical space, facilitates
information sharing via IT networks, and reduces complicated
documentation procedures for the Group. Moreover, duplex
printing and copying have become the norm within the Group,
greatly reducing paper consumption and saving costs. Data
on printing is regularly collected and assessed, to monitor the
efficacy of the paperless environment. Details of the Group’s
commitments and efforts are summarised in the section headed
“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT" in this
Annual Report.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees are valuable assets of
the Group. The Group ensures all employees are reasonably
remunerated, and continues to improve, regularly review and
update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. Employees are encouraged to
devote their time to participate in local fund raising activities.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers and business partners
to meet its immediate and long-term goals. Based on the
Group's business nature, most of the customers are occasional
and non-routine, except for the major customer in relation to
the Group’s provision of IT services, which is a sizable corporate
client which has over ten years of relationship with the Group.
Certain customers in the Group’s medical diagnostic and health
check business are reputable insurance companies, hospitals and
clinics. To minimise credit risk, the Group in general will not allow
credit sales for individual customers. Meanwhile, credit terms
ranging from 30 days to 180 days are given to sizable corporate
customers and major customers with long-term business
relationships with the Group. The Group values the feedback
from customers and always tries to understand their needs
through regular communication and business updates.

In particular, the largest customer in relation to the Group's
of IT services business has accounted for approximately 87%
(2015: 87 %) of the total revenue of the Group from the
corresponding business and 33% (2015: 16%) of the total
revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.
Such customer is a leading Chinese multinational networking
and telecommunications equipment and services company. As
at 31 December 2016, trade receivable due from such customer
amounted to approximately HK$102,960,000, 94% of which was
not yet due as at end of the reporting period. As at the date of
this Directors’ Report, nearly half of these trade receivable have
settled. The contractual credit period agreed with such customer
was generally 90 days, whereas the maximum extension of credit
period was 6 months. Based on past experience, the Group is
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these trade receivables as there has not been a
significant change in their credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. In consideration of the sizes
and reputation of the major customer as well as its sound
payment history, the Board considers that there is a low risk in
trade receivables recoverability. The Board is satisfied with the
subsequent settlement of this major customer and is of the view
that its credit quality has not deteriorated.
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The Group anticipates that it will continue to derive a significant
portion of its revenue from this major customer in the near
future. Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that the Group
will be able to retain this major customer or secure purchase
orders at favorable terms to the Group, to maintain the current
level of business with this major customer, or to renew the
co-operation framework agreement with this major customer
in the long run on terms that are favorable to the Group. Any
significant reduction in the volume of business with this major
customer, any significant restriction in pricing terms with this
customer, or any cancellation, delay or reduction in the scope
of sales from this major customer, could have a material adverse
effect on operating results and profitability of the Group. The
Directors considered that the Group's reliance on its major
customer has reduced as the Group’s customers base has been
diversified through the commencement of the Group’s new
hospitality business in Australia with the Group’s revenue being
less concentrated during the year under review.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Mr. Wong Ching Yip, who was an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company, passed away on 28 June 2016. As a result, the
Company had only two independent non-executive Director and
two members in the audit Committee during the period from 28
June 2016 to 31 July 2016, the number of which fell below the
respective minimum number required under Rules 5.05(1) and
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. Following the appointment of
Mr. Wang Zhiwei as an independent non-executive Directors and
a member of each of the audit Committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination Committee on 1 August 2016,
the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

In addition, the Group is subject to the requirements under
various laws in relation to its different business segments.
The laws and regulations that have significant impacts on the
business and operations of the Group are as follows.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
SEEERES

Business Primary legislation/regulations Implication
S ETEEE ER B33
Provision of medical diagnostic Supplementary Medical Professions ~ The Supplementary Medical Professions
and health check services Ordinance (Cap. 359 of the Laws Ordinance (Cap. 359 of the Laws of
of Hong Kong) Hong Kong) provides for registration,

discipline and the better control of persons
engaged in occupations and professions
supplementary to medicine in Hong Kong.
The Group has to engage qualified persons
in accordance with this ordinance to carry
on its provision of medial diagnostic and
health check services business.
RHBEDE M EBRRYG (B BEEEGRD) (BBEDFE3IS9 (HBBEEERN) (FEEMIFE359T) 12
) HTREBNEHYPBEREBEZALH
gt RERELCEEZHAE - AEEA
REAGHEREEBRATHEHEEHR

ZBEDHREBRES-

Provision of hospitality and Competition and Consumer The Competition and Consumer Act 2010
related services in Australia Act 2010 (Australia) covers most areas of the business market
in the Australia including the relationships
between suppliers, wholesalers, retailers,
and consumers by promoting fair trading
and competition, and through the provision
of consumer protections.

PORMBRHUEE RABRIRTE  C2010FBF LB BEER) QO0FHFLBEE LR RERMEE
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Money lending business Money Lending Ordinance (Cap. 163 The Money Lending Ordinance (Cap. 163 of
of the Laws of Hong Kong) the Laws of Hong Kong) (i) provides for the

control and regulation of money lenders
and money-lending transactions, and the
licensing of persons carrying on business as
money lenders; and (ii) provides protection
and relief against excessive interest rates
and extortionate stipulations in respect of
loans. The Group has to carry on its money
lending business in compliance with this
ordinance, such as the requirements on
entering into loan transactions and the
restriction on the interest rates of the loans.
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*  English translated name is for identification only
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During the year under review, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations that
has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that meets the requirements
specified in section 469(2) of the Companies Ordinance for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year under review. The Company has taken out
and maintained directors’ liability insurance during the year under
review, which provides appropriate cover for the directors of the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the date of this Annual Report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float under the GEM
Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares of the Company on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PKF who will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Xiongfeng
Chairman

24 March 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. GENERAL

1.1 The Group’s Principal Activities and Scope of this

Report

The Group's principal businesses during the year ended
31 December 2016 included (i) mobile internet cultural
business and provision of IT services; (ii) provision of
hospitality and related services in Australia; (iii) provision
of medical diagnostics and health check services; (iv)
provision of integral marketing services, which was
regarded as a discontinued operation; (iv) money lending
business; and (vi) asset investments business. Further
information about the Group’s principal business is
available in the paragraph headed "BUSINESS AND
FINANCIAL REVIEW" in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this Annual Report.

This report covers the Group’s material environmental
and social impacts during the year from 1 January to 31
December 2016.

This report only covers the operations of the Group's
businesses in relation to (i) the provision of hospitality
and related services in Australia; and (ii) the provision
of medical diagnostics and health check services, as the
activities in the other principal businesses of the Group
were considered not having material environmental or
social impacts.

1.2 The Group’'s Stakeholders and Stakeholder

Engagement

The Group's stakeholders are entities or individuals that
can reasonably be expected to be significantly affected by
the Group's activities, or whose actions can reasonably be
expected to affect the ability of the Group to implement
its strategies or achieve its objectives.

The Group's principal stakeholders include shareholders,
loan and debt holders, customers, employees and
suppliers. The Group’s other stakeholders include
government agencies, regulatory bodies, the public
media and the local communities in which the Group
operates.

Before making decisions about the content of this
report, as well as the Group’s approach to a subject
matter which may cause the Group to make material
environmental and social impacts, the Group’s
management has considered the reasonable expectations
and interests of the Group’s stakeholders in relation to
such environmental and social impacts, which the Group
has obtained through engagements with its stakeholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE e MhEamE

1. GENERAL (CONT'D)

1.2 The Group’'s Stakeholders and Stakeholder

Engagement (cont’d)

The Group’s engagements with its principal stakeholders
include the Company's annual general meeting of the
shareholders, its interactive web page built for investor
relations, regular discussions with the Group’s loan and
debt providers, on-going customer satisfactory surveys,
standing customer feedback and complaint channels,
regular employee interviews, and regular communications
with the Group’s suppliers. The Group’s understanding
of the reasonable expectations and interests of its other
stakeholders was mainly obtained through ad-hoc
communications with them and monitoring of the public
media.

1.3 Dispute Resolution

It is the Group's policy to resolve disputes with
stakeholders through informal means first, aiming at
reaching a legally binding agreement of mutual interests.
If informal grievance procedures fail, we will seek
assistance from independent arbitrators. For example,
in the case of disputes with consumers, if informal
grievance procedures fail, we will seek assistance from
consumer rights agencies to reach a settlement with the
consumers.

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

74

2.1 Emissions

Greenhouse gases ("GHG") include carbon dioxide (CO,),
methane (CH,), Nitrous oxide (N,O) and fluorinated gases,
including hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons
(PFCs), sulphur hexafluoride (SFs) and nitrogen trifluoride
(NF3). GHG emissions are a major contributor to climate
change.

According to a 2014 report of Intergovernmental Panel
on Climate Change (“2014 IPCC Report”), 76% of
the global GHG emissions was CO,, 16% was CH,, 6%
was N,O and the remaining 2% was fluorinated gases.
The principal sources of CO, emissions are the burning
of fossil fuels (coal, natural gas and oil), solid waste,
trees and wood products, and also as a result of certain
chemical reactions (e.g., the manufacture of cement).
The principal sources of CH, emissions are agricultural
activities, waste management and biomass burning.
The principal sources of N,O emissions are agricultural
activities and biomass burning. The principal sources of
fluorinated gases emissions are industrial process and
refrigeration.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT'D)

2.1 Emissions (cont'd)

According to the 2014 IPCC Report, the electricity
and heat production and other energy related sectors
accounted for 35% of the global GHG emission;
agriculture, forestry and other land use accounted for
24%; industries involving the burning of fossil fuels on
site, chemical, metallurgical and mineral transformation
processes, and waste management activities accounted
for 21%; the transportation sector accounted for
14%; and the remaining 6% came from onsite energy
generation and the burning of fuels for heating in
buildings or cooking in homes.

Other air pollutants mainly include gaseous sulfur oxides
(SO,) and nitrogen oxides (NO,), which have adverse
effects on the climate, ecosystems, air quality, habitats,
agriculture, and human and animal health. Sulfur dioxide
(SO,) and nitrogen dioxide (NO,) are normally used as
the indicators of pollution for the larger groups of sulfur
oxides and nitrogen oxides respectively. The principal
sources of SO, emissions are from fossil fuel combustion
at power plants and industrial facilities, and by cars,
trucks, buses and other transportation means.

The Group’s operations do not involve activities that
directly emit GHG or other air pollutants. The Group’s
GHG emission through fuel consumption by vehicles is
not material. The Group indirectly emits GHG or other
air pollutants principally through its electricity and heat
consumptions and transportation activities during its
business processes to provide services to customers and
in its general administration. The Group’s efficient use
of electricity, heat and transportation would contribute
to achieving its objective of combating global climate
change through the reduction of GHG and other air
pollutants emissions which would improve the health
conditions of the workers and the local communities.

To mitigate the impacts of its environmental footprint,
it is the Group’s policy to minimise its indirect emissions
of GHG and other air pollutants through controlling
its electricity and heat consumptions, as well as local
and long distance travelling of its staff, so far as it is
economically and operationally feasible.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's efficiency in minimising its indirect emissions of
GHG and other air pollutants, and considers the existing
policy appropriate.

Since the Group’'s operations do not involve those
activities that directly emit GHG and other air pollutants,
the laws and regulations governing direct GHG and other
air pollutants emissions have no impact on the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT'D)

76

2.2 Generation and Discharge of Wastes

Wastes are considered hazardous if they may pose
substantial harm to human health or the environment
when improperly treated, stored and transported. They are
usually toxic, corrosive or persistent in the environment.
Examples include wastes with a high content of chemicals
or heavy metals, such as discarded vehicle batteries,
plating wastes, pesticides, paints, solvents, fluorescent
bulbs, lubricant oil, lead, mercury and zine; biological
wastes such as microbiological, animal, human blood and
blood products; and radioactive wastes.

The Group generates and discharges hazardous medical
wastes mainly through its medical diagnostics and health
check business segment and non-hazardous wastes
in the forms of paper, packaging, plastics and sewage
water, during its business processes to provide services
to customers, in its general administration and mainly
through its hospitality business segment in Australia. The
Group's efficiency in the reduction of its waste discharge
and opting for disposal methods that reuse or recycle
the discharged wastes would contribute to achieving its
objective of conserving of the environment.

To mitigate the Group’s environmental impacts, it is the
Group's policy to minimise the generation of wastes, to
engage professional contractors to handle the disposal
of medical wastes, and to reuse or recycle the Group’s
non-hazardous wastes, so far as it is economically and
operationally feasible.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's efficiency in minimising its generation and
discharge of wastes, and considers the existing policy
appropriate.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any
non-compliance with environmental laws and regulation
in respect of the generation and discharge of waste,
including but not limited to Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste Disposal
(Clinical Waste) (General) Regulation (Cap. 3540 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Environment Protection and
Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Australia).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND SQVERN/QNC/EWREPiORT
RIE -2 MEARE

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT'D) 2. RIFHE (&)
2.3 Use of Energy, Water and Other Natural Resources 23R KREMBAERNER
23.1Use of Energy 2318807 & F

The Group consumes energy in the form of
electricity used mainly during its business processes
to provide services to customers and in its general
administration. The Group's efficient use of energy
would contribute to combating global climate
change.

To mitigate the impacts of its environmental footprint,
it is the Group’s policy to minimise its consumption
of electricity during its business processes, with such
measures as controlling the air-conditioning and
lighting schedules, so far as it is economically and
operationally feasible.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's efficiency in the consumption of energy, and
considers the existing policy appropriate.

2.32Use of Water

The Group obtains water from both public and
private utilities, and consumes water mainly in its
hospitality business segment in Australia, during its
business processes to provide services to customers
and in its general administration. The Group does
not withdraw water directly from the ecosystem
and has no operation in water-stressed areas. The
Group's efficient use of water would contribute to
preserving the local communities in which it operates
and the quality of the fresh water consumed by the
indigenous people who live in those communities
(where applicable).

To mitigate its impacts on fresh water resources, it is
the Group's policy to minimise its water consumption
and maximise its use of recycled water during its
business processes, and to avoid selecting water
suppliers which withdraw water from sources
that have high biodiversity value, that have been
proclaimed as conservation areas, or that are of great
importance to the local communities and/or the
indigenous people living in those communities, so far
as it is economically and operationally feasible.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group’s efficiency in the consumption of water and
the use of re-cycled water, and considers the existing
policy appropriate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONT'D)

2.3 Use of Energy, Water and Other Natural Resources
(cont’d)

2.3.3 Use of Other Natural Resources

Natural resources are considered renewable if they
can be naturally replenished over relatively short
periods of time or are almost of unlimited supply.
Examples include solar, wind, forests, biomass and
most plants and animals. Natural resources are
considered non-renewable resources if they cannot
be easily replenished naturally or are of limited
supply. Examples include most minerals, metal ores,
fossil fuels, natural gas and groundwater.

The Group consumes renewable natural resources in
the forms of paper, meat, fishes and wooden parts
and components of equipment, tools, inventory and
supplies, and non-renewable natural resources in the
forms of metal, glass or plastic parts and components
of equipment, tools, inventory and supplies that the
Group purchased from external suppliers, mainly
during its business processes to provide services
to customers and in its general administration.
The Group’s efficient use of natural resources and
opting for recycling, reusing or reclaiming materials,
products, and packaging would contribute to the
conservation of natural resources.

To mitigate the impact of its operations on natural
resources, it is the Group's policy to minimise wastage
in its consumption of inventory and supplies during
its business processes, to select suppliers which
use recycled or reused materials in their production
process, and to reclaim packaging from customers
for recycling or reuse, so far as it is economically and
operationally feasible.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate
the Group's efficiency in the consumption of
natural resources and the practices of recycling/
reuse of materials, and considers the existing policy
appropriate.

2.4 Impact on Biosphere

Biodiversity is important for ensuring the survival of
plant and animal species, genetic diversity and the
natural ecosystems, which in turn contributes directly
to local livelihoods and sustainable developments in the
ecosystems.

The Group does not have operations located in or
adjacent to protected areas or areas of high biodiversity
value, and the Group is not engaged in activities that
have significant adverse biodiversity impacts, such as
species reduction or habitat conversion.
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3. SOCIAL ASPECTS

3.1 Customer Health and Safety

The consumers’ right to safety is defined by Consumers
International, a world federation of consumer groups, as
the right to be protected against products, production
processes and services that are hazardous to health or
life. The Guideline for Consumer Protection issued by the
United Nation also recognises the right of access to non-
hazardous products as one of the core consumer rights.
Various laws and regulations administered by government
agencies and voluntary standards advocated by non-
government organisations are in place to ensure product
safety.

The Group is exposed to consumer health and safety
issues mainly in its activities in (i) the medical diagnostics
and health check business; and (ii) the hospitality
business in Australia. The Group’s competence and its
adherence to the relevant laws, regulations and standards
would contribute to achieving its objective of protecting
customers against hazardous products or services.

To prevent consumers’ health and safety issues, it is
the Group's policy to require its staff at all levels to
always be alert of customer safety concerns, report
and communicate all customer safety concerns to
management and the relevant regulators (where
applicable) on a timely basis, and adhere to all the
applicable safety laws, regulations and standards.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's effectiveness in ensuring consumers’ health and
safety, and considers the existing policy appropriate.

During the year under review, the Group did not have
any non-compliance with the laws and regulations in
respect of customers’ health and safety, including but
not limited to Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance (Cap.
456 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Competition and
Consumer Act 2010 (Australia).
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3.2 Marketing and Labelling

Customers have the right to access to accurate and
adequate information of the products and services
they purchase or consume, mainly through marketing
communications and product labeling. Fair and
responsible marketing communications, as well as
access to accurate and adequate information about
the composition of products, and their proper use
and disposal, can help customers to make informed
choices. Various laws and regulations administered by
government agencies and voluntary standards advocated
by non-government organizations are in place to protect
consumers’ right to be informed.

The Group has the duty to respect consumers’ right to
be informed of the services it provides. The Group's
competence and its adherence to the relevant laws,
regulations and standards would contribute to the
protection of customers’ right to be informed.

To mitigate the Group's exposure to marketing and
labelling issues, it is the Group’'s policy that the
description of the services the Group provides to its
customers should not be overstated in the related
marketing materials, no unsubstantiated claims should
be made in such marketing materials, and all of the
Group's product or service descriptions should adhere to
the applicable consumer protection laws, regulations and
standards.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's effectiveness in protecting consumers’ right to be
informed, and considers the existing policy appropriate.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any
non-compliance with the laws and regulations in respect
of product marketing and labelling, including but not
limited to Undesirable Medical Advertisements Ordinance
(Cap. 231 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Cap 362) and Product Stewardship Act 2011
(Australia).
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3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT'D)

3.3 Customer Privacy

Various laws and regulations administered by government
agencies and voluntary standards advocated by non-
government organisations are in place to protect
individuals’ right to privacy although they may not
necessarily be specific to protect consumers’ right to
privacy.

The Group has the duty to respect consumers’ right
to privacy. The Group’s competence and its adherence
to the relevant laws, regulations and standards would
contribute to achieving its objective of protecting
customers’ right to privacy.

To mitigate the Group’'s exposure to potential
infringement of consumers’ right to privacy, it is the
Group's policy that collection of customers’ personal
data should be limited with the data being collected by
lawful means, and all such personal data collected should
be secured and not to be used in any purpose other
than those already agreed upon with the customers. All
personal data collection and usage should adhere to the
applicable laws, regulations and standards.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group’s effectiveness in protecting consumers’ right to
privacy, and considers the existing policy appropriate.

During the year under review, the Group did not have
any non-compliance with the laws and regulations in
respect of consumer right to privacy, including but not
limited to Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and Privacy Act 1988 (Australia).
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3.4 Employment

The Group’s relationship with employees is a legal
relationship which confers rights and obligations to
both parties, and is subject to the applicable labour or
employment laws and regulations. Conditions of work
specified in an employment contract of the Group
normally include compensation, working time, rest
periods, holidays, disciplinary and dismissal practices,
maternity protection and the workplace environment.

The Group has the duty to respect its employees’ rights
set out in their employment contracts as well as in the
relevant labour and employment laws and regulations.
The Group's competence and its adherence to its
contractual obligations, the relevant laws, regulations
and standards would contribute to the protection of
employees’ rights.

The Group has a general policy to promote staff with
good performance instead of recruitment from outside.
In respect of the employment benefits, the Group
offers annual leaves, paid sick leave, maternity leave,
compassionate leave in accordance with the applicable
labour and employment laws and regulations. All
employees are entitled to statutory holidays. Employment
may be terminated in writing, by either the Group or
employee, by giving notice or payment in lieu of the
notice period specified in the employment contract.
The Group adjusts the remunerations of the employee
with reference to the performance, qualifications and
experience of individual employees and the industry
norm. The Group has zero tolerance over any sexual
harassment and discrimination behaviour.
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3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT'D)

3.4 Employment (cont’d)

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to labour issues, it
is the Group’s policy that all the employees’ rights in
connection with the aforesaid conditions of work as set
out in the employment contracts as well as in the relevant
labour and employment laws and regulations are upheld,
and that all the employees are adequately remunerated,
in the sense that their remunerations are sufficient to
meet their basic needs, and to provide them with certain
discretionary income.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's effectiveness in protecting workers' employment
rights, benefits and welfare, and considers the existing
policies appropriate.

During the year under review, the Group did not have
any non-compliance with the laws and regulations in
respect of labour and employment, including but not
limited to Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Employees’” Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
480 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Disability Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 487 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Fair Work Act 2009 (Australia)
and Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012 (Australia).
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3.5 Employee Health and Safety

Employees’ right to a healthy and safe workplace is
widely recognised, and various laws and regulations
administered by government agencies and voluntary
standards advocated by non-government organisations
are in place to protect employee health and safety.
Employee health and safety issues can arise over the
use of unsafe equipment, machinery, processes and
practices. They can also arise from the use of dangerous
substances, such as chemical, physical and biological
agents, when the employees are carrying out their work.

The Group is exposed to employee health and safety
issues mainly in its medical diagnostics and health check
business. The Group's competence and its adherence
to the relevant laws, regulations and standards would
contribute to the protection of the employees from
health and safety issues.

To prevent employee health and safety issues from
arising, it is the Group’s policy to require its staff at all
levels to always be alert of health and safety concerns at
the workplace, to report and communicate all health and
safety concerns at the workplace on a timely basis, and
to adhere to all the applicable safety laws, regulations
and standards.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's effectiveness in ensuring its employees’ health
and safety, and considers the existing policy appropriate.

During the year under review, the Group did not have
any non-compliance with the laws and regulations
in respect of employees’ health and safety, including
Occupational Safety And Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and Work Health and Safety Act
2011 (Australia).
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3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT'D)

3.6 Employee Training and Development

Employee training and development refer to programs
aiming at upgrading employee to equip them to
discharge their duties and to cope with a fast changing
work environment. More skilled and well trained
employees will enhance the Group’s human capital and
contribute to employees’ satisfaction, both of which
strongly correlate with the Group’s performance.

The Group has the duty to assist its employees in
their career advancement. The Group’s investments
in employee training and development contribute to
achieving its objective of promoting the satisfaction and
career advancement of its employees.

To promote employee satisfaction and development, it is
the Group’s policy to provide employees with sufficient
in-house and external training programs. The training
provided by the Group include seminars on finance,
corporate governance, rules and regulation relevant
to the Group and its business, and management and
leadership, as well as various technical training courses
relating to the respective job duties of the employees,
and require that all employees to be regularly appraised
through performance and career development reviews.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's effectiveness in relation to its employees’ training
and development, and considers the existing policy
appropriate.
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3.7 Child Labour and Forced Labour

Child labour is work that deprives children of their
childhood, their potential and their dignity, and that
is harmful to their physical or mental development,
including work that interferes with their education.
Organisations are normally not allowed to hire children
below the age of 15 for full-time work, and children
under the age of 18 for work which is likely to harm the
health, safety or morals of the children.

Forced labour refers to all work or services which are
exacted from any person under the menace of any
penalty and for which the said person has not offered
himself/herself voluntarily. Indicators of forced labour can
include the withholding identity papers, the requiring
for compulsory deposits, and the compelling of workers,
under the threat of firing, to work extra hours to which
they have not previously agreed. Debts can also be
used as a means of keeping workers in a state of forced
labour.

The Group has the duty to eliminate child labour
and forced labour since they are serious violations of
fundamental human rights. The Group’s avoidance in
engaging child or forced labour is to meet the legitimate
expectation of the society.

To avoid the violation of fundamental human rights, it
is the Group's policy to strictly prohibit all forms of child
labour and forced labour, and not to hire anyone under
age 18. During its hiring process, the Group would
obtain the identity documents of a candidate and verify
the details concerning the identity of such candidate. In
addition, no employees of the Group would be required
to work extra hours involuntarily.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's effectiveness in eliminating child and forced
labour, and considers the existing policy appropriate.

During the year under review, the Group did not have
any non-compliance with the laws and regulations in
respect of child labour or forced labour, including but not
limited to Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and Fair Work Act 2009 (Australia).
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3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT'D)

3.8 Supplier Assessment

The Group might have caused indirectly negative
environmental and social impacts as a result of its
business relationships with its suppliers.

The Group not only has a duty not to be involved in
activities which may cause negative environmental and
social impacts, but also a duty not to indirectly induce
or encourage negative environmental and social impacts
arising from the Group's supply chain. It is the Group’s
policy to conduct assessments on its existing suppliers
from time to time to monitor the actual and potential
environmental and social impacts they create as part of
the Group’s supply chain.

To prevent negative environmental and social impacts
from arising from the Group's supply chain, it is the
Group's policy that a supplier’s record of non-compliance
with the laws, regulations and standards in connection
with environmental and social matters be one of the
Group's key considerations for deciding whether
to engage a new supplier or to continue business
relationship with an existing supplier (as the case may
be). The Group also has a policy to select suppliers which
use recycled or reused materials in their production
process.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate
the Group's effectiveness in preventing negative
environmental and social impacts from arising in the
Group’s supply chain, and considers the existing policy
appropriate.
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3.9 Anti-corruption

Corruption refers to practices, such as bribery, facilitation
payments, extortion and collusion; the offer or receipt
of gifts, loans, fees, rewards, or other advantages as an
inducement to do something that is dishonest, illegal,
or represents a breach of trust. Corruption is broadly
linked to negative social impacts, such as the abuse of
democracy, misallocation of government investments,
and undermining of the rule of law.

The Group is expected by the marketplace, international
norms, and its stakeholders to demonstrate its
adherence to integrity, governance, and responsible
business practices. The Group's resistance to corruption
contributes to minimise those negative social impacts
linked to corruptions.

To prevent negative social impacts linked to corruption,
it is the Group’s policy that all forms of fraud and
corruption, such as bribery, extortion, illegal inducement,
offering or accepting disallowed gifts, kickbacks or
other disallowed advantages are strictly prohibited, and
all employees of the Group must comply with all the
applicable anti-corruption laws and regulations. Related
information on anti-money laundering is provided to
employees regularly in order to raise their awareness in
this regard.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's effectiveness in preventing corruption, and
considers the existing policy appropriate.

During the year under review, the Group did not have
any non-compliance with laws and regulations in respect
of anti-corruption, including but not limited to Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Criminal Code Act 1995 (Australia).
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3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONT'D)

3.10 Community Engagement

Local communities refer to persons or groups of persons
living and/or working in any areas that are economically,
socially or environmentally impacted (positively or
negatively) by an organisation’s operations. The local
community can range from persons living adjacent
to the organisation’s operations, to those living at a
distance who are still likely to be impacted by these
operations. Due to the heterogeneous nature of local
communities, the vulnerabilities of local communities to
an organisation’s activities are specific and distinct.

The Group is expected by the society to anticipate and
avoid causing negative impacts on the local communities
in which it operates. The Group's timely and effective
stakeholder identification and engagement process
are important to help the Group to understand the
valuerabilities of the local communities to the Group's
activities.

To prevent negative environmental and social impacts on
the local communities, it is the Group’s policy that staff at
all levels should always be alert of the potential impacts
of the Group’s activities on the local communities, and
to report and communicate all concerns or complaints
in relation to the impacts of the Group’s activities to
management and the local communities on a timely
basis.

The Group also encourages its staff to participate in
charity and other activities that promote the welfare
of the local communities in which the Group operates,
including charity runs and volunteer activities, to raise
their awareness of the needs and interests of the local
communities. Costs associated with these activities are
borne by the Group in order to increase staff participation
rate.

The Board is responsible to monitor and evaluate the
Group's effectiveness in community engagement, and
considers the existing policy appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to achieving and upholding
good corporate governance practices that promote greater
transparency and quality of disclosure as well as more effective
internal control.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code Provisions”) as its code of
corporate governance. The Board is responsible for performing
corporate governance duties including (a) developing and
reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on (i) corporate
governance and (ii) reviewing and monitoring the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and (c)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions.
The Board had carried out the said corporate governance
functions during the year under review.

Pursuant to the Code Provisions, all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by the Shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment. Ms. Lin Ting, an
independent non-executive Director appointed on 7 December
2015, did not retire from office and was not subject to re-election
by the Shareholders at the first special general meeting of the
Company held after her appointment held on 29 February 2016,
due to inadvertent oversight.

Mr. Wong Ching Yip, who was an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company, passed away on 28 June 2016. As a result, the
Company had only two independent non-executive Directors and
two members in the audit committee during the period from
28 June 2016 to 31 July 2016, the number of which fell below
the respective minimum number required under Rules 5.05(1)
and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. Following the appointment
of Mr. Wang Zhiwei as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee on 1 August 2016,
the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Save as disclose above, the Company has complied with the
Code Provisions throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

TERERD MR

ARTBERRBRE T 2 DEEARR
BRI EAERE REBEEARE B
2R

ARBIERMENZFR R RIK 815 E 2
e E0a ST RIS ST A SC (TP RIMR ) &
HOREARTRA -EXCRAERTEEE AR
B #BEEE: (blE kR BBARA: ()
rEREAKLIBYMERARERNERZLE
EREARBRAZERNTER  (b)@s &E
REFZHRIIMFEERERIORIAR
AY TG ZERBER BERFEESEEE
BT Ll R EIARAE -

RIB T RIS B R E AR MR 25k 2
E5 HAREZIREERR KRS ERRE
R-HNEBRZHRZ - R_T—AFT-At
PEZEZBYFATEEMEL L L ER
FEVERHEZERER _T—RF_A
“THNABRTZARFNERERRENA® L
ERREE-

NAIBYFRATESHREZZTE S  F
eRREFLECEEAZHBE TIERELE

—NEANAZ+HNBEE-EIE R
—E-RERAZHTNHE-_ZE—XRF+LA
Z+—HIHE NAFHEEMZ B IERTT
EEHEZZECEREMENE  ZHEK
R AEIZEMR ™8 BIE5.05(1) 16 & $5.2818 %
BREZEEHB - R _T— X FEN\A—HZ
FETEEEERBIYIENTESERERELSE
g FHNEEeRIREEESEREBZKER
ARAR—HBSTAIZER EHRAIE5.05(1) 1§
K E5.2815

1%

| %W Bt

D3 | 1 om0
[

920 Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited | Annual Report 2016



DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific
enquiry of all Directors, that the Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
the Directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31
December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
members, four of which are executive Directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Xiongfeng, who is the Chairman, Mr. Zhang Peiao, who is
the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Hung Kenneth and Ms. Wu Mei
Chu, who was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 1 October 2016. Three other members are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe,
Mr. Leung Ting Yuk, who was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 May 2016, and Mr. Wang Zhiwei,
who was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 1 August 2016. Ms. Lin Ting resigned as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 22 June 2016 and
Mr. Wong Ching Yip, who was an independent non-executive
Director, passed away on 28 June 2016.

The members of the Board, who come from different
backgrounds, provide a diverse range of business and
professional expertise to the Company. The biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the section headed “DIRECTORS
PROFILE” on pages 22 to 25 in this Annual Report. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws from time to time.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors. As at the date of this report, none of the Directors
have any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) with each other and this is
true in particular between Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng, the Chairman,
and Mr. Zhang Peiao, the Chief Executive Officer.
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Roles and responsibilities of the Board and delegation to
the management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic decisions
and performance, and is responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making
in all major matters of the Company which include approving
and monitoring all policy matters, overall strategies, material
transactions, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated
to the senior executives who are responsible for implementing
the decisions of the Board, the coordination and direction of
day-to-day operation and management of the Company in
accordance with the management strategies and plans approved
by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to the entering by the Group into any significant transactions.
These senior executives provide full support to the Board in order
for the Board members to discharge their responsibilities.

Practices and conduct of board meetings

The company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the
Company is responsible to the Board for providing Board papers
and related materials, for ensuring that all Board procedures and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed, and for
reporting to the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on
governance matters. All Directors have unrestricted access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary also keeps minutes of all meetings of the Board which
are available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.
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The Board meets regularly and held 50 Board meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2016. The Directors attended
the meetings in persons or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Bye-Laws. During the
regular Board meetings, the Directors discussed and formulated
the overall strategies of the Group, reviewed and approved the
annual, interim and quarterly results, as well as discussed and
decided on other significant matters of the Group. All Directors
have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.
The Company will, upon request, provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist them to discharge
their duties to the Company.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a
substantial Shareholder or a Director, such matter will be
discussed through an actual meeting and will not be dealt with
by written resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with
no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing with
such conflict issues. The Board committees, including the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, have all adopted the applicable practices and
procedures used in Board meetings for all committee meetings.
If considered to be necessary and appropriate by the Directors,
they may retain independent professional advisors at the Group's
expense.

Individual attendance records of each Director at the respective
Board and committee meetings are set out in the table on page
100 of this report.
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Directors’ continuing professional development

All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest
developments and changes in the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure the Company’s
compliance and to enhance the Directors’ awareness of good
corporate governance practices. The Directors understand
the importance of continuous professional development and
are committed to participate in any suitable training or to
study relevant materials in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng, Mr. Zhang Peiao, Mr. Hung Kenneth, Ms.
Wu Mei Chu, Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk
and Mr. Wang Zhiwei had confirmed that they have complied
with Code Provision A.6.5 during the year ended 31 December
2016 by participating in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year
under review, the Company has arranged training regarding the
GEM Listing Rules for the Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Throughout the year under review and as at the date of this
report, Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng is the Chairman and Mr. Zhang
Peiao is the Chief Executive Officer. The roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer are served by different individuals to
achieve a balance of authority and power, which is in compliance
with Code Provision A.2.1. during the year under review. The
Chairman provides leadership to the Board, manages the Board
and oversees the strategic planning of the Group whereas the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Group’s business
development and daily management generally.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Ching Yip, who was an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company, passed away on 28 June 2016. As a result, the
Company had only two independent non-executive Directors
and two members in its audit committee during the period from
28 June 2016 to 31 July 2016, the number of which fell below
the respective minimum number required under Rules 5.05(1)
and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. Following the appointment
of Mr. Wang Zhiwei as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee on 1 August 2016,
the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has been in compliance
with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules during the year under review, with the appointment of
the three independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board and at least one of whom have
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence, and the Company considers such Directors
to be independent in accordance with each and the various
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe has been appointed for a term of
12 months commencing from 1 January 2016, Mr. Leung Ting
Yuk has been appointed for a term from 18 May 2016 to 31
December 2016 and Mr. Wang Zhiwei has been appointed for
a term from 1 August 2016 to 31 December 2016. Each of Mr.
Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk and Mr. Wang Zhiwei
has been re-appointed for a term of 12 months commencing
from 1 January 2017.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, and the nomination
committee, each with its specific terms of reference. Their terms
of reference have been approved and reviewed by the Board and
have been posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year under review, these committees have
adhered to their principles, procedures and arrangements set out
in their respective terms of reference. The respective committee
secretaries took full minutes of the meetings of these committees
and the work of these committees was reported to the Board
regularly during the year under review.

Audit Committee

An audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) was
established with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and Code Provision
C.3.3. The Audit Committee must consist of a minimum of three
members, all of whom must be non-executive Directors, at least
one of whom must have appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise. From 1
January 2016 to 17 May 2016, the Audit Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Siu Keung, Joe, Ms. Lin Ting and Mr. Wong Ching Yip. From 18
May 2016 to 21 June 2016, the Audit Committee comprised
four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Siu Keung, Joe, Ms. Lin Ting, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk and Mr. Wong
Ching Yip. From 22 June 2016 to 27 June 2016, the Audit
Committee comprised three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk and Mr.
Wong Ching Yip. From 28 June 2016 to 31 July 2016, the Audit
Committee comprised two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe and Mr. Leung Ting Yuk. From
1 August 2016 to 31 December 2016 and as at the date of
this report, the Audit Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Mr.
Leung Ting Yuk and Mr. Wang Zhiwei. Mr. Wong Siu Keung,
Joe has been the chairman of the Audit Committee during
the year under review and as at the date of this report. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review the
Group's financial information, reporting process, internal control
procedures, risk management system, audit plan, relationship
with external auditors and to review arrangements to enable
employees of the Group, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
held five meetings to review and provide supervision over the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures of the
Group and to review the Company’s annual report and accounts,
half-year report and quarterly reports and to provide advice
and comments to the Board as to whether such reports were
prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements. The Audit Committee also met with the
external auditors to discuss auditing, internal control, statutory
compliance and financial reporting matters of the Group before
recommending the annual financial reports to the Board for
approval.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Code Provision B.1.2. From 1 January 2016
to 17 May 2016, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Siu Keung, Joe, Ms. Lin Ting and Mr. Wong Ching Yip. From
18 May 2016 to 21 June 2016, the Remuneration Committee
comprised four independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Ms. Lin Ting, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk
and Mr. Wong Ching Yip. From 22 June 2016 to 27 June 2016,
the Remuneration Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe,
Mr. Leung Ting Yuk and Mr. Wong Ching Yip. From 28 June
2016 to 31 July 2016, the Remuneration Committee comprised
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Siu Keung, Joe and Mr. Leung Ting Yuk. From 1 August 2016
to 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Mr.
Leung Ting Yuk and Mr. Wang Zhiwei. Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe
has been the chairman of the Remuneration Committee during
the year under review and as at the date of this report. The
principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure in relation to the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management of the Company, and to review and approve
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
goals and objectives set by the Board for the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee held seven meetings and adopted the approach
under Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) to make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
had reviewed the policy for the remuneration of executive
Directors, assessed the performance of the executive Directors
and had reviewed and approved the appointment letters of the
Directors and the terms thereof as well as the remuneration and
the discretionary bonus of the Directors, including the grant of
share options under the Scheme, during the year under review.
No Director was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

Nomination Committee

A nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Code Provision A.5.2. From 1 January 2016
to 17 May 2016, the Nomination Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu
Keung, Joe, Ms. Lin Ting and Mr. Wong Ching Yip. From 18 May
2016 to 21 June 2016, the Nomination Committee comprised
four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Siu Keung, Joe, Ms. Lin Ting, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk and Mr. Wong
Ching Yip. From 22 June 2016 to 27 June 2016, the Nomination
Committee comprised three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Mr. Leung Ting
Yuk and Mr. Wong Ching Yip. From 28 June 2016 to 31 July
2016, the Nomination Committee comprised two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe and
Mr. Leung Ting Yuk. From 1 August 2016 to 31 December 2016
and as at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe, Mr. Leung Ting Yuk and Mr. Wang
Zhiwei. Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe has been the chairman of the
Nomination Committee during the year under review and as
at the date of this report. The principal responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee held four meetings to review the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the procedures, process and criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorship, the structure, size and composition
of the Board, to recommend candidates for directorship and
to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The process for the nomination of Directors, which is on merit
basis, is led by the Nomination Committee, which has been
made on a merit basis. The Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) in August 2013 which sets out
the approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board
in order to ensure good governance. Board appointments are
based on merit and candidates are considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limited to age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Board will consider to set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Policy
will be reviewed by the Nomination Committee from time to time
to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT
MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the
Board and its respective committees and general meetings of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 are as
follows:

BEHESRLE

HE_ZT-—RF+A=+—HIEFERE
EENEZTELRZREEERZRARRIMR
REZ HFrReeRmT

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to
attend attend attend attend attend
HE/RER HE/AEK WLE/RER HE/GEK
LEESS HEER i 7 5 HRERE HRE/REK
Name of Directors EEns €% ZE8EE 2 ZBEg8E 2 ZEgER UHEREKE
Number of meetings held during RUBEERETZERNE
the financial year 50 5 7 4 3
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Zhang Xiongfeng RIEE K A& 50/50 0/0 0/0 0/0 13
Mr. Zhang Peiao RIFERE 50/50 0/0 0/0 0/0 23
Mr. Hung Kenneth HEEREE 50/50 0/0 0/0 0/0 33
Ms. WU Mei Chu (appointed with ~ #iE¥%&Z+ (B=F—~F
effect from 1 October 2016) TRA—BEZHE) 6/6 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe BEAREL (ZEEFE)
(Committee Chairman) 50/50 5/5 717 4/4 13
Mr. Leung Ting Yuk REERE(RZE—RE
(appointed on 18 May 2016) RA+N\BEZMT) 20/20 3/3 4/4 212 0/0
Mr. Wang Zhiwei FEEEE (RZE—RF
(appointed on 1 August 2016) NA—BEZRE) 99 33 33 11 0/0
Ms. Lin Ting (resigned with effect MEZT (RZE—RF
from 22 June 2016) NAZ+TZHEE) 36/36 212 3/3 212 0/3
Mr. Wong Ching Yip (passed away on  FIFEESL A (R=F—RF
28 June 2016) NAZT\HEL) 28/38 22 33 22 33
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION =z BLRD BN &

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees paid/payable to
the Group's external auditor, PKF, for the audit and non-audit
services provided amounted to approximately HK$570,000 and
HK$428,000 respectively. The amount of fees paid/payable to
other audit firms for providing audit and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$971,000 and HK$310,000 respectively. The non-audit service
fees incurred mainly consist of fees of approximately HK$335,000
for taxation review, approximately HK$190,000 for internal
control review, and the balance for other reporting services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
the accounts of the Group and other disclosures required under
the GEM Listing Rules, and management will provide information
and explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other Board decisions.

A statement by the Company’s external auditor, PKF, about their
reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor’s
Report in this Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. The Company
Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring the board
procedures are followed and that the Board is briefed on
legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments.
During the year under review, the Company Secretary has
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required by the GEM Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining the
Group's systems of risk management and internal control
and for reviewing the effectiveness of these systems. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to meet
the particular needs of the Group and to mitigate the risks which
it is exposed to. By their nature, however, such risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Board has engaged
an independent auditor to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material financial, operating and compliance controls for
the year ended 31 December 2016. Such review is conducted
annually. The scope of the review has been previously determined
and approved by the Board (including the Audit Committee). The
independent auditor has reported major findings and areas of
improvement to the Board. All the recommendations have been
properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they will be
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board is of
the view that the Group’s current risk management and internal
control systems are adequate and effective.
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As might be expected of a Group of its size, a key control
procedure is the day-to-day supervision of the business by the
executive Directors, supported by managers responsible for
operations and the key central and divisional support provided by
the Group’s financial information systems and human resources.
Key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group as described below have all been in place
throughout the year under review and up to the date of this
report and are reviewed regularly by the Board:

e clearly defined management structure, lines of responsibility
and delegation of authority;

e high recruitment standards and formal career development
and training to ensure the integrity and competence of the
staff;

e regular and comprehensive information provided to
management, covering financial performance and
non-financial measures,

e procedures for the approval of capital expenditure,
investments and acquisitions;

e detailed budgeting process in which top management is
involved in budget setting, constant monitoring of key
statistics and review of management accounts on a monthly
basis, noting and investigating major variances; and

e consideration of progress made against significant business
risks at monthly management review meetings, with quarterly
briefings to the Board.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s
business and operations.

Risk Assessment

e Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

e Considers the impacts of the risks on the business caused
by the adverse events associated with the risks and the
likelihood of occurrence of these adverse events.
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Response to Risks

e Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessments; and

e Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid and mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place and resolve material internal control defects (if any);

e Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to management and
the Board regularly.

Inside Information

e The Group has in place, as an element of its risk management
and internal control systems, a policy on disclosure of inside
information, to ensure that inside information is handled and
disseminated properly and in accordance with the applicable
laws and regulations. The finance manager of the Company
and the department heads within the Group are responsible
for monitoring the changes and developments in their
respective areas of operation and report any potential or
suspected inside information events to the Board. Based on
these information obtained through internal reporting, the
Board assesses whether any of the information constitutes
inside information which needs to be released to the public.
Should public disclosure be required, the Board will determine
the scope of information to be disclosed and the timing of
disclosure. If and when appropriate, the Board may seek
independent professional advice to ensure that the Company
complies with the disclosure requirements.

The Board has considered the need for an internal audit function,
and concluded that, given the size of the Group and its risk
management and internal control systems in place, it is not
necessary at present. The Board will review this issue on an
annual basis.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with the Shareholders is given a high priority
by the Company. The Company aims to provide its Shareholders
with high standards of disclosure and financial transparency
through the publication of annual, interim and quarterly reports,
announcements and circulars made through the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Board also maintains an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and use general meetings to communicate with
the Shareholders. The Company encourages all the Shareholders
to attend general meetings of the Company which provide a
useful forum for the Shareholders to exchange their views with
the Board. The Chairman and members of the relevant Board
committees and senior management of the Company are also
available to answer the Shareholders’ questions in the general
meetings.

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially independent issue
at general meetings of the Company, including the election
of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings of the Company will be voted by poll pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with its existing Shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
significant change in the Company’s memorandum of association
and the Bye-Laws.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT
Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

Pursuant to Bye-Law 58 of the Bye-Laws, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Such written requisition (i) must state the object of business to
be transacted at the meeting; and (ii) must be signed by the
requisitionists and (iii) must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong in hard copy form
for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary. The
requisition may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the requisitionist(s).

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene a
general meeting as set out above and for the Shareholders to
nominate a person for election as a Director pursuant to Bye-Law
85 of the Bye-Laws, there are no other provisions allowing the
Shareholders to put forward proposals at a general meeting
of the Company under the Bye-Laws or under the laws of
Bermuda. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above
to convene a special general meeting of the Company for any
business specified in such written requisition.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board's
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong. Questions about the procedures
for convening or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special general meeting of the Company may also
be put to the Company Secretary by the same means.
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RERBR(BR)STMSEHA

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT CHINA CULTURAL
TECHNOLOGY INVESTMENTS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments
Limited and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 114 to 243, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PKF

Accountants &
business advisers

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'S Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We have determined to communicate in our report the following
key audit matters for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group's goodwill disclosed in Notes 14 and 34(i) to the
consolidated financial statements was determined to be a key
audit matter because of the significant estimation uncertainty
resulted from the use of unobservable inputs and the significant
judgement made in selecting the estimation methods.

Our procedures performed to address the matter included:

— Obtain an understanding of the Group's procedures and
method of estimation, including significant assumptions
made and management’s assessment of estimation
uncertainty;

— Re-calculate the estimation made by the management;
— Review outcome of estimation made in prior period,;

— Evaluate the independence and works performed by experts
engaged by the management to assist their estimation;
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Impairment of goodwill (Cont’d)

— Evaluate whether the method of estimation and assumptions
made are appropriate;

— Test the data used by the management in the estimation;

— Determine whether indication of possible management bias
exist; and

— Evaluate the recognition and measurement criteria used and
disclosure made by management.

Impairment loss of investment in an associate - Something
Big Technology Holdings Limited (“Something Big”)

The Group's impairment loss of investment in an associate was
disclosed in Notes 4(c) and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. Losses generated by Something Big and its
subsidiaries and controlled companies for the year ended 31
December 2016 was considered as an indicator of impairment
by the management. In light of the above impairment indicator,
management determined the recoverable amount of Something
Big with the assistance from an independent external valuation
expert. This area was determined to be a key audit matter
because of the significance of the investment in Something
Big as at 31 December 2016 and management'’s assessment of
the recoverable amount involved significant judgements and
estimates towards future results of Something Big's business
and the significant judgement made in selecting the valuation
method.

Our procedures performed to address the matter included:

— Obtain an understanding of the Group’s procedures and
method of valuation, including significant assumptions made
and management’s assessment of estimation uncertainty;

— Re-calculate the valuation made by the management;

— Evaluate the independence and works performed by expert
engaged by the management to assist their valuation;

— Evaluate whether the method of valuation and assumptions
made are appropriate;

— Test the data used by the management in the valuation;

— Determine whether indication of possible management bias
exist; and

— Evaluate the recognition and measurement criteria used and
disclosure made by management.
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Business combination — Acquisition of hospitality business
in Yarra Glen, Victoria, Australia (the “Balgownie Group”)

The Group’s business combination disclosed in Note 36(a) to
the consolidated financial statements was determined to be a
key audit matter because of the complexity in relevant financial
reporting requirements for business combination, the significant
judgement made in selecting the valuation method in measuring
the fair values of the identified assets and liabilities of the
Balgownie Group at the date of acquisition.

Our procedures performed to address the matter included:

Obtain an understanding of the Group’s procedures and
method of valuation, including significant assumptions made
and management’s assessment of estimation uncertainty;

Re-calculate the valuation made by the management;

Evaluate the independence and works performed by expert
engaged by the management to assist their valuation;

Evaluate whether the method of valuation and assumptions
made are appropriate;

Test the data used by the management in the valuation;

Determine whether indication of possible management bias
exist; and

Evaluate the recognition and measurement criteria used and
disclosure made by management.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information which
comprises the information included in the Group’s annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (“Annual Report”) other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard in respect of the other
information we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is TAN Yik Chung, Wilson.

PKF
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AraBm MEME WS
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
ZE-RE | —T—hO%F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHET
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Revenue WA 4 510,143 257,853
Cost of inventories sold/services BEGFEE/IREZKA (215,824) (70,152)
Other gains and losses Hth a5 & & 18 4 (506,024) 22,232
Other revenue and income H A A Rz 4 8,363 1,456
Employee benefits expenses BTRAMAX (164,709) (118,414)
Depreciation and amortisation rE N 12,15 (23,579) (19,840)
Other operating expenses HME LR (116,050) (74,459)
Gain on a bargain purchase of FEBANBAR W=
subsidiaries - 32,783
Share of results of associates DEEEE R RIERA 16 (22,237) 32,556
Finance costs B & AR (23,816) (8,704)
(Loss)/profit before income tax Fris®inn (E8) a7 5 (553,733) 55,311
Income tax expense PSR 6 (107) (423)
(553,840) 54,888
Discontinued operation CRIEREER
Profit for the year from a discontinued ~ AFERKE —BE K ILLE
operation EB2m A 7 236,543 27,075
(Loss)/profit for the year AFEE (EE) S af (317,297) 81,963
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Htt2MmE (&E) WH
Items that may be reclassified HEENHEEN 7 HEEREZ
subsequently to profit or loss:— EE: -
Exchange differences arising on MEEEZIENZHE:
translation of:
— Financial statements of — BN B A B 2 B T Rk
overseas subsidiaries (10,384) (2,547)
— Financial statements of — OB R B 2 B S R R
overseas associates (3.473) (1,920)
Reclassification of translation reserve HE—FNBARIRENSE
upon disposal of a subsidiary b H 1,465 12
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHEEREQNFEERE
investments (56,214) (4,066)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale At EREREEE
investments 14,077 20,248
Reclassification upon disposal of HERHREERERENHE
available-for-sale investments 18,653 -
Other comprehensive (loss)/ AEFHEME2E (BHE) =
income for the year (35,876) 11,727
Total comprehensive (loss)/ AEEE2E(BE) KERes
income for the year (353,173) 93,690
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBmMkEMEmRaS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-—F-A#+-A=+—HIFEE

2016 2015
ZE-RE | —T—hO%F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(s THERT FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year TIHATEEEREE
attributable to:- (E518) %R —
Shareholders of the Company NN 23 (344,617) 63,951
Non-controlling interests IR = 27,320 18,012
(317,297) 81,963
Total comprehensive (loss)/income T3 A LEERFEEM
for the year attributable to:- (BB) REBsE: -
Shareholders of the Company ANl (379,725) 77,107
Non-controlling interests FEIE I HE 2 26,552 16,583
(353,173) 93,690
(Loss)/earnings per share sBR (B8R BF (Restated)
(geE7)
From continuing and discontinued REFERDRIKEEE
operations
~ Basic (HK cents) — &R (B 9 (7.87) 11.16
— Diluted (HK cents) —#58 (B1l) 9 (7.87) 11.16
From continuing operations REFECEER
— Basic (HK cents) —E AR (B) 9 (12.91) 8.73
— Diluted (HK cents) —#58 (B1l) 9 (12.91) 8.73
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iRe BRI 2R

At 31 December 2016

RZFE—ANF+ZHA=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M BRE MR 12 216,550 104,597
Investment properties "EYE 13 81,110 -
Goodwill EES 14 35,869 29,167
Other intangible assets Hi\EEEE 15 6,635 -
Investments in associates LEBE N A 16 76,964 301,192
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 17 335,328 102,858
Deposits paid for acquisition of WBEREYMEMSI N2 e
investment properties - 23,455
Deferred tax assets R IEE E 27 5,467 3,042
757,923 564,311
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 12,507 4,432
Amounts due from contract customers ~ JEUE X E F B 19 32,708 13,855
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEMBR X - 12 & RIER BB 20 189,054 198,756
Financial assets at fair value through AT EABRZ
profit or loss TEEE 21 428,147 327,503
Income tax recoverable Al B B 1S #% 3,718 121
Pledged time deposit EEFE TR 22 - 13,000
Cash and bank balances & MIRTTHE &R 22 88,311 78,587
754,445 636,254
Assets of a disposal group classified DERFIEFHEZHES
as held for sale ZEE 7 - 91,729
754,445 727,983
DEDUCT: W
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Creditors, accruals and other payables — FEfTEER - FEETE A &
H A &~ 5RI8 23 88,915 72,340
Amounts due to non-controlling FETHT B 2~ A1 JE1E AR
shareholders of subsidiaries % R 3k IE 24 1,743 17,617
Borrowings BE 25 134,673 153,998
Note payable B EE 26 - 149,396
Income tax payable JET RISt 63,844 1,377
289,175 394,728
Liabilities of a disposal group classified ~ D iEAFELE 2 HEE
as held for sale ZB8fE 7 - 39,345
289,175 434,073
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 465,270 293,910
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,223,193 858,221
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4r 4B

n 7N

URY I

At 31 December 2016
R-ZE—ANF+ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—HF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7E FE T FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kABERE
Borrowings B 25 164,879 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEE 27 4,996 4,217
169,875 4,217
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,053,318 854,004
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGEE
Share capital A% 28(a) 53,362 6,841
Reserves {1 939,979 812,849
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO AATRRELER
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 993,341 819,690
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER 59,977 34,314
TOTAL EQUITY EXEE 1,053,318 854,004

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) on 24 March 2017 and signed on
its behalf by:

Zhang Xiongfeng
R 1
Director

EF
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BE:

Zhang Peiao
IR

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FRNET L ES

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-F-AF+-A=+—HIFEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ARRARRER
(Accumulated
Capital Share Investment losses)/ Non-
Share Share  Contributed reduction options  Translation Other  revaluation retained controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
(RitEE) /
B& BHEE RARE RANGRE BRERS ERGE HibiE REEMRE REER @it FERER BHAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THT Tt FhL THL THT Tt FhL THL TERT T FAL
At 1.1.2015 RZE-1F
-fA-A 24,961 226,016 - 81,470 4,844 (156) (63) - (11,060) 326,012 5,669 331,681
Shares issued - Note 28(a) B &1k ()
—Hi28(a) 43,452 377,651 - - - - - - - 421,103 - 421,103
Share issuing expenses DOEDR - (15,978) - - - - - - - (15,978) - (15,978)
Capital reduction and RAHIARERE
transfer to contributed E4Rs
surplus - Note 28(a)(v) —HiEE28(a)(v) (61,572) (587,689) 701,518 (81,470) - - - - 29,213 - - -
Dividend declared to T ERRAR 3R
non-controlling BERE
shareholders ~ Note 41 REZ - - - - - - - - - - (1,620) (1,620)
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEEMEAF
- Note 36 ~Hi#36 - - - - - - - - - - 241 4
Capital contribution from ~ —FMEAF
non-controlling FRRRETE
shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 486 486
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-RMBAR
- Note 37 —MizE37 - - - - - - - - - - 114 14
Change in ownership interest —FMBA AL E
in asubsidiary that donot  EHAA B
resultinaloss of control 2 HEHEERED
- Note 38 — 38 - - - - - - (1,110) - - (1,110) 12,841 11,731
Share-based payments IR AER
- Note 35 RESiEE]] - - - - 12,55 - - - - 12,556 - 12,556
Profit and total comprehensive A% & & | &
income for the year 2ENEEE - - - - - (3,026) - 16,182 63,951 77,107 16,583 93,690
At31.12.2015and 1.1.2016 R=F—H%F
TZA=+-BR
ZE-RE
-A—B 6,841 - 701,518 - 17,400 (3,182) (1,173) 16,182 82,104 819,690 34,314 854,004
Rights issue of shares itk
- Note 28(a)(vi) ~HizE28(a)vi) 34,207 495,997 - - - - - - - 530,204 - 530,204
Bonus issue of shares ARET
- Note 28(a)(vi) ~ [ E28(a)wvii 8,210 - (8.210) - - - - - - - - _
Exercise of share option TEERE
- Note 28(a)vii) ~ MY EE28(a)vii) 4,104 29,631 - - (7,548) - - - - 26,187 - 26,187
Share issuing expenses PUESGE - (15,395) - - - - - - - (15,395) - (15,395)
Dividend paid to non- AR RBER
controlling shareholders 218 - Hia
- Note 41 - - - - - - - - - - (60) (60)
Acquisition of additional HE-ERBAR
interest in a a subsidiary 35 - - - - - - (2,419 - - (2,419 2,419 -
Capital contribution from ~ —FAft BA A2
a non-controlling REERZEE
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 4,457 4,457
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RMBAR
- Note 37(a) —WE37(a) - - - - - - - - - - (29,652) (29,652)
Change in ownership interest —FMIBA AL E
in a subsidiary that do not ~ BEK AR
resultinaloss of control A EEEED
- Note 38 —[iz38 - - - - - - (811) - - (811) 21,947 21,136
Share-based payments IR AEREZ
- Note 35 RESliEE - - - - 15,610 - - - - 15,610 - 15,610
Loss and total comprehensive A% EEEREE
loss for the year BREg - - - - - (11,624) - (23,484) (344,617) (379,725) 26,552 (353,173)
At31.12.2016 RZB-XE
+=B=1-R 53,362 510,233 693,308 - 25,462 (14,806) (4,403) (7,302) (262,513) 993,341 59,977 1,053,318
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\/\

E/Eui //HJiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE T NF+-_A=+—HIFE
2016 2015
—EB-ARF —hE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REKEXB2RETRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEFE (FE) &F (317,297) 81,963
Income tax expense from continuing REFELCEEB 2SR
operations 53 107 423
Income tax expense from xR E —IEEMJti“‘ =¥
a discontinued operation BHAX 10,360 8,949
(306,830) 91,335
Adjustments for:— TP ZIEELAE: —
Interest income A EWA (211) (80)
Finance costs A& BN 23,845 8,930
Depreciation and amortisation Tﬁ%&%% 23,601 20,078
Share of results of associates DI E N A XS 22,237 (32,172)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on financial ?ﬁ?@ﬁfﬁ“l‘)\?ﬁ 52 % &l
assets at fair value through é{FZﬂim
profit or loss &8, (Ya= 247,226 (55,911)
Written off of other debtors Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ&?ﬂ 7,335 -
Impairment loss on At ERE ZRERBE
available-for-sale investments 14,077 20,248
Loss on fair value changes of BREMERNTERES 2
investment properties &8 9,049 -
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERE 2 BB
investments 18,653 -
Impairment loss on investments REME N A ZREERE
in associates 195,062 3,469
Loss on disposal/written off of & MIEmE - BE R
property, plant and equipment Rz BB 167 71
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HENB A AW (204,017) (603)
Gain on a bargain purchase of EEBAMBARZ WS
subsidiaries - (32,783)
Share-based payments VAR 10 23 EWE 2 A 5k 15,610 12,556
Operating cash flows before LEEREPH 2 RERS
working capital changes mE 65,804 35,138
Decrease in inventories FEZRD 10,175 454
(Increase)/decrease in amounts & #EFFRIA
due from contract customers ($gn), (18,853) 1,665
Increase in debtors, deposits and JEMBR R - e RTENKIEZ
prepayments 10 (86,452) (127,743)
Increase in creditors, accruals and JERTERTR - Bt B A K
other payables EL M FE S RRIE 2 38 N 78,831 41,131
Increase in financial assets ?*/AFMEEH\T@@Z
at fair value through profit or loss ERE EE (347,870) (270,819)
Cash used in operations LBEFTAZEAS (298,365) (320,174)
Income tax PR1S
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EEBNIEN (2,823) (73)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEEMEBRT - 184
Overseas tax paid 28N IE (7,921) (6,884)
Overseas tax refunded BREBINIE 127 -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHFARSFRE
ACTIVITIES (308,982) (326,947)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meRETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
—EB-ARF —T—h%F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T THERT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREZDHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Net cash outflow arising on WHENBRARIMELZ
acquisitions of subsidiaries WM FRE 36 (146,075) (137,527)
Payment to acquire investment W B EMZ N 2 5KIE
properties (66,704) -
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAIHEERE
investments (35,005) (87,789)
Payments to acquire property, W HE D 5 - R I 5% 8 P S A+t
plant and equipment /S| (20,045) (13,515)
Payment to acquire other WHIEEMmEEEEM N2
intangible asset FKIE (4,500) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments Fri5 508 17,369 -
Net cash inflow arising on disposals of ~ HEMBAGIFTEL 2
subsidiaries WEMAFHE 37 15,680 7,869
Dividend received from an associate Bl —REE a2k E 3,456 6,000
Proceeds from disposal of HEME WMEREHZ
property, plant and equipment Fri5 518 464 -
Interest received 2 U A B 211 80
Investments in associates REEERNR 2 IRE - (58,820)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WRIREMEMY N2 Ee
investment properties - (23,455)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZEHFTARSFE
ACTIVITIES (235,149) (307,157)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETBHZ2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Issuance of shares TATRMD 556,391 421,103
New borrowings raised NELREE 513,421 252,998
Proceeds from deemed disposal to MIEERRRBIELRE 2
a non-controlling shareholder FT 15 5018 17,069 -
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (365,370) (117,527)
Repayment of loan note BEENRRRE (150,000) -
Interest paid BT B (23,241) (5,034)
Share issuing expenses W BT (15,395) (15,978)
(Repayment to)/advance from (TR BT B8 2~ R FEFE AR AR 3R
non-controlling shareholders of B SWB A RIEER
subsidiaries AR R EA K (7,350) 7,350
Dividend paid to non-controlling A FE12 AR IR SRR A 2 % B
shareholders (60) (1,620)
Net proceeds from issued of loan note  ZE{TERFEIE 2 FT1S5IE
R - 145,500
Capital contribution from — BB A R IEIERR AR R
non-controlling shareholders of TE
a subsidiary - 486
NET CASH GENERATED FROM METHRERE TR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 525,465 687,278
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O.—HF CASH \FL(%WS
meHTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFZ

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—HF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7T FE T FA&ET
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE INCASH HRE&RZEHLEHZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R A), /B hnEaE (18,666) 53,174
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REAZREREREASIEHR
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 106,699 53,527
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXGH o2&
RATE CHANGES 278 2)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REKRZRERERESIEHR
AT END OF YEAR 88,311 106,699
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF REREQRRSEHERDW
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Pledged time deposit EHEFEHFR - 13,000
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTHE 88,311 78,587
Cash and bank balances included A HEARBERE
in assets of a disposal group HESEEE 2R RIRIT
classified as held for sale g 7 = 15,112
88,311 106,699
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ER R ek

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—F

1.

122

—NFLT A=+ —HIFFE
GENERAL INFORMATION

Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology
Investments Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company, domiciled in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the following principal activities: (i)
mobile internet cultural business and provision of IT services;
(i) provision of hospitality and related services in Australia; (iii)
provision of medical diagnostic and health check services; (iv)
money lending business; and (v) assets investments business.
The Group's provision of integral marketing services was
regarded as a discontinued operation (Note 7).

The shares of the Company are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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ADARBREFMKIZBRAR K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D) 2. IMEEE (&)
(b) Initial application of Hong Kong Financial Reporting (b) #.KFEH & &R & ER
Standards
In the current year, the Group initially applied the RAFE AEEVIRERIATER
following Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards:- B E 2R —
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative BEGFERE 1% BETE
BET AR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable BB GFEL BB E R
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and F16 R BB BiH 2
Amortisation 2548 AN A
E38RIEFT A
Amendments to HKAS 16 Bearer Plants A ER EEMEY
and HKAS 41 F165% R EE
248
FAFABET AR
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BEGTLEL BY B mK 2
Financial Statements FE2TRIEET A - e
Amendments to HKAS 28,  Investment Entities: Applying the A ER KREER EH
HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 Consolidation exception £28% - BE Ra ARe
B 7% ¥ a5 22 R AENEDS
1058 &
BB
WEEAFE125%
& ET A
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BBV BMELER WEEEEK
Interests in Joint Operations FNFEFTR - el
SR
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7 FENE BBV BWE
(2012-2014) and HKAS 19 —E-ZFF  FRIESH-

—E—NEF) BB RS
AR FE 75 &

BB 2L
F1998 2 1ERT
PN
The initial application of these financial reporting MRERZEMBRMEENITES
standards does not necessitate material changes in the SEEHSTHREIFHERNE Y
Group's accounting policies and retrospective adjustments FEMBREREV ZHEREFTIELE
of the comparatives presented in the consolidated WEEE o
financial statements.
HKFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” is not BEEMBHREEANFI4RTETRET
applicable to the Group. RE] MEARAEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T M SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

;Z\ﬂ_'\:l

(c) Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in issue

124

but not yet effective

The following Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
in issue at 31 December 2016 have not been applied in
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year then ended since they were
not yet effective for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2016:-

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers
HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 28
and HKFRS 10

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 2

The Group is required to initially apply Amendments to
HKAS 7 and HKAS 12 in its annual consolidated financial
statements beginning on 1 January 2017, to initially apply
HKFRS 15, HKFRS 9 (2014) and Amendments to HKFRS 2
in its annual consolidated financial statements beginning
on 1 January 2018, and to initially apply HKFRS 16 in its
annual consolidated financial statements beginning on 1
January 2019. Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10
have no mandatory effective date.

2.
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AEBI| 955
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AEBI| 25 155%
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EBIZE 1657
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BRI ER MAREIRBIER
F125AEET AR RIEFER A
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REBVBREERNE155 FEY
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AIF165% - BB ST EAE28K A
B 7S 5 YE RIS 105% 0 M SR ) A K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 include the Group and the Group's
interests in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments and investment properties
which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 34.

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

ZEETHR

(a) B HEmREE

BE-T—~E+-A=+—AI%F
ErEAHBREDEARBRAL
BB A 2 i

REMBBRRAABZAEEERESL
PRARERE RN FEIRZETS
BTARKEWMERRIN -

mENTAETRM RS ENNT R
REREEBFLEZERRERA R
2REE BE WAMFAXBEN
HE - (AR R RER - F A F KA R
R NDBRBEREEEREZEEEES
BMELATEAENEMERMEL "
HERBREEEMBIRL TERS
SMEE,BERMEFLHEBNE
eBERERTERAIRZS AT

ZEMETRAERREFERS Y
SR ARTETER R WIEFTZER
2 H A NOR R B - R (R (A5t EY
HiR R o

EIEENERE LY BE RS ERIRAT
EEME M BHRRBEERNTE 2 A
KAt st M HEE F & 2 T 2RIRNRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

126

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

Interest in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Changes in the Group interest’s in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TE@ETHE ()

(CONT'D)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (cont’d)

(b) #1/8 A AR HF R E R (&)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the company’s statement of financial position, an
interest in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (Note 3(j)(ii)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale (Note 3(u)).

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale (see Note 3(u)). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see Note 3(j)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(c) Associates (cont’d)

128

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, tvhe Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TE@ETHE ()
(CONT'D)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (d) 9% BERZE

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 3(j)):—

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating
leases (see Note 3(i)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.
Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of
property, plant and equipment to their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis as set out below:—

Buildings — 40 years
Leasehold improvements — the shorter of remaining
lease term and useful life

Plant, machinery and —3to 10 years
equipment

Office equipment — 3 to 8 years

Furniture and fixtures —4to 10 years

Motor vehicles —5 to 6 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(e) Investment properties

(7)

130

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which could otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods and services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gain or losses arising from changes in fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit of loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

Goodwill
Gooawill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the considered
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquire and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquire;
over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see Note 3(j)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TE@ETHE ()

(CONT'D)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) () BEEE (BELEI)

Intangible assets acquired separately by the Group are
measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is
the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. (see Note 3(j)).
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their useful lives are as
follows:

Wine membership — 5 years
Copyright — 10 years

(h) Other investments in equity securities

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
under current assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that
are designated as available-for-sale or not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
loans and receivables. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
investment revaluation reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 3())).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(h) Other investments in equity securities (cont’d)

;Z\ﬂ_'\:l

(@)

)

132

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as
an investment property.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
trade and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and trade and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale investments
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:—

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(j) Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
trade and other receivables (cont’d)

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:—

For investments in an associate accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see Note 3(c)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with Note 3(j)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with Note 3(j)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(j) Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and

134

trade and other receivables (cont’d)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale investments, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale investments are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEETHCR (8B)

(CO NT’ D)
(j) Impairment of assets (cont’d)

G) BERE (&)
(i) B EZERE

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:—

— property, plant and equipment;
— goodwill and other intangible assets; and

— interests in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(j) Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(i) Impairment of other assets (cont’d)
— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(k) Inventories

()

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 3(j)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

(m) Borrowings and borrowings costs

136

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction cost. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

(o) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(p) Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses and annual leave entitlements
are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees of the Group.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Australia
are entitled to benefits from the employee’s complying
superannuation plan on retirement, disability or
death. These subsidiaries are responsible for making
contributions to the plan at a certain percentage of
employees’ wages or salaries. The subsidiaries’ legal or
constructive obligation is limited to these contributions,
which are recognised as an expense as they become
payable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(q) Income tax

138

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they are relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEETHCR (8B)

(CONT'D)

(q) Income tax (cont’d) (q) Fris® (&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to interests in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it
is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets
at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:—

FERIELEN HEEMABEHN ARG
B BRI ZEE N HER
"WEGHHNERTETNEERE
B (MBEHA G — 8o BRI FTE
EMERER ULREANHE AR
ZERENEREZR -MERA BN E
RAZEDHNERNEZREMS  HE
AR B ¥ (O] By ) 2 P AN SR B R ) -
mBBEEA LT g Er 78R AR
BWo AR BEERMBARZREN
AEMEREMS BRI BTNER
A BEFE A PR EE O] -

EREMERBEGARRIEAFET
R BRZODEEFTTENRA—BE
BEAKAE MEBNEREEBRERE
PR 36 3F B X R AR 2 0
MEZFMBEERNEENS BRET
BN SRR ZYENRE B HREK
NEREELENERREAE -
BEMBERT  ERETEH AN
DREE;BENKRAENENER
FEETABTE ARENREHR
EHEXEL LOHIENRERAE -
EXEFAEEABBEHTIRAH -

AREBESREHREFEELTH A
BENREE WRAEEEHITH
A] BETE 1S B S HO JE AR B0 )t A LAB) R 4R
BRGNS ZRELERBEEENK
EEEGFHEK-EEMRE %X R
BESRANERY GN A BREE
gE[ME-

BIEATH I8 45 64 MR T TR A 88 S Ho
HewEOMINT WEASTHEE - fi
AEBEEARETEEANBHRBAEE
HHA R IR B & I BFE LT
WIERANBERT BIERIEER ERE
EHMBEEES DRI ENMHARE
KRR TR B B —

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR 139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i\’T\

ER R ek

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—F

~NFFZHA=F—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(q) Income tax (cont’d)

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:—

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities and assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

140

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
immaterial, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:—

(1)

(ir)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of goods have been transferred
to the buyer. Revenue is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Service income

Income from rendering of services is recognised at
the time when the services are provided.

(ifi) Contract services income

Income from rendering of professional Information
Technology (“IT") contract services, on the
percentage of completion basis, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Contract for services” in
Note 3(t).

(iv) Dividend income

(v)

Dividend income is recognised at the time when the
shareholders’ right to receive the dividend have been
established.

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(t) Contract for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises
the agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts
from variation orders, claims and incentive payments
arising from professional IT contract services. Contract
costs incurred comprise equipment and material costs,
subcontracting costs, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of work completed to date
to the estimated total work of the relevant contract.
Where the outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that the
expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by management. Where contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as
an amount due from contract customers. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as an amount due to contract customers.

(u) A disposal group classified as held for sale and

142

discontinued operation
()  Non-current assets held for sale

A disposal group is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the disposal group is
available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for
sale when the above criteria for classification as held
for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(u) A disposal group classified as held for sale and
discontinued operation (cont’d)

(1)

(ir)

Non-current assets held for sale (cont’d)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of all individual assets and liabilities in
a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in accordance
with the accounting policies before the classification.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the disposal group, is recognised at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements
of the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets
(other than interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures) and investment properties. These
assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in Note 3.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale, the non-current assets is
not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale (see 3(u)(i)
above), if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is
abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(u) A disposal group classified as held for sale and
discontinued operation (cont’d)

(ir)

Discontinued operation (cont’d)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:—

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less  costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

(v) Foreign currency translation

144

(1)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(v) Foreign currency translation (cont’d)
(i) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:—

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are  translated at
the closing rate at the end of each reporting
period;

— Income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholder’s equity. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

(w)Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(w)Related parties (Cont’d)

146

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group of companies,

(i) the entity is an associate or a joint venture of either
the Group or a member of a group of which the
Group is a member,

(iii) the Group is an associate or a joint venture of either
the entity or a member of a group of which the
entity is a member,

(iv) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party,

(v) the entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
Group is an associate of that third entity,

(vi) the Group is a joint venture of a third entity and the
entity is an associate of that third entity,

(vii) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group,

(viiithe entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person related to the Group or a close member of
that person’s family,

(ix) a person who has control or joint control over the
Group has significant influence over the entity, or

(x) a person who has control or joint control over
the Group is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(x) Share-based payments

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the goods or services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options and warrants granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustment has
been made to equity (share options reserve).

(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

(z) Significant judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, judgements that can significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements are made in determining:—

(i) whether the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of goods have been transferred to the
buyer;

(i) whether there is an indication of impairment of
assets;

(iii) whether the discount rates used to calculate the
recoverable amount of assets are appropriate for the
purpose of impairment review; and

(iv) the expected manner of recovery of the carrying
amount of assets.
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SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND

E\

4. WA~ 7 80 2 3 M = U s K

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

(a) Revenue

148

&5 18
(a) LA

The principal activities of the Group are (i) mobile internet
cultural business and provision of IT services; (ii) provision
of hospitality and related services in Australia; (iii)
provision of medical diagnostic and health check services;
(iv) money lending business; and (v) assets investments
business. The Group’s provision of integral marketing
services was regarded as a discontinued operation.

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net amounts
received and receivable from third parties for the year.
An analysis of the Group's revenue from continuing
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operations is as follows:—

2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue LN
Income from mobile internet cultural BE B E R b E B &
business and provision of IT services REEARERELA 195,520 50,685
Income from provision of hospitality PRI 3R 18 5 2 AH
and related services in Australia AR 755 LA 82,009 2,688
Income from provision of medical R EED N KBRS
diagnostic and health check services WA 225,885 202,990
Loans interest and related income B3R A B REEKRA 2,047 1,384
Rental income el A 1,409 -
Dividends income LSRN 3,273 106
Total #Et 510,143 257,853
Other revenue H bz
Interest income F B WA 184 13
510,327 257,866

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was
one (2015: one) customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue from continuing
operations amounting to approximately HK$168,433,000
(2015: HK$41,094,000) arose in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(b) 2 E2 %]

4. REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D)

7 N

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products
and services) and geography. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments.

— Mobile internet cultural business and provision of IT
services,

— Provision of hospitality and related services in
Australia;

— Provision of medical diagnostic and health check
services;

— Money lending business; and
— Assets investments business.

The Group's provision of integral marketing services was
regarded as a discontinued operation (Note 7).

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's chief
operating decision maker monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:—

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.

Assets and liabilities are allocated to the reportable
segments excluding unallocated corporate assets and
liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
"adjusted EBIT", i.e. "adjusted earnings before interest
and taxes”, where “interest” is regarded as including
investment income. To arrive at adjusted EBIT, the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments.
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RO R IEEEER (HET7) °
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4. REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D)

(b) Segment reporting (cont’d)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group's chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 is set out below:—

(i) Segment results from continuing operations

4. WA B2 5 M A b &

E\

Jﬁﬁ,@\ (5)
(b) D2, (&)

AEEBTFTEKERREEREHEHS
AEEAREDENER  EEME
EE-REERZFE-—HF+H
T+ —BLEFEELHERS @E&E:FTZ
DEERR - ZEFERINHWOT -

() REFBEERE T BRE

Mobile Provision
internet  Provision of  of medical
cultural hospitality diagnostic
businessand  andrelated  and health Money Assets Total for
provision of services in check lending investments  continuing
2016 —E-RE IT services Australia services business business  operations
BBEHE
TEEBR REM Rt
REER RUEEER BEYER BREE
NERH RERE ERR® BEXE BEREXH £33 )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR TER TR
REVENUE LON
External customers HEER 195,520 82,009 225,885 2,047 4,682 510,143
RESULTS ES
Segment (loss)/profit A5 (B8) /&7 (219,575) 5,701 29,275 555 (307,520) (491,564)
Unallocated head office and RAEBRERR
corporate income and expenses A AMA K (38,537)
Interest income MEHA 184
Finance costs BERK (23,816)
Loss before income tax FERAER (553,733)
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REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D)

(b) Segment reporting (cont’d)

(i) Segment results from continuing operations

&5 18

Bz =
4, WA D ELEF

( =)

(b) &2 % (&)

7 N

~NFt A=+ —HIFE

() REFBEEXBEZDHER

(cont’d) (%)
Mobile Provision
internet cultural Provision of of medical
businessand  hospitality and  diagnostic and Assets Total for
provision  related services health check ~ Money lending investments continuing
2016 Y3 of IT services in Australia services business business Unallocated operations
BHEHR
XEEBR RN Rt
REER REBER BEDER BREE
NERE RERE BREHS REEY  EEREEH KAE B3 by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Amounts included in the measure St AREBELEEK
of segment results from AREETEZNE:
continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortisation REREH (1,031) (4,590) (17,481) (89) (55) (333) (23,579)
Share of results of associates PMEBBNAEE (23,003) - - - 766 = (22,237)
Unrealised loss on financial assets BRATEFABELZ
at fair value through profit or loss REELAETEE - - - - (247,226) - (247,226)
Realised loss on financial assets RATEFABELZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREAEZEERER - - - - (14,455) - (14,455)
Impairment loss on available-forsale AT ER EHER R
investments - - - - (14,077) - (14,077)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale  HEAEHERE 2 BB
investments - - - - (18,653) - (18,653)
Loss on fair value changes of RENELTEESL
investment properties BE - - - - (9,049) - (9,049)
Impairment loss on investments in REERRZ
associates REREEER (195,062) - - - - - (195,062)
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4. REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D)

(b) Segment reporting (cont’d)

HE—F

152

(i) Segment results from continuing operations

A D E
BB ()

(b) &2 % (&)
() REFACELEBK D EHFER

(cont’d) (%)
Mobile
internet Provision of Provision
cultural hospitality of medical
business and and related  diagnostic and Money Assets Total for
provision of IT servicesin - health check lending  investments continuing
2015 —E-1% services Australia services business business operations
FEEY
XEEBR REM B4t
REEER  REBER BEIER BERE
MR RERS Bk BEEE BERERK ¥t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TET THET TR
REVENUE KA
External customers HEEF 50,685 2,688 202,990 1,384 106 257,853
RESULTS Ed
Segment profit/(loss) AHER/ (FR) 15,105 (133) 15,313 6) 22,452 52,731
Unallocated head office and ROEBNRERR
corporate income and RABARRAR
expenses (21,512)
Interest income FEBA 13
Gain on a bargain purchase of ~ EEBREAMBLAE 2%
subsidiaries 32,783
Finance costs BERK (8,704)
Profit before income tax ER RN 55,311

Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited | Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

4. WA DI 24
J:ETJ_ (m/E\

(b) &2 % (&)
() REFACELEBK D EHFER

REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D)

7 N

(b) Segment reporting (cont’d)

(i) Segment results from continuing operations

(cont’d) (%)
Provision
Mobile internet Provision of of medical
cultural business  hospitality and ~ diagnostic and Assets Total for
and provision of  related services health check ~ Money lending investments continuing
2015 —“E-n% IT services in Australia services business business Unallocated operations
BHERE
XIEBR AN feft
LA REEER BEDHR SEE
R HERH% BRER% BEER AEREEHR AR £t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL ThEL FEL T FEL T TAL
Amounts included in the measure of FAREBELEEEL
segment results from continuing PREEHEZNE
operations:
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (356) (165) (19,176) (19) (25) (99) (19,840)
Share of results of associates PMEBENREE 29,237 - (20) - 3339 - 32,556
Unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value AT EH AEHZ
through profit or loss SREEZRERNA - - - - 55911 - 55,911
Realised loss on financial assets at fair value BATEFABHLZ
through profit or loss SRHAEZBEREE - - - - (5,090) - (5,090)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale REEREREEE
investments - - - - (20,248) - (20,248)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HETRIEERE B
investments - - - - - - -
Loss on fair value changes of RENELTEEYZ
investment properties B - - - - - - -
Impairment loss on investments in associates ~ RESE R EIRE 2
AEBR - - - - - (3.469) (3,469)
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A= Ny
4. REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND 4. WA - o EB 2 3 S B At U &= J
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D) EiE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (cont'd) (b) PEHE2, (&)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities (i) 7HEERERE
Mobile
internet  Provision of Provision
cultural hospitality of medical
businessand  and related diagnostic and Money Assets Reportable
provision of servicesin health check lending  investments segments  Discontinued
2016 “E-R¥ IT services Australia services business business total operation  Unallocated Total
BHERA
XEEHR RN Rt
REES REEER  BEYER THE BRI
NERB HER® ERRH REEY EEREER AEBE F4-E RARE @zt
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TR TRT TR TR TR TiEn TR TR
ASSETS BE 224,990 266,243 125,475 812 855,659 1473179 - 39,189 1,512,368
LIABILITIES 8 54,181 107,079 15,233 32 217,002 393,567 - 65,483 459,050
Mobile
internet  Provision of Provision
cultural  hospitality  of medical
businessand  and related diagnostic Money Assets  Reportable
provision of servicesin  and health lending investments segments
2016 ZE-RE IT services Australia check services business business total
BBHEHE
TEERR RN Rt
RUER REEER BEIER RS
R MR B R BRI EEXK EEREEK T CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TExL TR TR THR TR
Amounts included in the FTADBEEMNERZ
measure of segment assets: RE:
Investments in associates REENRZRE 68,000 - S = 8,964 76,964
Amounts regularly provided to EHEFEEERKA
the chief operating decision R ZFE:
maker:
Additions to property, plantand ~ RENE BE k& E
equipment 3,229 7,309 9,358 a2 - 19,938
Additions to investments RERBERRZRE
in associates - - - - 1,440 1,440
Additions to investment properties R R AHE - - - - 90,159 90,159
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REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND 4. WA - DE28m R E MR &
’ — = %
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D) EiE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (cont’d) (b) P2 (&)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities (contd) (i) 7EEEREE (&)
Mobile internet Provision
cultural Provision of of medical
business and  hospitality and  diagnostic and Assets
provision of  related services  health check  Money lending investments Reportable  Discontinued
2015 % IT services in Australia services business business  segments total operation Unallocated Total
BHLEA
XEEB R R i
REEH  REEER  BEIER Bk BRI
RHER% HERS BiREH BES% BEREEH GE L 373 RAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Fian Tin Fitn T Fi#n Fitn T TEL
ASSETS AE 426,054 106,528 94,410 49,990 475,557 1,152,539 91,729 48,026 1,292,294
LIABILITIES ff& 52,695 6,618 30,057 % 155,562 245,928 39,345 153,017 438,290
Mobile internet Provision
cultural Provision of of medical
business and  hospitality and ~ diagnostic and Assets
provision of IT  related services  health check  Money lending  investments Reportable
2015 —2-nF services in Australia services business business  segments total
BHEEE
EEBR R Rt
REER REEER BEYER kS

MakE  BERE  BREE  BREXE AEREXE o8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL T THETL AT THETL THETL

Amounts included in the FTATHEEFEL
measure of segment assets: RE:
Investments in associates REERRCRE 292,993 - - - 8,199 301,192

Amounts regularly providedto EHEFEEERFAR
the chief operating decision £ ZFE:
maker:

Additions to property, plantand  REWE BE k& E

equipment 993 279 11,070 386 300 13,028
Additions to investments RERBENFZRE
in associates 52,178 - - - - 52,178

Additions to investment properties K& R EME - - - - - -
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4. REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D)

(b) Segment reporting (cont’d)
(iii) Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Australia. The following table
sets out information about (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers from continuing operations;
and (ii) the geographical location of the Group’s
non-current assets (excluding available-for-sale
investments, deferred tax assets and those relating to
a discontinued operation) (“specified non-current
assets”), based the place of domicile of the relevant
group entity.

4. WA - o EB 2 3 S B At U &= J
BB ()

(b) &2 % (&)

156

E\

(iii) # B & #

AEBEBIBUNES TEKL
B TREIN BB AEERA
FEREXBZIEEPRA &
(VAREFRBEE (TEEAMH
HERE BETHRBEENE—IA
ERIEREXBERCAR) (14
EXRRBDEE]) ZHIEVLENE
FomEREEER 2 e

7 e

Revenue from external Specified
customers non-current assets

HEEFBA BEXRBDEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—-AE —hfF -~E —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER BT
Hong Kong B8 234,629 205,830 115,271 61,336
The PRC F 193,505 49,335 73,462 296,587
Australia M 82,009 2,688 228,395 100,488
510,143 257,853 417,128 458,411
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4. REVENUE, SEGMENT REPORTING AND 4. WA DHEMMEEM R R
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (CONT'D) B (&)
(c) Other gains and losses (c) Hitrzm R 18
2016 2015
ZE-RE | —T—hOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Continuing operations HEREEK
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At EREREEE
investments (14,077) (20,248)
Impairment loss on investments REE R AR EREEE
in associates (195,062) (3,469)
Loss on disposal/written off of P& MBEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment X BB (167) (71)
Unrealised (loss)/gain on financial BAFEFABRZ
assets at fair value through profit PREEZRER
or loss (B#E) s (247,226) 55,911
Realised loss on financial assets at fair BRATERAB®RZ
value through profit or loss THMEEZEEEERE (14,455) (5,090)
Loss on disposal of available-for- HEAHBEERE ZEE
sale investments (18,653) -
Loss on fair value changes of investment R EWEAFEEE 2 Ei8
properties (9,049) -
Written off of other debtors i B EL b 8 LUK (7,335) -
Reversal of compensation income BERGENRIBELEZ
arising from profit guarantee B EIEEWA
realisation - (4,801)
(506,024) 22,232
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5. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

5. FTSHRT (&538) A

2016 2015
ZE-RE | —FT—hOF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Continuing operations BEREXEY
(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived FTiS®ian (B518)
at after charging:— o MR HIER T 31
BIBESEL: —
Cost of inventories expensed EAER S 2 FEKA 59,233 30,603
Auditors’ remuneration Z B B
— audit services —ZE R 1,540 1,186
— other services —H A AR 738 587
2,278 1,773
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % &= MR EITE 23,165 19,840
Amortisation of intangible assets 728 B 414 -
23,579 19,840
Directors’ remuneration — Note 11(a) EEME —MHiE110) 11,953 12,050
Staff costs, excluding directors’ emoluments B T A (T BIEEZHH)
Other staff salaries and benefits * Hih 8 TEHMRER 244,436 125,995
Retirement scheme contributions * RIRETEI R~ 15,565 6,436
Share based payments AR 2R B0 2 3Kk 7.421 5,028
267,422 137,459
Net exchange loss X BB FRE 4,972 54
Finance costs BLE AR
— Interest on short-term borrowings wholly —BARAFABEENZ
repayable within five years RHEENS 15,337 4,808
— Effective interest expense on note payable  —ENZEZEERF SR 8,479 3,896
23,816 8,704
Minimum lease payments paid under BEBELLHEED N2
operating leases RIEHEERE 26,515 16,818
*  Amounts included technical staff salaries and benefits of * RERBEBEFARBER A 2 FEME T
approximately HK$103,512,000 (2015: HK$27,572,000) & MAEF49103,512,0008 0 (= E—H
and corresponding retirement scheme contributions of % 27,572,000/ 7T ) I A8 B 3R IR Gt B4 50
approximately HK$11,154,000 (2015: HK$3,523,000) which #911,154,0007 ¢ ( == —F 4 : 3,523,000
were included in cost of services. HIT) o
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6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The income tax expense represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax and is made up as follows:—

6. P8R X

13 7 B 3 70 4 B B4 8 B S R T A 1
2R H b TR EAR  —

2016 2015
—EB-XRE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Continuing operations HEKEXEY
Current tax: BNVEARR I8 -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBME 275 786
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —H P EMER 683 -
958 786
Under/(over)provision in prior years: BAFEZBRETR
(HREERE)
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBBRER (55) (40)
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEPEMEN 668 (120)
613 (160)
Deferred taxation — Note 27 EFERIE — B 327
Current year NEE (1,464) (203)
107 423
Discontinued operation BRIEREER
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EATETRE
Current year RFE 10,360 8,949
Income tax expense PTG M =< 10,467 9,372

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the net estimated assessable profits
for the year. The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC
and Australia are subject to the tax rates at 15% or 25% and
30% respectively.

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR

ERFGHREBEEAFTFEHTERE &
MFEE2165% (ZFE—FH4F:16.5% )5t
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—F

—NF+ A=+ —HIFFEZF
6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D) 6. FTEHiFA < (&)

(a) Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to (@ REFEEZFEHMAXEESE E%Z
the (loss)/profit before income tax as per consolidated Fris®ian (E18) e FEERDT
statement of profit or loss as follows:—

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
BESEER BARILRELY @i
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—RE —RE —~E —RF —NE —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER FET THET AL
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ FIE &Rl (18) /
vl (553,733) 55,311 246,903 36,024 (306,830) 91,335
Notional tax on (loss)/profit FiEmABENE
before income tax, (B8) /&7
calculated at rates applicable X EBEZEF
to profits in the countries ERNEHE
concerned (34,074) 8,138 2,933 9,024 (31,141) 17,162
Tax effect of income that is BARBRAZ
not taxable METE (68,292) (15,195) - (214) (68,292) (15,409)
Tax effect of expenses that are  MEHHHE R 2
not deductible nBwE 89,551 7,645 7,427 74 96,978 7,719
Tax effect of unrecognised AERRRTER S
decelerated depreciation IHBTE
allowances 774 1,277 - - 774 1,277
Tax effect of tax losses not AERBEBE
recognised My 2 13,987 8,371 - 2 13,987 8,373
Tax effect of share of result of ~ DMEEE AR EE 2
associates nBwE 3,669 (5.372) - 63 3,669 (5,309)
Tax effect of utilisation of PRBTRER ﬁlﬁ
tax losses previously not BEZHBYE
recognised (6,116) (4,223) - - (6,116) (4,223)
Under/(over)-provision in BEFEZ
respect of previous year BETR/
(BEAE) 613 (160) - - 613 (160)
Others Hith (5) (58) - - (5) (58)
Income tax expense FETRRAX 107 423 10,360 8,949 10,467 9,372
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6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

(b) The components of unrecognised deductible/(taxable)

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

6. FTEMF (&)
(b) RHER 2 7B (FERBE) B

temporary differences are as follows:— ERZBBRWTN: —
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Deductible temporary differences — AT A E B M 2= B — B RE6(b)()
Note 6(b)(i)
Unutilised tax losses ABAZBHIEERE 276,481 260,581
Decelerated depreciation allowances BERITE R 14,402 9,064
290,883 269,645
Taxable temporary difference — JE AR TS B 1 2= £ — B 56 (b) (i)
Note 6(b)(ii)
Accelerated depreciation allowances IR E R (347) (543)
Net deductible temporary differences AT FOE R R R 290,536 269,102

(i)

Deductible temporary differences have not been recognised
owing to the absence of objective evidence in respect of
the availability of sufficient taxable profits that are expected
to arise to offset against the deductible temporary
differences. The unutilised tax losses accumulated in
Hong Kong and Australia amounted to HK$272,568,000
(2015: HK$255,971,000) and HK$3,882,000 (2015:
Nil) respectively can be carried forward indefinitely and
HK$31,000 (2015: HK$4,610,000) can be carried forward
for five years following the year when the losses were
incurred, respectively.

Taxable temporary difference has not been recognised in
these financial statements owing to immateriality.

(i)

HAYETE ZERBGEF (FAHE
AUNEEAIREREER) 2 RE
B AU SR N R
B -RNEBRBMNBRFT 2 REBAKE
B89 51I272,568,0008 7t (—E—Hh
F 1 255,971,000 7T ) }3,882,000/%8
T(ZE—RF - E)AIERBALEE .
iMm31,000/8 7T (= —H%F 4,610,000
BIL)REEFEEFTFERTRAFTA
ez

MR ERHEE S ERY TEA
U 36 48 % B A 3R o SR o
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6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D)

;Z\ﬂ_'\:l

() As at 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating

162

to the undistributed profits of the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC was approximately RMB26,446,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$29,533,000)
(2015: RMB20,437,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,822,000). The related deferred tax liabilities of
approximately HK$2,953,000 (2015: HK$2,282,000)
have not been recognised in respect of the withholding
tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Group controls the dividend policy
of the subsidiaries and the directors have determined
that these retained profits are not likely to be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the subsidiaries in the
PRC of the Company’s associate was approximately
RMB107,247,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$119,765,000) (2015: RMB147,261,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$175,830,000)). The related deferred
tax liabilities attributable to the Group of HK$3,449,000
(2015: HK$5,064,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the withholding tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the Group
agrees to the associate’s stated plan of not distributing
these retained profits in the foreseeable future.

6. FIBHRAX
© R=B—XE+=A=+—0 4H

AN B R B B A Bl R D R i A B B
Bt =8 A4 ARE26,446,0007T (4H
£ #929,533,00008 ) (ZE—H
F: ANRE#20,437,0007T  BERLD
22,822,000/8 7T ) © A AN & B Al
ZENBRARIMKRERRX BEEE
REZERE AT ARATRERA R
Kok B W ERDIKZERE &
IR R AERLERIE
B (5 #92,953,0008 L (—ZE—HF:
2,282,000/ 7T) °

R-_E—XNE+-_H=+—8B %4
KARBERRPBHNB DGR
DPERBFNEREZELAENDARE
107,247,0007T (FHZ 7 47119,765,000
BL) (ZE—RHF: ARK
147,261,0007T - #8557 £9175,830,000
BIT) R AEBRERE QA FETE
RA] AR IRZERB &N A
It A0 28 3t 95 R 5% SR B i F B FE T A
EHEERFRENEE 2 HBELER
18 8 153,449,000 L (—ZE—HF:
5,064,000 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 7 December 2015, the Group, Mr. Xu lJialiang, Mr.
Xu Xiaofeng, E/BEBES AR 2 A (in English, for
identification purpose only, Shanghai Zhiqu Advertisement

0., Ltd) ("Zhiqu"), and LEO Group Co., Ltd ("LEO")
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (as amended
and supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 11
January 2016), pursuant to which LEO agreed to acquire,
and the Group agreed to sell the Group’s 51.46% equity
interest of Zhiqu (the “Zhiqu Disposal”). Completion of
transfer of the entire equity interest in Zhiqu took place in
July 2016 and the consideration was received in September
2016. Zhiqu ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and
the Group no longer carried on the business of provision of
integral marketing services. Details of the Zhiqu Disposal are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 8 December
2015, 5 July 2016, 5 September 2016 and 7 September
2016 and the Company’s circular dated 11 February 2016
and the details of the calculation on the gain on disposal of
Zhiqu are set out in note 37(a) to these consolidated financial
statements.

The results from a discontinued operation for the year are as
follows:

A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFZ
R SIS

u\\ /\\I

RZZE—RAF+ZAER A58 ®RE
SEEECRERELA - EBEEBESER
ANAI(TEB])EFNEBEERDABRAF
(IM&D T —EEHzE (KBBHAZ
T-RF—At+—Bz@ExWZET R
W) TFJLt MR ZWE LA EERE
H & H S 51 46%Hx@é(f%’ﬁﬂj%$
B’]) - %E%%Dt’i\ HEE R =T —RF
+A TD&EJ_&{EE /\\_g_/\ijlﬂ%z?%°
BBBETBRAEARRZHBARMAEE
THETRHEBESECHREER - FRE
BHEFEZFBFHRARRBRA-E
—RF+ANE -ZE—R"FtAAAH"
TE-RNFNANARAEZZE—XRFAAL
Az RARGIBHA-_ZT—RF_HA
T-RZERA RHEEBZWRGTE
W BEHN ARG S ISR EMTE37@)

RE—HERIEREEE 2 NFEEEN
T

2016 2015
—RE —T-RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Revenue WA 327,808 376,158
Cost of services AR 7% B 2 (282,059) (330,864)
Other revenue and income o NS € 1,774 1,477
Depreciation e (22) (238)
Employee benefits expenses BIEHMNAX (2,790) (7,374)
Other operating expenses 48 2 (1,796) (3,128)
Share of results of an associate DE— SRR 2 EEA - (384)
Finance costs BhE A AN (29) (226)
Profit before income tax 15 50 A& 71 42,886 35,421
Income tax expense PSR (10,360) (8,949)
32,526 26,472
Gain on disposal of an operation — Note 37(a) H& —TE %%~ s —
fiEE37(a) 204,017 603
Profit for the year from a discontinued KA -—HERIEEEXHZ
operation NF [ m A 236,543 27,075
Profit for the year from a discontinued LTATREERE —EHEKIE
operation attributable to:- REXF 2 RFRE @M —
Shareholders of the Company PN/ ﬂﬂx% 220,606 13,915
Non-controlling interests FEVE I HE 2 15,937 13,160
236,543 27,075
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONT'D) 7. B

The net cash flows incurred by a discontinued operation for

nL =

IHEEER (8)

*IEE%%JJ:%“%%ﬁ‘“FEZﬁiF‘fE o

the year are as follows:— EFEMT
2016 2015
—E-XEF —RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
Cash flows from a discontinued operation HRE—EEKRILEEEE >
HERE
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating &2 %%HE, (FTA)
activities REeFRE 1,260 (18,332)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing & &;E (FrA) FiE
activities IR e FRE (57) 528
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBARE 8 - (314)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BarA/ (nt) F5E 1,203 (18,118)

The assets and liabilities of a discontinued operation classified
as held for sale at the end of reporting period are as follows:—

Kiﬁiﬂﬂﬁi“’*ﬁﬁ?ﬂ’ﬁﬁ’%Z—IEE?@&
REXBEERBBNT

2016 2015

—E-REF —hF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Property, plant and equipment Y% WE K& - 91

Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEMBR R - 12 & RTER FUIE - 76,526

Cash and bank balances Re MIRITERR - 15,112
Assets of a disposal group classified PEABEEHEZ

as held for sale HEREEE - 91,729

Creditors, accruals and other payables JERERR - BT ERA K

H i A R IR - 36,709

Income tax payable JEA PR 1S AR - 2,636
Liabilities of a disposal group classified PEABEHEZ

as held for sale HEKE2EE - 39,345
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a dividend in the
form of new shares of the Company of HK$0.01 per share
amounting to an aggregate of approximately HK$8,210,000
(2015: Nil) was paid to the shareholders of the Company
as the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015
on the basis of two bonus shares for every ten shares of the

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-F—AEF=A=+—AILFE
. BB
EFETREARAE_T—~F+=F

=t— EJLEV&%’*EEH)%H“§°

NEBE_ZE—XRE+-_A=+—BILFE"
SR EE0.01E T 2 AR & ¥ i 2 =X
z%'ﬁ#mzuummam(g, —RHF HE)
1% BB IR =5 A AN A 7 AR B D T 3 R AL
ARz HE - MARARKREIRMN  1EAE
E_E-AF+_A=1+—HBILEEHNXK

Company held.

9. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

/H\’q&/%\ ©

0. B (BE
P

me

) /B
$HREKL
AR FRRAE A SR EA R (FR)

RERE

attributable to shareholders of the Company is based on the B2 ETRE TYEIREL - —
following data:—
2016 2015
—E-KRFE —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Loss)/earnings: g8) /BA:
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to RNARREEEAFE
shareholders of the Company (B18) & (344,617) 63,951
2016 2015
—AE —hF
(Restated)
(&E7)
(Note 9(a))
(FFE9(a))
Number of shares: kil = E '
Weighted average number of ordinary R EERER (FHE)
shares in issue for the purpose BNME2E#TEBR
of calculation of basic (loss)/earnings Z It E
per share 4,377,107,947 573,048,991
Effect of diluted potential ordinary shares R R s E BT
as a result of the share options granted TR 2 — M sE9(b)
— Note 9(b) = -
Weighted average number of ordinary R EEREE (HE)
shares in issue for the purpose of BAME 2B BT AR
calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings Z IS5 8
per share 4,377,107,947 573,048,991
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

9. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT'D)
From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share from continuing operations attributable to shareholders

0. Bk (B18) &N (&)
e BT FFT

ARABEREGEREFBELERBZEK
BEALEE (BR) /BNIREATH

of the Company is based on the following data: — BEtE: —
2016 2015
A —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
(Loss)/earnings: (FE/) BR:
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to RRRIRREEREER
shareholders of the Company (E518) &F (344,617) 63,951
Less: Profit for the year from a discontinued  J& : A2 BIRR R FE(E 2K B
operation attributable to —HERIEREER
shareholders of the Company 2 AF S A (220,606) (13,915)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing M ESREARLEE
operations attributable to shareholders (BB /BRmE2
of the Company for the purpose of RATIRRELKRE
calculation of basic and diluted RELEEBIAFE
(loss)/earnings per share (E18) af (565,223) 50,036
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above FrA o &R E XAt ph et E SR E R L #

for both basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share.
From a discontinued operation

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
from a discontinued operation attributable to shareholders of
the Company is based on the following data:-

E(BR) /BARBERR-
RE-HEKRILEEXK

AABBRREERE —BORUEEEER
ZEBRERNEERN THRE AT BUIRET

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—h*%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Earnings: BR:
Profit for the year from a discontinued RRRIRRELKE
operation attributable to shareholders of —HERIEREEBT 2
the Company NG 220,606 13,915
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT'D)

From a discontinued operation (cont’d)

9.

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

gk (B1E) /&F (&)
A —EE KA ¥ ()

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
(Restated)
(geE5)
(Note 9(a))
(MF3E9())
Number of shares: RGEA :
Weighted average number of ordinary A EERERBFME 2
shares in issue for the purpose of BEEITERRZ
calculation of basic earnings per share INHE 19 8L 4,377,107,947 | 573,048,991
Effect of diluted potential ordinary shares ER N ERE
as a result of the share options granted BT TRRYE
— Note 9(c) — M EE9(0) 191,034 -
Weighted average number of ordinary M EEREERNME 2
shares in issue for the purpose of BETERRZ
calculation of diluted earnings per share InHEFEHE 4,377,298,981 | 573,048,991
2016 2015
—B-XF | —T—1F
(Restated)
(KeE7)
Earnings per share: BREF:
~ Basic (HK cents) — &K (B 5.04 243
— Diluted (HK cents) —#5F (Bl) 5.04 243
Notes:— PIEE: —

(@) The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2015 for the purpose of
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share has been
adjusted and restated upon the rights issue of the Company
which was completed on 11 April 2016 and the bonus issue of
the Company which was completed on 30 May 2016.

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR

() MAEEREARBEERNME 2BE
E-AFt_A=+—HALFEZDHET
Bz nEFEHEE R AR FERR —
T-RFOA+—BEXRARRBALARE
TRZE-RFREA=THTERERKERAE
Mg &S -
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SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

168

9. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT'D)

Notes:— (cont'd)

(b) The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for both
years does not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding share options since their exercise would result in
a reduction in loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2016, while the adjusted exercise price of those share options
are higher than the average market price of the shares for the
year ended 31 December 2015, which are both regarded as
anti-dilutive.

(c) The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015 does not assume the conversion of
the Company’s outstanding share options since the adjusted
exercise price of those share options are higher than the
average market price of the shares for the year, which is
regarded anti-dilutive.

10.RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The Group had participated in a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme") established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately in independently managed and administered
funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme are made by both
the employer and employee at 5% on the employees’
salaries. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

All employees of the entity in Australia are entitled to
benefits from the employee’s complying superannuation plan
on retirement, disability or death. The entity is responsible for
making contributions to the plan at the current statutory rate
of 9.5% of employees’ wages or salaries. The entity's legal
or constructive obligation is limited to these contributions,
which are recognised as an expense as they become payable.

9. B (BR) /&% (&)

Misx: — (&)

b) HEMEFEZ2ESRES (BB /&BF
Bl R AR AN R A) 2 18 AR 1T (5 B AR e e 8
B RARTEZSERERESEZC
E—RFE+_A=Z+—BULEEFEZ2ERE
BRL MzSHRECKAZRTFEES
REBE-_Z—AF+_A=+—BILFE
2RO E WHEEAREE -

(O HEEBEE-_FT-AF+-_A=1+—HLF
EzE8REERNEY BERRARAZH
RTEBREEER REAEZFERE
ZRAERTEESNAFE 2Rk FiHm
B IR s R -

10,28 P& ) Al A

AEEB2ERE CRFIMERATE SR & F
) Rz zablELBE2HE ([RES
&) AT 2 ERMRET B R E A E
LEEDNPRABE THBIESER-
BIEEFTECHRNILEEF S 25% A
5 hARINMEERKFEELHFI - -BES
FEAHSA] AERUE R SR FE A 2 K o

RPBEERZEEH2EPBRTZEN
BREBRNENGTE B ERRE
BREBZEAFEZETADLL  FENK
BAGHEIE L SR UNEBBRRER - K
SEMEERKBEANABNE—FERR
Bt SIEL AR 2 H - EE T AHRK
A R ERUE R SR FE A 2 (K

BNERNZERENEIKN BRIISLT
FOZHEBERAKGTE ZEN -ZE
BREREETIEXFENERAELXR
9.5% [Al &% &t Bl 7K - % H B H) VK IE Sk ik
ERETERRZFHR RREFHHRS
ENRHERSEM-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

EE—NFf A= —HIFE

11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND NEEME MEEME
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors AEERAFEREE N 2MEF
during the year are as follows:— BT : —
Basic
salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other scheme  Share-based
Notes Fees benefits Bonus  contributions payments Total
ExEd.
2ER RIK KRB A
Mzt He HAEF i FEIE ERZAR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TR

2016 “B-RE
Executive directors:- HIEE -
Zhang Xiongfeng RIEE 144 1,656 - 18 5,768 7,586
Zhang Peiao RIEE 7 1,368 - 15 2,421 3,876
Hung Kenneth HER n n 1 4 - 159
Wu Mei Chu BE i 18 18 - 1 - 37
306 3114 11 3 8,189 11,658
Independent non-executive BUEHIES -
directors:-
Wong Siu Keung, Joe Bk 144 - - - - 144
Leung Ting Yuk PHEE v 45 - - - - 45
Wang Zhiwei TE# v 30 - - - - 30
Wong Ching Yip TIFE v 4 - - - - LY}
Lin Ting HE vil 34 - - - - 34
295 - - - - 295
601 3,114 " 38 8,189 11,953
2015 —Z-1f
Executive directors:- HIES -
Zhang Xiongfeng Gyl 126 574 1,800 18 4,535 7,053
Zhang Peiao Fig 63 1317 230 - 2993 4,603
Hung Kenneth HER 63 63 10 4 - 140
252 1,954 2,040 22 7,528 11,796
Independent non-executive BUHTES . -
directors-
Wong Siu Keung, Joe Bk% 126 - = - - 126
Wong Ching Yip TIFE 63 - - - - 63
Lin Ting HE vii 5 - - - - 5
Luk Chi Shing fee 5K vii Iy - - - - )
Wu Qimin REH iX 18 - - - - 18
254 - - - - 254
506 1,954 2,040 22 7,528 12,050
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d)

(i) No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

(i) None of the directors waived any emoluments during the
two years.

(i) Appointed with effect from 1 October 2016
(iv) Appointed on 18 May 2016

(v) Appointed on 1 August 2016

(vi) Passed away on 28 June 2016

(vii) Appointed on 7 December 2015 and resigned with effect
from 22 June 2016

(viii) Resigned with effect from 31 August 2015

(ix) Appointed on 24 August 2015 and resigned with effect
from 7 December 2015

Bonuses are determined on a discretionary basis by the
Board with reference to the Group’s operating results for
the current financial year and individual performance.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Among the five highest paid individuals, one of them
(2015: two of them) is a director of the Company.

The emoluments (excluding amounts paid or payable by
way of commissions on sales generated by the individual)
and designated band of the four (2015: three) highest
paid, non-director individuals during the year are as

11.ZE = B

whEEMT (F)

() EEM = (&)

() AEEYEAEENERNME F
LGOI 9 AN SEL
ZBGKIERRERAH(E -

(i) REMEAREEENEEAME -

(i) RZT—R"F+HA—-HEZRE

(ivy RZZ—~"FRA+\BEZE

V) RZE—RENA—BEZE

vi) RZZE-—REXAZTNBENS
Z-RAF+_A+HEZERR

(vii) A=
—E-RFERNA-+-HBE

Vil ZFE—RFN\A=1+—HEHE

F-AFN AT HBEEZRER
T-AFTZAEAET

e P LSS LT
§ 8 %4 R ELA RS T B

(b) BHEEZESHFAL

AEEREAZREHFALF —R(ZF
—hF MB)R/ARBES-

REAFENZ(ZE—RE =ZZ2)K
SHIFEFTATZHE (TEEREE
ABEEMUABEEAE N ENZ K
BH)REEEHMEED T —

follows:—
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Salaries and allowances e KER 17,973 13,004
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH K 63 52
18,036 13,056
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

NEZ=MEMEEME (B)

11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (cont’d) (b) EEESF AL (&)

The emoluments of the four (2015: three) individuals ME(ZE—RAF: =R )&eH AL

with the highest emoluments are within the following ZBENTUATEHE: —
bands:—
2016 2015
—B-XF | —T—EHF
Numbers of Numbers of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$ B TT
Nil — 1,000,000 = %£1,000,000 - -
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1,000,001%1,500,000 - -
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1,500,001%2,000,000 - -
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2,000,001%2,500,000 - -
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2,500,001%3,000,000 - -
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 3,000,001%3,500,000 - -
3,500,001 — 4,000,000 3,500,001%4,000,000 - -
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 4,000,001%4,500,000 1 3
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 4,500,001%5,000,000 3 -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for

loss of office.

RER AEELERALL RS IFHA
T MEAME ERRIIEMAR
SESMAREBEE 2 #E LIERBE

Biwm(E
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BRI T

n\’T\

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F—

172

NFEF+—A=+—HIFFE
12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

STATEMENTS

12.9%  WE K

&% 1

Plant,
machinery Furniture
Freehold Leasehold and Office and Motor
land Buildings improvements equipment equipment fixtures vehicles Total
HE BE:
KAERLH | = NERE HERRE BAERE BRR%E RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FAL Fan TEL TEL TEL TEL
Cost:-
At 1 January 2015 N —ﬁﬁ H A - - 9,600 38,093 6,016 607 263 54,579
Additions arising from acquisition WERBARMELRE
of subsidiaries - Note 36 ~ [t 1136 7,670 65,199 1,442 0,935 2,166 132 287 87,831
Additions RE - 160 2,078 9,362 1,381 45 489 13,515
Disposals of subsidiaries - Note 37 HEMBAT -7 - - 13) - (644) 2 (137) (1,016)
Disposals ik - - - - (31) - - (31)
Witten off bk - - 1) - - - - (1)
Classified as held for sale - Note 7 AEARELE-HED - - - - (112) - - (112)
Exchange realignment HNEFE 89 754 (44) 45 (121) (5 €] 715
At 31 December 2015 RZF-1%F+-A=1+-H 7,759 66,113 12,786 58,435 8,655 757 899 155,404
Accumulated depreciation:- 2itiE: -
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-f-H - - 6,445 21,243 2,953 307 178 31,126
Charge for the year TEENR - 136 2232 15,549 1,823 148 190 20,078
Disposals of subsidiaries - Note 37 HENBAR KT - - (128) - (60) 6) 23) 17
Disposals e - - - - (28) - - (28
Witten off big: - - 9 - - - - 9
Classified as held for sale - Note 7 ARARELE-HET - - - - 21) - - @1
Exchange realignment SERE - 2 (29) - 97) 2 - (122)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+ZA=1-R - 138 8,511 36,792 4,570 451 345 50,807
Net book value:-
At 31 December 2015 7,759 65,975 4275 21,683 4,085 306 554 104,597
Cost-
At 1 January 2016 7,759 66,113 12,786 58,435 8,655 157 899 155,404
Additions arising from acquisition )
of subsidiaries - Note 36(a) ~FiE36(a) 12,625 101,820 - 6,862 31 2 - 121,340
Additions HE = = 5937 10,586 2,184 618 667 19,992
Disposals HE - - (476) (962) (1,591) (35) (300) (3,364)
Written off i = - (107) (12) (113) (38) - (270)
Exchange realignment SEFE (655) (4,610) (195) (293) (407) (18) 37) (6,215)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-R"E+ZA=1-8 19,729 163,323 17,945 74,616 8,759 1,286 1,229 286,887
Accumulated depreciation:- ZitHE: -
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~5-A-H - 138 851 36,792 4510 451 345 50,807
Charge for the year AERHNR - 3,131 1816 16,041 1,780 133 264 23,165
Disposals k-4 - - (450) (865) (1,344) 31 (80) (2,770)
Witten off s - - ()} (12) (112) (38) - (233)
Exchange realignment HEHE = (121) (140) (37) (314) (16) @) (632)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RAETZA=1-R = 3,148 9,666 51,919 4,580 499 525 70,337
Net book value:- BEFE: -
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RAETZA=1-R 19,729 160,175 8,279 22,697 4179 781 704 216,550
Notes:— MEeE: —
(@) The freehold land is situated in Australia. (@) FZKAZFERETHALPRIN -
(b) At 31 December 2016, the freehold land and buildings were by RZE—RFFT_A=1+—H8 KkAZE®E

pledged to a bank to secure the borrowing facilities granted to
the Group (Note 39).

T RBFHER T —RRITARFAR
SEET 2 EERE (KHE39) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE—NFf A= —HIFE

BIREYE

HK$'000
FHET

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R-_E—-—RFE—H—H"

1 January 2016 —E-RF+-A=+—HBK

—ET-RF—-H—H -
Additions NE 90,159
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RiERERZ A FERD (9,049)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZZE-AHE+ZA=+—H 81,110

Notes:—

(a)

The Group's properties interest held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for long-term capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties. During the year ended
31 December 2016, these investment properties have been
leased out. The addresses of the properties are Shops on 1/F, 2/F,
and 3/F, Glassview Commercial Building, 65 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long, New Territories, Hong Kong. The properties are held
under medium-term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31
December 2016. The valuation was carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Centaline Surveyors Limited,
who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued. Management had discussed with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation was performed at the end of the
reporting period.

At 31 December 2016, the investment properties were pledged
to a bank to secure the borrowing facilities granted to the
Group (Note 39).

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on
a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:—

— Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using Level 1
inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2
inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fair to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using significant
unobservable inputs

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR

GETE

(a)

AEERBELEHERAURRESHA
ERPEAFEZMERMNETIARFEE
A EXNBRREMERIZREWED
R-BE-T-—ARF+-_A=1+—HLF
B -ZEREMECHE - HEYEU
MNREBMATHB LRSI RE X
REME 2BR3ERmM - HFEMWEHZRT
HHEERE-

REBZEREMENR _T—RF+_H
=t HEEH-ARMGERBNEA
EBAPRAEMITERAR (KETH
BAEREANEMBEEREE AR B
HEEZYERENE MTBRRIER
MERRER) ETT RSP RETARH
bk ERECRASMAEERR
EEBRETIW

R-F—AF+-A=+-A BEWE
PEAT-MRTUESAAEEET
EEEE (H339) -

AFEER

TRIRARERN HERRIREE R L
SHREZMEZRATE »BEREBBMBER
EEANER R FEFEIPAEED
—EEBRAFEBE A FEAEZLR
T2 E T OIS ERM M B ABEZ A
BRUEREBEMET: —

FE—MAE: ERE—RE AR (B
HREEXABNRTERREARM
BHRERAERE) FFEQAFE

— B_RfMAE:ERE_fE AR (B
REMEE - RWABERBARE:
ANERABRIAEREGARE) R
EQAFE - THEEHABERER
RS BUIR R B AR

— F=-RMAEEEAABRTABEEA
HEAERNFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE—NFf A= —HIFE

13.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

Notes:— (cont'd)

;Z\ﬂ_'\:l

(d) Fair value hierarchy (cont'd)

174

BEREWME (&)
i — ()

d AFEER(E)

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016
categorised into
STEAUTERNA-Z—RF
+=ZA=+-AzAVEHE

Fair value at
31.12.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

R-Z-R%

+TZA=t-H
ZAYE £-& - E=R
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER

Investment properties BEW*

— Commercial - Hong Kong -BE-BR 81,110 - - 81,110

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

Valuation techniques and input used in Level 3 fair value
measurements

(e)

REBZE_ZT—RF+_A=+—HLFE"
F-REE QR EMEER TFEZA
FEHE="R(ZZE—LF: &)

FE=MAVFEFEMBZHERM R A
g

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique input Range
Al REAEERARE =
Investment properties Direct Adjusted unit rate Approximately HK$19,416 to
— Commercial — Hong Kong comparison of saleable area HK$21,865 per square feet
method (HK$/square feet)
BREWMHE HELEBIE EREBKHEEMLER SFHRNI9416EBT
—“BE-FB (BL/FAR) 21,8658 7T

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted unit rate of
saleable area in isolation would result in a significant higher/
(lower) in the fair value of the investment properties.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is recognised
in the line item “Loss on fair value changes of investment
properties” included in other gains and losses.

(E15)% PR B A B A S (S O B A A,
(R) B EHITEWERT B A IG5
ms Gas) -

BREMEN R FEFAERE MW E K EE
ZIREYMERFEES 2 EE]EE®

7
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

14.GOODWILL 14.79 %
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—H—H -
Additional amounts recognised from business BEBEHMERZEINETE
combinations — Note 36 —P15E36 36,880
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary — Note 37(b) R H & — B R B IHFER
—MI7E37(b) (7,713)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZZE-RF+T_A=1T—HK
—T-RF—-H—H 29,167
Additional amounts recognised from a business BEBEHMERZEIINEE
combination — Note 36(a) — i 3E36(a) 6,702
At 31 December 2016 R=-ZF—-XR"E+=-A=+-—H 35,869

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs") that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. Before
recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated as follows:—

REBE P IEZEBE R EER DB

EERREREFAHERZRSELE

LL(UE%EE B 7)) o 7 RO E & 18
CEEZREEDSRNT —

2016 2015
ZE-RE | —FT—hO%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Provision of medical diagnostic and REBEZHRBRREES
health check services business 6,416 6,416
Provision of hospitality and related services AR E KBRS 75
business 29,453 22,751
Provision of integral marketing services REESEHEREERS
business - 7,713
35,869 36,880

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired.

For provision of medical diagnostic and health check services
segment, the recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. A discount factor at
a rate 20.08% was applied in the value in use model. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
growth rate of 2%.

ERAEXNEREERAT | =2

AREBEFETEHERMERF - 26 A
RPN E A RERER - RIFE AR R
A

MIBRHBEDEHNERRBESHME B
cESBENZAREBeRBIERNEREBE
HEARTE LT ERAREEREN &
CHFEHUBEE 2 RERE - FEH
ZEANR - EHEEFRER 720.08% 8
MIRERSE - AFHE A RENER
2% MR REITHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

14.GOODWILL (CONT'D)

For provision of hospitality and related services segment,
the recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. A discount factor
at a rate ranging from 14% to 15% was applied in the value
in use model. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the average growth rate of 2.2%.

15.0THER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14758 (8)

MIBHB/EREEARESBME  REE
SR SBENENFERERTE
FHEE At ERARBEEREEMECH
FHYKBEE 2T ReERE - FHAZE
KB EEEEFRFEA TN T14% E15%
BRI RS R - AFHE 2R REANE
FA2.2% F91E REELT

15. EmEEEE

Wine

Copyright membership Total
hi € EEefE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&TT FATT
Cost:— PR - —
At 1 January 2015, E’q\:%ﬁ—ﬁi—ﬂ—ﬁ .

31 December 2015 and —hAF+=-A=+—H

1 January 2016 &:7 NE—H—H - - -
Additions arising from WHEHBARMEEARE

acquisition of subsidiaries — M 5E36(a)

— Note 36(a) - 2,625 2,625
Additions NE 4,500 - 4,500
Exchange realignment NS - (86) (86)
At 31 December 2016 RIEBE—RE

+=B=+—H 4,500 2,539 7,039
Accumulated amortisation:i—  ZFtE 0 —
At 1 January 2015, E’:\:?—?—ﬁi—ﬂ—ﬁ .

31 December 2015 and —hAF+=-_A=+—H

1 January 2016 &:? NE—H—H - - -
Charge for the year RFE R 150 264 414
Exchange realignment SN f B - (10) (10)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF

+=—A=+-—H 150 254 404
Net book value:- BREDFE: —
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RE
+=A=+-—H 4,350 2,285 6,635

176

Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited | Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

16 RNBERAl 2 KE

2016 2015

—B-xE —BF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Cost of unlisted investments in associates B E ARIIELMIRE Z AR 272,969 276,776
Share of post-acquisition profits and reserves, — J&{5 W ﬁ%&mﬂ&ﬁﬁ

net of dividends received 25 BT AR 2 2,527 32,194

275,496 308,970

Less: Impairment loss R EEE (198,532) (7,778)

76,964 301,192

Included in the cost of unlisted investments in associates
at the end of the reporting period is goodwill arising on
acquisition of HK$243,017,000 (2015: HK$247,657,000).

The following list contains only the particulars of the
associates, unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market

prices are not available:—

REBEERF AR E N RIIE FHIREKA
ZUEEE A 2 & A243,017,0005 T (=
T —F 4 :247,657,00087T) °

TREHABE QR (REIREH SR
BZILMEXRER)ZFHE: —

Proportion of

ownership
Form of interest Group's
business Place of held by a effective  Principal
Name structure incorporation/ subsidiary interest  activity
il PE
igsE o X&H
£ ABRBEA SMRLLE RRERLA EREE IBEK
Something Big Technology Holdings Limited  Incorporated Cayman Islands 28.8% 28.8%  Design, development, marketing
(“Something Big") and distribution and operation
of mobile-online games
AEMBERERLDA ([XERE]) Bl RS Rt B RERETREE
BaBEEE
Nuada Holdings Limited Incorporated Cayman Islands 30% 30%  Provision of corporate financial
R EERERD A Eaiiava HERS advisory services
A E I B A AR
HENEERHER 28 (Shanghal Established PRC 20% 20%  Design and development of
Rezhua Digital Technology Co., Ltd.) mobile-online games
P31 HE A RREGHBEER

ERAEXNEREERAT | =2
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F—NNF+_-_A=+—HIFFEZE
16.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D) 16.RNBERRIZIRE (&)
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity FrEZEHERA NI RAEREN G
method in the consolidated financial statements. e E N
The summarised financial information in respect of the BERBERNRRERBZMBENNESH
material associate, Something Big, is set out below:— AN L —
2016 2015
—EB-AF —hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Gross amounts of the associate & A R4EEE
Current assets MENVEE 82,269 167,005
Non-current assets EMBEE 20,803 56,597
Current liabilities mEEE (21,217) (37,4006)
Non-current liabilities EMBEE (852) (501)
Total equity R 81,003 185,695
Equity attributable to shareholders of RNERHE R R B ER
Something Big 80,493 184,628
For the For the
year ended year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
BZE HE
—F-RF —hEF
+=A T=A
=+—Hk | =+-AL
FE FE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue WA 75,778 219,424
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BE) 5f (80,112) 95,035
Other comprehensive loss for the year FANEMEEERE (12,023) (6,603)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year F A2 M (E1E) Wes A58 (92,135) 88,432
Reconciled to the Group's interests in HEAREEREBE AR Z
the associate R AR
Gross amounts of net assets attributable to AERERRELEE
shareholders of Something Big FEETE 80,493 184,628
Group's effective interest REBZER#ER 28.8% 28.8%
Group's share of net assets of the associate rEEREGBE AR EEFE 23,182 53,173
Goodwill Bk 236,329 236,329
Impairment loss on investment in an associate M —EE& AR ZI&E
e &R (191,511) -
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBRRERTEZ
Something Big EmREE 68,000 289,502
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B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

16.)\3_/\H£w\/_\ TZ%X,\ (/t\/\)

EERR AEERTHERRBELMS
BEAREEA AEK - RNEEEEZFH
ERAIEELAMEEBRZMBERR
MHEN G B LA EEREER-

16.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D)

In the opinion of the directors, the remaining associates of
the Group are all individually not material to the Group.
Aggregate financial information in respect of the Group's
share of these associates’ results and other comprehensive
loss are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

17.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. 0]t HERE

2016 2015
—REF —T—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Listed shares in Hong Kong, at fair value REB LMz KH
(RAFEFE) 88,573 85,358
Listed shares in the PRC, at fair value B T 2 B {p
(BRAFEFTE) 232,973 -
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FELEMRARE
(RRAFEFTE) 13,782 17,500
335,328 102,858
Note:— MisE: —
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the gross loss in respect REBE_ZE—R"E+A=+—HLLFE"
of the Group's available-for-sale investments recognised in other AEEBREMEZEREPRAMHITHDER
comprehensive income amounted to HK$56,214,000 (2015: B 518 4850 /556,214,000 7T (— T — R 4F:

HK$4,066,000), of which HK$14,077,000 (2015: HK$20,248,000)
was reclassified from other comprehensive income to the statement
of profit or loss for the year.

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group's
investments in the following company exceeded 10% of the total
assets of the Group:—

4,066,000/ 7 ) » H 114,077,000 7 ( ==
— R4 120,248,000 7T) ERFANE M2
WamEFrBEEERK -

EA:; NE+ZA=Z+—B AEERUT
RAZRENEEELRBASB 2 REEN
10% : —

Place of Principal Particulars of Interest

Name establishment activity issued shares held held
=B P 3Lt 2 FTEEK e BITROFR FR¥s Rz
LEO PRC Manufacturing and sale Ordinary share listed on the 0.814%

of industrial and Shenzhen Stock Exchange

domestic water pumps (Stock code: 02131)

and internet services
R A THRARRAKREER jti%ﬂxﬁ\/ékﬂl\%f%’??&%ﬁﬁ 0.814%

$H 5 DA R M 4% IR (A 5% - 02131)
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BE T NF+_A=+—HIFE
18.INVENTORIES 18.1F7 8
2016 2015
—E-REF —hF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Finished goods BIPK i 12,507 4,432
19.AMOUNTS DUE FROM CONTRACT 19.EEHNEF K
CUSTOMERS
2016 2015
— R —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contract costs incurred plus recognised FREH 2 & KK INEZE
profits less recognised losses to date RNEFR A DR
B2 R E R 47,087 20,353
Less: Progress billings B HEE IR (14,379) (6,498)
32,708 13,855
20.DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20. FEU AR X - & M FE T 1B
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-HF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Lig=a FHERT T
Trade debtors FEWE 5 8RR 147,696 126,543
Less: Provision for impairment loss 3 : J3i {8 /&5 18 B 4% (b) (45) (45)
(a),(c) 147,651 126,498
Loans and loans interest receivables EUE X & E A B (d) - 41,124
Deposits b 19,288 13,944
Other debtors and prepayments H b fE UG BR IR M FE N X 22,115 17,190
189,054 198,756
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20.DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONT'D)

Notes:—

(a)

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
based on the financial strengths of individual customers. In
order to effectively manage the credit risks associate with
trade debtors, credit evaluations of customers are performed
periodically. The credit period given to trade debtors ranged
from 30 days to 180 days. The aging analysis of trade debtors
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date
and net of provisions, is as follows:—

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE—NFf A= —HIFE

20 B IR K I R TR FRIA
(#&)

WisE: —

() KTEEBECEEBRSETR  —RNAER
BRZVRENAEE - BEAEEER
B2ER s BBEERR K2 FE BT
HEEEE ERESERZEEHN T
308180H AR E HAAR - IR IE % E A B
ZRWE ZERFERD N (NBREE) W
Ti—

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—hHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FABT

Within 1 month L11E A 117,262 111,179
1 to 2 months 12218 A 11,137 8,470
2 to 3 months 22 31E A 3,920 3,723
Over 3 months 3 A+ 15,332 3,126
147,651 126,498

Impairment loss in respect of trade debtors from third parties
is recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors.

The movement in the provision in impairment loss during the
year is as follows:—

(b) REFE=T7 ZEWE 5 RFRERIRIAR
BRI BRIFARER/ZERAZK
B 7] BE MEPRCF BB UL BT R E &
1875 B EUCE 5 MR TR 8H o

FAREBEREZESBERINOT : —

2016 2015

—E-AF —T-h#F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FEIT

At 1 January/31 December w—A—HB,/+=ZA=+—AH 45 45
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

=+ ) =+
20.DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20. FEWER R - I & R FB N FRIR
(CONT'D) (&)
Notes:— (cont'd) s : — (&)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired (0 WEREBEZERKREZEFER
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually W IR R ER SR EBRE . EWE F R
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:— RZEEATINTRAT - —
2016 2015
—EB—ARE —ZE—0fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHETT
Neither past due nor impaired R ER IR AR R (E 141,362 123,251
Less than 1 month past due BB AR 1E A 769 2,634
1 to 3 months past due B 2318 A 31 121
Over 3 months past due 2@ AR A3 E A 5,489 492
6,289 3,247
147,651 126,498
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a A7 4% 380 B T AR OB (E 2 JE R IR B R & D AR
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history BN E TP AR
of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a £ 780 2718 37 f8 R (B B0 FE U GRIB B2 % 7 B R
number of independent customers that have good track record EEEBRIOTRERB I BIREFPE@A-
with the Group. Based on past experience, management BEAALR EXEEREMEEARZSE
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect ERELRERE RAZSEHBZEER
of these balances as there has not been a significant change BRWREREHRZFERDERFA
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully B E - REB W EFHEMAZFLE
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these 2o
balances.
(d) The Group's loans and loans interest receivables, which arise (d AEEZERAEREFFBREEEE
from the money lending business, are denominated in Hong 7% WA TTEHE °
Kong dollars.
At 31 December 2016, there were no outstanding loans RZE—R"RF+ZA=+—H BEHR
or loans interest receivables. At 31 December 2015, loans BEERIERERFE -R_E—AF
receivables are unsecured, interest bearing at an average of +ZA=+—H BRERAEER 1%
approximately 11% per annum and are repayable with fixed BN% 2 FFERFEBWEARBEAEERF
terms agreed with the Group's customers. W 2 B EHRAEE -
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20.DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONT'D)
Notes:— (cont'd)
(d) (cont'd)

The ageing analysis of loans and loans interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on contractual due date,

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—AFf-A=f—AUFE
20.JEWBR TR - 12 & R FE N FUR
(%)
fisE: — (48)
@ (&)

RBEHR BREFRERNERES
WEIME ZREDITIT - —

is as follows:—
2016 2015
—E-AF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Neither past due nor impaired R ER IR AR R (E = 41,124

At 31 December 2015, all loans and loans interest receivables
were neither past due nor impaired. These related to a number
of third party customers for whom there was no history
of default. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
on individual loans and their respective interest receivables is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been

R-TE—RAFE+T-_A=+—B FBEERK
KW E SR F B RA IR E R E - BT
HETEENCTHRIZF=ZNTEFPAER IR
BRAEER ARREEAREBANZS
A5 ER IR LM Bl & 5K K A B P MR B 2 R E
BRBERDRR B 28D -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

NN FEFABRCSRMEE

Listed shares in Hong Kong, at fair value

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHE T

REE EMZRHG
(BAFEFE) 428,147 327,503

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in the following company exceeded 10% of the

total assets of the Group:—

Place of
Name incorporation
L I AR L 8t B

10% @ —

Principal
activity

IRED

RZE-—RF+_A=+—HB FXEER
TMIRRIZRERHMEBEASREREE

Particulars of Interest
issued shares held held
FEERTROFR Friss

Convoy Global Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands
(previously known as Convoy

Financial Holdings Limited)

BRRRERBRAT MERE

(ARELZERERERAR)

Independent financial advisory
business, money lending business,
proprietary investment business,
asset management business,
corporate finance business and
securities dealing business

BUBMERER XK

BEREXB EEEEER
CRREXBREFIHEH

ERFBIXERERERR

Ordinary shares listed on the 9.49%
Main Board Of the Stock
Exchange

REERFER T2 SR 9.49%
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F
22.

23.

24

184

~NFFZHA=F—HIFE

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSIT AND CASH AND
BANK BALANCES

(a) At 31 December 2016, cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi amounted to
approximately HK$18,983,000 (2015: HK$7,429,000)
and Australian dollar amounted to approximately
HK$8,381,000 (2015:HK$ 2,449,000). Renminbi is not
freely convertible into foreign currencies. Subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange Renminbi for foreign currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

At 31 December 2015, time deposit of HK$13,000,000
was pledged to secure the borrowing facilities granted to
the Group (Note 39).

22.2,
1T4

(a)

}fﬁg*,ﬁﬂﬁ%&fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

RNR-_EFE—RE+_-_HA=+—H &K&
BAARKEFEZR S RIRTTHEH
4 /18,983,0008 L (T — A F:

7,429,000 ) N AR T EZE S
N IR1T 4582 %) 58,381,000 7L (— &

— A 12,449,000 7C) - A REEAT]
B A R IR A INE - B I B HNE B Hl
(&0 R INEGRD 2 8 SHE R
ER AEEEATEBEREET
HNEFFS 2 IRITIFA R KB INE o

RZE—RF+_A=+—H" EH
7 313,000,000/% 7T & A = F K #
NERR FTAEE 2 EERE (M
39) e

demand.

CREDITORS, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 23 B RAR ERT BB LA MR
PAYABLES R FRIE
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —hf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Trade creditors JERE 5 BR K 10,233 4,391
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A % E h FE 1~ /I8 70,270 63,525
Deposits received Bl e 8,034 4,021
Deferred income EEYA 378 403
88,915 72,340
The following is an aging analysis of trade creditors based on AT AARE lb"\i&iﬁﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ% H EffE
the invoice date of the Group as at the end of the reporting NE SRR R DT
period:—
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —hf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within 3 months 3EAZA 9,096 4,050
Over 3 months 31 A LA £ 1,137 341
10,233 4,391
. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 24, [EH o B8 2 RIBEFEARAR R 2
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES I8
The amounts are interest-free, unsecured and repayable on BRARIBEARE EEMARARERESR-
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A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
~NFt A=+ —HIFE

BE—%
5.8 E
AEEZEERROT

25.BORROWINGS

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows:—

2016 2015
ZEB-RF —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMERBE 186,399 153,998
Variable-rate borrowings FEREEE 113,153 -
299,552 153,998
Secured iR 253,552 24,998
Unsecured LI 46,000 129,000
299,552 153,998
The carrying amounts of the above MEEZREEZEAR
borrowings are repayable: L/(T AEEE -
Within one year —FR 134,673 153,998
Within a period of more than one year ~— — 4 LA 181 &8 8 /R 4F HA
but not exceeding two years 7,874 -
Within a period of more than two years — ®4F bA 18N8 3@ 1 HAfE
but not exceeding five years 157,005 -
299,552 153,998
Notes:— MizE: —
The Group's variable-rate borrowings are mainly subject to interest AEE Y I EEE T EAREERTRE

at Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus a spread 1.5% and
Business Lending Rates in Australia plus a spread 0.92%. The ranges
of effective interest rates per annum on the Group’s borrowings are

P BOIN1.5% K8 M & ¥ B FUF K h10.92% &f
B-AEEEEZSFERAERBENT

as follows:
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
Effective interest rate: BRI %
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEEE 6.00 - 9.00% 8.25-9.00%
Variable-rate borrowings FENEEE 1.74 - 4.25% N/A 7~ 36 FB

ERAEXNEREERAT | =2
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

R E—NFEF A= —HIFFEE
25.BORROWINGS (CONT'D)
Notes:— (Cont'd)

Certain loans are subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants, the draw down facilities
would become repayable on demand. In addition, the Group’s
certain loan agreements contain clauses which give the lenders the
right at their sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at
any time irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The management regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and does not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment for so
long as the Group continues to meet these requirements. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 33(c) to the consolidated financial statements. At 31 December

ETEFAEGRECREBEEELRHERRRY
MR ER T A ES HAKEZER AR
PRz B E K AR ERERE UL NEE
ZETEFBHEESE TEIENZEHE
ERERIAER 2GR MTAwRAKERS
BESTE RO N A TATE BRI -

EEETHERHEAZERN 2ETER B
REBREAEEEBEFAZEER BRITHT
ATFEERNEEERTNER - ERAAERE
BREBECRAR E—FFBERANGE M
FRETFE33() R =ZE—RF+-_A=+—8"
MEEREECIRIEE 22 -

2016, none of the covenants relating to draw down facilities had
been breached.

26.NOTE PAYABLE 26.JEN 1B

RZE—AF+A+=H AEEEME—
HW L E = 58174 % #%8150,000,000
BT ZEMEIN BEHFERER([E
REE]) REBEREREELRAESR
H100% - ERBE BN ETHEHEE
BRFHIHBH - EFREENEREFTNEA
1237% c ZHBR —_TE—XFRHA+=
HERBEE - FANENEHREEEHHI W

On 13 October 2015, the Group issued an unsecured loan
note which carrying interest at 9% per annum (the “Loan
Note”) in an aggregate principal amount of HK$150,000,000
at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount
of the Loan Note to an independent third party. The Loan
Note would mature on the first anniversary of its issue date.
The effective interest rate of the Loan Note was 12.37% per
annum. The amount was fully repaid on 13 May 2016. The

movement of the note payable for the year is set out below:— N
2016
—E-ARF
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZTE—hF—H—H -
Proceeds from issue, net of transaction BITFSRIE IREEER SRR
cost incurred 145,500
Interest charge MEER 3,896
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RAF+_A=+—8K
—ET-RF—H—H 149,396
Interest charge MEER 8,479
Interest paid SXREARSS (7.875)
Repayment (=85 (150,000)
At 31 December 2016 R=-ZB-AE+=ZA=+—-H -
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BHE T NF+_A=1+—HIFFE
27.DEFERRED TAXATION 27 B R TE
An analysis of the deferred tax balances in the consolidated ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz LER IR &SRR D AT
statement of financial position is as follows:— N
2016 2015
—E—XRF —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT
Deferred tax assets EIET I E B 5,467 3,042
Deferred tax liabilities FEEHIEEE (4,996) (4,217)
471 (1,175)
The followings are the deferred tax balances recognised and TERRFAMER ZELERIBARREEZ
movements thereon during the year:— g —
Taxable
temporary
difference
(Accelerated)/  arising from
decelerated  amount due
Tax tax from contract
losses allowances customers Total
EKe#H
EFRE
(M&E) / EBEEZERH
REBE  RAERHE ORER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAET
At 1 January 2015 RZE—hFE—A—H 1,211 1,666 - 2,877
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeBE R B A A - (676) (3,564) (4,240)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss - Note 6 T A%,/ (BEFEMNE)
— 56 283 (139) 59 203
Fxchange realignment N F B 4 (2) (17) (15)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R -ZE—H%F
TZA=t—-Bk
—Z-R"¥-A—H 1,498 849 (3,522) (1,175)
Acquisition of a subsidiary - Note 36(a) e BB B 8 A ] — BT 5E36(a) - 204 - 204
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss - Note 6 5t A/ (318 ) B35 —
&6 1,966 103 (605) 1,464
Exchange realignment HME R (37) (10) 25 22)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—-RE
+=A=+- 3,427 1,146 (4,102) 471
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HE—F

—NFLFZA=F—HIFFE
28.SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL 28R ARNRERERE
MANAGEMENT
(a) Share capital (a) B=&
Number
Notes of shares HK$'000
By sE B & B FAT
Authorised:— EE T —
Ordinary shares of R=-—Z2-1%—-A—-8"
HK$0.01 each at 1.1.2015, “E-H¥+ZA=+—-8"
31.12.2015, 1.1.2016 E—R"F-HF—-HK
and 31.12.2016 —R~E+=ZA=+-—H
EREEIIBTZEER 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:— BETRARRKRK:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZE—RF— ﬂ =
at 1.1.2015 FREE.01E T 2 T@Ak 2,496,122,430 24,961
Issue of shares through placing FREEETRG () 171,486,000 1,715
Issue of shares through placing FREEETRNG (ii) 533,520,000 5,335
Issue of shares through placing FERREETRG (iii) 2,500,002,000 25,000
Issue of shares through placing FREEETRG (iv) 1,140,210,000 11,402
Capital reorganisation PRANEH (v) (6,157,206,387) (61,572)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZT—hF
at 31.12.2015 and 1.1.2016 +tZA=+—Ak
—F—- /\E ﬂ H
SREECETZEERK 684,134,043 6,841
Rights issue of shares B B (vi) 3,420,670,215 34,207
Bonus issue of shares AAREETT (vii) 820,960,850 8,210
Exercise of share options TR (vii) 410,470,000 4,104
Ordinary shares of R-B-XRE+=-A=+—H
HK$0.01 each at 31.12.2016 SREEIET2EER 5,336,235,108 53,362
Notes:— aE: —
() On 12 May 2015, a total of 171,486,000 new shares of the () RZE—AHFRA+-_B AR

188

Company were issued at a placing price of HK$0.151 each.

(i) On 5 June 2015, a total of 533,520,000 new shares of the
Company were issued at a placing price of HK$0.176 each.

(i) On 21 August 2015, a total of 2,500,002,000 new shares
of the Company were issued at a placing price of HK$0.1

each.

(iv) On 15 October 2015, a total of 1,140,210,000 new shares
of the Company were issued at a placing price of HK$0.045

each.

HE ﬁ1 71,486,0000% #7 IX 15

BEIR0.151 T -

Gy »=

%% 17533,520,0000% 3 %

FHR0.17658 7T
(i) A=

T-RAFANARR ARAE
N REER

Eﬂ’if‘f

I+
AN

—RFNAZ+—B &2

a /\?*TTZ 500 002 OOOHx AR - B

(ivy R= &
HE,
J%iﬂxo.ms;‘%ﬁo

—AEF+tA+HRHE AXRAAE
140,210,0000% 37 I% 17

BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28.SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(a) Share capital (cont’d)

Notes:— (cont'd)

(v) The Company implemented the capital reorganisation after
the change of domicile becoming effective which involves
the following:—

M

every ten issued and unissued existing shares of
HK$0.01 each was consolidated into one share
of HK$0.10 (“Consolidated Share”) (“Share
Consolidation”) and where applicable, the total
number of Consolidated Shares in the issued share
capital of the Company immediately following the
Share Consolidation was rounded down to a whole
number by cancelling any fraction in the issued share
capital of the Company which may arise from the
Share Consolidation;

the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the
issued Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value
of each issued Consolidated Share was reduced from
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 (“Capital Reduction”);

immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of
the authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares of
HK$0.10 each was sub-divided into ten new shares of
HK$0.01 each; and

the credits arising in the books of the Company from
(i) the cancellation of any fraction in the issued share
capital of the Company which may arise from the
Share Consolidation; and (ii) the Capital Reduction was
credited to the contribution surplus account of the
Company within the meaning of the Companies Act
1981 Bermuda.

On 11 April 2016, a total of 3,420,670,215 new shares of
the Company were allotted and issued on the basis of five
rights shares for every one ordinary share of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$0.155 per rights share.

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE—NFf A= —HIFE

AN EREE (F)

(a) &= (&)
MaE: — (&)

ARAERNEMARRETRAEA -
BERERTIIRE: —

v)

)

B+REREECOEITZE %
TERAETREROGEHA K
HEEA0I10BTZERG (6K
71) ([RHEH]) AR (E
BIRBERNEHE ARQEE
BITRATR Z A HBRMD A BB
AR BB BITIRAFERD
AU E £ 2 TR AT AR
BEY:

BBEHARAZBREAR (B
B#TA G R E1H0.098 L) M
HORA R E 2 BEITIRA 8
BERITEMHRMNEEHCIOET
HIRZE0.01B T ([BRAHIRE ) :

ZREIRABIRE  FREE. 108
TLZEEBRETAEFHRND DT
BTRESREECIE L ZHK
m: &

H()EHEARA D HEITRAF
Betn & 6F M B A 2 TR A - B (i)
BRAHBRRARRKRBEEE 2E
REFABRE-NAN—F27
EMREZARRREHRBRR-

RZEBE—X"FEA+—H8 &AQ7A
BEEA - BRARQRALTERERR
A% (5 B A% 1D 2 B2 LA R BR B B AR 4R
B R% 0. 1558 T Bl B R #1746 H
3,420,670,2 158 # I 17 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

Eix—

E-—ANFTH=F—HIFE

28.SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(a) Share capital (cont'd)

Notes:— (cont'd)

(vii) On 30 May 2016, a total of 820,960,850 new shares of
the Company were allotted and issued on the basis of two
bonus shares for every ten ordinary shares of the Company
(the "Bonus Shares”) as final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2015. The Bonus Shares were credited as
fully paid by way of capitalisation of an amount standing
to the credit of the contributed surplus amount of the
Company.

(viii) During the year ended 31 December 2016, 410,470,000
shares of the Company were issued pursuant to the
exercise of 410,470,000 share options by the grantees
at an aggregate subscription price of approximately
HK$26,187,000.

The new shares allotted and issued rank pari passu in all
respects with other shares of the Company then in issue.

(b) Capital management

190

The Group's equity capital management objectives
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders commensurately with the level of risk. To
meet these objectives, the Group manages the equity
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions by paying dividends
to shareholders, issuing new equity shares, and raising or
repaying debt as appropriate.

AN ERNERE ()

(a) &= (&)
MaE: — (&)

(i) A= Z /\Eﬁﬂ = NNCTR

FEAETRARR L BIRIESE ML
H&Z%Eﬁﬁaé’é&%ﬁﬁ & 820,960,850
B m ([AARET]) (EAEHZE=
T—FAF+-_A=+t—HIFEZX
BHRE AR TBBIEERRARZEH
BHREZERBERN 2R
EBIR -

viy REE-Z—XNF+-_A=1+—HItF
£+ 410,470,0008% A~ & Bz 17 B AR 15 &
% A1T1410,470,00017 B A% A% M 2517
AR BB 5 #926,187,00075 7T ©

B R MBEIT RN A
RRRHMEREHITZRNEZAR
FHAL

(b) EXERE

AEBRAERBEZEARRASE S
1543 48 4R B ) DA Re R AR BR 4 4 ER |
SKFHBzEELR BEXIE
Wﬁ$ﬁl”ﬁ%$ &8 N A e
AR @Lﬂﬂ B R [ B 3R
Hk@ BITEaRHOREENE
EBEKEDAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28.SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL 28. 1%
MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
(b) Capital management (cont'd) (b)

The Group's equity capital management strategy, which
was unchanged from the previous periods, was to
maintain a reasonable proportion in total debt and equity
capital. The Group monitors equity capital on the basis
of the debt-to-equity capital ratio, which is calculated
as net debt over equity capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debt less cash and cash equivalents. Equity capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital
and reserves). The debt-to-equity capital ratios at 31
December 2016 and at 31 December 2015 were as

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

AREERNERE (&F)

EXEHE (&)

AEBRAERREEEBTEMAMER
B ESEREER A EIEE A
AEBIZNEBFERRAGTE ZE
TFHEE AL REZERA - EEFRE
?ﬁﬁﬂ‘%?@ HRESMERASER

Ho-RABREE=FIAHEKIER (B
Hx$&f5ﬁ{%) E/\\_E—/\EWL_H
=t+t—BRZE—ARAE+_A=1T—
Az EBEERALERNT: —

follows:—
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Total debt (EErEE 459,050 438,290
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B REe RERREIER
— continuing operations —BBREET (88,311) (91,587)
— discontinued operation —BRIEREER - (15,112)
Net debt B HRR 370,739 331,591
Total equity BmEE 1,053,318 854,004
Net debt-to-equity capital ratio B FREARE IR AR L & 35.20% 38.83%

ERPEERERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHEr T NF+_A=+—HIFEF
29.RESERVES 29.(# 1
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances $’$ E 4R a8 B AR ER > BR ) B R
of each component of the Group's consolidated equity EROB RN EEREHERF B
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in E§$ A E Bl 4 55 30 0 PR F) B F R 2
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual MEBFEEHINN T —
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:—
Capital
Share reduction  Contributed Share options  Accumulated
The Company premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total
NG ROGEE BRAHAEE B8RS BRERE ZitER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn TiEn TiEn TEn FiEn
At 1.1.2015 RZZ-1%-A-H 226,016 81,470 - 4,844 (31,529) 280,801
Shares issued - Note 28(a) BETRG—ME28() 377,651 - - - - 377,651
Share issuing expenses RAEITRZ (15978) - - - - (15978)
Capital reduction and transfer to RAERRERZES RS
contributed surplus - Note 28(a)(v) — i 528(a)v) (587,689) (81,470) 701,518 - 29,213 61,572
Share-based payments - Note 35 PARR D AR 2/ F—MiFE35 - - - 2,556 - 12,556
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFEE2AEEAHE - - - - (26,591) (26,591)
At31.12.2015and 1.1.2016 R-B-RET-A=+-HBR
“2-"E-R-H - - 701,518 17,400 (28,907) 690,011
Rights issue of shares - Note 28(vi) ~ RR {7 A% — 3 528 (vi) 495,997 - - - - 495,997
Bonus issue of shares - Note 28(vi) 4L A% 317 — i 5E28(vi) - - (8,210) - - (8,210)
Share issuing expenses RO BITREY (15,395) - - - - (15,395)
Exercise of share options - Note 28(viil) 1715 & i — B 3E28viil) 29,631 - - (7,548) - 22,083
Share-based payments - Note 35 IR BER 2 F7 M35 - - - 15,610 - 15,610
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFEZEEEAHR - - - - (535,962) (535,962)
At 31.12.2016 RZE-RE+ZF=1-H 510,233 - 693,308 25,462 (564,869) 664,134
Notes:— Mizr: —

192

(@) Share premium

The share premium account of the Company includes premium
arising from the new issue of shares in the current and prior
years netted of share issue expenses.

(b) Capital reduction reserve

The capital reduction reserve arises from the capital reduction
and shares sub-division from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 per share.

(c) Contributed surplus

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company, is subject to compliance
with the bye-laws of the Company and the laws of Bermuda,
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

(a) M&1@m(E

ARARZBE R ERBERNFRERBESF
EBITHAE £ 2 i BRI ETRA -

(b) BAHIR

P 7 B R B A9 3 A 7 A 22 B AN )R fef 8

AERRR7H0.10 BTE 0.01 Bite

(0 EBEHA%

BEARE-NAN-FREE AREZ

ERBRHBRNETERLTAD

& T IR - HE

AESTARRZ REAR R B REE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

29.RESERVES (CONT'D)
Notes:— (cont'd)

(d) Share options reserve

The share options reserve arises on the grant of share options
to eligible participants under the scheme. Further information
about share-based payments is set out in Note 35.

(e) Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company was
HK$128,439,000 (2015: HK$672,611,000).

30.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

29.Ft (4B

ffeE: — (&)
(d) BREERE
BRERBDAREZTERNAER2E

ATEREBRENEE - BEUARDBE
2Rz — T ERENMIE3S »

(e) Al IK{# R

RZE—RNF+_A=+—H dAHD Ik
FARRGIIEE 2 EE 2 <5 /5128,439,000

B (ZZE—RE 672,611,000 7T) o

30. 8 AN HHE

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—h*%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for but FEMBRMRARUTEIE
not provided for in the consolidated ERTAEBEREHE 2 E AR -
financial statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and — WYX WERRE
equipment 4,200 112
— acquisition of investment properties — R EM S - 66,660
4,200 66,772
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

31.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases for
which the aggregate minimum lease payments would fall
due as follows:—

LGS HEAE
AEBAEREEA
R-B—AF+=A=+—R FEER

NAREEEHER N2 REITAEZ &
BEHENRAEENIA TR —
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2016 2015

—E-REF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 23,008 25,531
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (BREEMTF) 24,167 13,713
47,175 39,244

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases were negotiated for an
average term of three years with fixed monthly rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$ 1,409,000 (2015: Nil). All of the properties
held have contracted tenants for the next one to two years.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease receipts:—

REMENTERARERERLEME
e BRERIHOFARM=F"
WAEEAM-

AEBESHAA

FRFTBREN Y E M & WA A%91,409,000
BL(ZE—HF8) MEFEEMEY
MARRK—EMFEBECFNOEL-

RZE—RNF+_A=+—H K&EED
R T RKKERERESBRBFE]
# —

2016 2015

—E—XRE —RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Within one year —F K 2,675 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFHF (BREEEMTF) 1,179 -
3,854 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group had significant transactions
and balances with related companies, some of which are
also deemed to be connected persons pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules. The significant transactions with these
companies during the year, and significant balances with

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

NEBENBHALRS

@ FR AEEEBHRARTEEAR
P Mg B BB A RRER FIR
ETRANTR AR REEANL - FRE
AZERAETZERR G ERBEH
REWREZEBRGEHRIAT - —

them at the end of the reporting period, are as follows:—

() Connected persons and related parties

(A) Continuing connected transactions as defined in

() BFENLREHAL
(A) BIZE R F A AIZE20E BT RE

Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules ZIREBER S
Party Nature of transactions 2016 2015
X555 XEME “E2-RE —T-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT
Certain group companies of non-controlling Licence fee paid - 1,421 1,184
shareholder of a subsidiary Notes 32(a)(I)(A)(ii) and (iv)
—RRB AR ZFERRRE TRELR ENEHFE-
P E32(a)()(A i) K (iv)
- Note 32(a)()(A)i) Rental expenses paid - 4,023 3,475
Notes 32(a)(I)(A)iii) and (iv)
— B 53260 BEREERS -
B EE32(a)(1)(ANiT) K (iv)
Medical consultancy fee 2,038 1,635
Note 32(a)(N(A)V)
BERHAE
PR EE32(a)(I(A)v)
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NFEF A= —HIFE

32.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(a) (cont’'d)

196

() Connected persons and related parties (cont’d)

(A) Continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules (cont’d)

Notes:—

(i)

(ii)

Town Health International Medical Group Limited
("Town Health International”) has been the
holding company of (i) Town Health Healthcare
Services Limited (“"THHSL"), a substantial
shareholder of Luck Key Investments Limited
("Luck Key"”) (a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) since 27 February 2015. As
such, each of Town Health International and its
subsidiaries (being associates of Town Health
International) has become a connected person of
the Company for the purpose of Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules since 27 February 2015.

Town Health Medical and Dental Services Limited
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Town Health
International, “THMDS") as licensor, and Hong
Kong Health Check Centre Limited (an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
"HKHCC") as licensee, entered into a licence
agreement (“Previous Licence Agreement”) on
1 September 2014 in relation to the grant by the
licensor to the licensee of the exclusive right to
use, enjoy and occupy certain premises as a health
check centre for the Group (“Licensed Premises”)
at a monthly licence fee of approximately
HK$118,000.

On 29 May 2015, THMDS as licensor and HKHCC
as licensee entered into another licence agreement
("New Licence Agreement”) in relation to the
grant by THMDS to HKHCC of the exclusive right
to use, enjoy and occupy the Licensed Premises as
a health check centre for the Group from 1 June
2015 to 31 August 2017 at a monthly licence
fee of approximately HK$118,000. The Previous
Licence Agreement had been terminated on 31
May 2015 and was replaced by the New Licence
Agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(a) (cont’'d)

() Connected persons and related parties (cont’d)

(A) Continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules (cont’d)

Notes:— (cont’d)

(iii) Certain group companies of Town Health

International as landlords, and certain subsidiaries
of Luck Key as tenants, entered into three tenancy
agreements (“Previous Tenancy Agreements”)
in relation to the renting of a number of premises
as a health check centre, laboratory and supporting
office for the Group (“Leased Premises”) on
20 August 2013, 19 December 2013 and 26
May 2014 respectively at the respective monthly
payments (inclusive of rents, management fees
and common facilities charges) of approximately
HK$108,000, HK$90,000 and HK$122,000.

On 29 May 2015, Fair Jade Group Limited
("Fair Jade"”) as landlord and the Company as
tenant entered into a master tenancy agreement
("Master Tenancy Agreement”) to regulate
the renting arrangements of the Leased Premises
and the properties owned by Fair Jade or its
subsidiaries which the Group may rent during
the term of the Master Tenancy Agreement
("Renting Arrangements”, each a “Renting
Arrangement”) from the respective landlords
during the period from 1 June 2015 to 31
December 2017 at rents to be determined by
the parties to each Renting Arrangement with
reference to the then prevailing market rents
on premises comparable in location, area and
permitted use. The Previous Tenancy Agreements
had either expired or had been terminated on
31 May 2015 and were replaced by new tenancy
agreements entered into pursuant to the Master
Tenancy Agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
E—ANFITZA=F—HIFE

32.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(a) (cont’'d)

i\\’T\

Eix—

198

() Connected persons and related parties (cont’d)

(A) Continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules (cont’d)

Notes:— (cont’d)

(iv) The continuing connected transactions under the

New Licence Agreement and the Master Tenancy
Agreement, together with the transactions
under the Previous Licence Agreement and the
Previous Tenancy Agreements for the period from
27 February 2015 to 31 May 2015, are exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement but are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The transaction constitutes continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules and is exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(B) Others

(i)

On 7 December 2015, the Group, Mr. Xu
Jialiang, Mr. Xu Xiaofeng, Zhiqu and LEO
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(as amended and supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 11 January
2016) in relation to the Zhiqu Disposal at
a total consideration of RMB754,000,000,
RMB237,010,000 of which was payable to
the Group. Completion of transfer of the
entire equity interest in Zhiqu took place in
July 2016 and the consideration was received
by the Group in September 2016. As each
of Mr. Xu Jialiang and Mr. Xu Xiaofeng was
a substantial equity holder of Zhiqu and
thus a connected person of the Company at
the subsidiary level, the sale and purchase
agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute connected transactions
of the Company. The Zhiqu Disposal
represents a lucrative opportunity to the
Group to realise its investment in the
provision of integral marketing services
business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(a) (cont’'d)

() Connected persons and related parties (cont’d)
(B) Others (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

On 14 January 2016, Timely Investments
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) as the purchaser, Dynamic
Creative Limited and Joyful Dream Limited
as the vendors and Mr. Xu Xiaofeng and Mr.
Xu Jialiang as the guarantors entered into
a sale and purchase agreement in relation
to the Group’s acquisition of 49% of the
issued share capital of Charm Team Group
Limited (“Charm Team”), which was owned
as to 51% by the Company immediately
before completion, at the consideration
of HK$2. Each of the vendors and the
guarantors, being the respective ultimate
beneficial owner of each of the vendors, is a
connected person of the Company. Through
the acquisition, the Group has avoided to
form any new joint venture with any other
third party while the vendors intended to
dispose of its investments in Charm Team.

On 14 January 2016, the Company
entered into an underwriting agreement
(“Underwriting Agreement”) with the
underwriters, namely Turbo Pointer Limited
("Turbo Pointer”) and Astrum Capital
Management Limited in respect of the
Rights Issue pursuant to which Turbo Pointer
(beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
Xiongfeng (“Mr. Zhang”), the Chairman
of the Board and an executive Director and
a substantial shareholder of the Company)
as one of the underwriters, has undertaken
(i) to apply for and pay for 190,539,000
rights shares (the “Committed Shares”)
provisionally allotted to it pursuant to the
Rights Issue and (ii), in the first priority over
the other underwriter, to subscribe on the
terms of the prospectus documents for the
rights shares not taken up by the qualifying
Shareholders (the “Untaken Shares”) (to
the extent of 181,833,626 rights shares,
being the commitment of Turbo Pointer
under the Underwriting Agreement). Turbo
Pointer was not entitled to any underwriting
commission in respect of its underwriting of
the Rights Issue. On the completion of the
Rights Issue, Turbo Pointer has subscribed
for 190,539,000 Committed Shares
and 181,833,626 Untaken Shares at an
aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$57,718,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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32.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(a) (cont’'d)

200

() Connected persons and related parties (cont’d)

(B) Others (cont’d)

(iv) On 6 October 2016, Joyful Honor Limited

("Joyful”) (wholly-owned by Mr. Cho Kwai
Yee, Kevin (“Mr. Cho"), a director of Luck
Key) and THHSL as the subscribers and
Mr. Cho as the guarantor entered into the
subscription agreement with Luck Key in
relation to the subscription of approximately
22.28% of the issued share capital of Luck
Key at the aggregate subscription price of
approximately HK$21,136,000 (the “Luck
Key Subscription”). As (i) Mr. Cho being
the guarantor is a director of Luck Key, and
Joyful is wholly-owned by the guarantor,
and (ii) THHSL is a substantial shareholder
of Luck Key, each of the subscribers and
the guarantor is a connected person of
the Company at the subsidiary level. The
subscription would enable the Group
to retain the key management of Luck
Key and to enhance the dedication of
the key management of Luck Key in
the development and operation of the
healthcare business of the Group.

On 8 April 2015, Successful Treasure
Investments Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as the purchaser,
Lunch Box Asset Management Limited (a
company beneficially and wholly-owned
by Mr. Zhang), as the vendor and Mr.
Zhang as the warrantor entered into a sale
and purchase agreement in related to the
acquisition of 20 issued shares of US$1.00
each in the issued share capital of Cannes
Films, representing 2% of the issued share
capital in Cannes Films at a consideration of
HK$300,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I E AN

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

32.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY REAENEBMALRS (B)
TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
(a) (cont'd) (a) (&)
(I) Connected persons and related parties (cont’d) () BEANLREBBAL ()
(B) Others (cont'd) (B) At (&)
(vi) Details of balances with connected (Vi) AREBRERBREBEA LR
persons and related parties at the end of BN T ERFBERN
the reporting period are set out in the e BRRAKRES M
consolidated statement of financial position &M 24
and in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
() Related parties, other than connected persons () BHEA L (LHBEEAL)
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Transactions:— RE: —
Income received from provision of —EEE RRIREES
integral marketing services from EHRE AR Z WA
an associate - 1,046
Financial advisory services fee charged ~ — B & A & WEL 2
by an associate M EEREE - 600
(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) TEEEAEMS
The remuneration paid to key management personnel of ENAEEFZEEAE (BEEAR
the Group including the Company’s directors is disclosed RIER)CHEREE T BREN T
in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. 11458 -

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR 201
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS

(a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group manages
currency risk, when it is considered significant, by
entering into appropriate currency forward contracts.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts monetary assets and monetary liabilities
of the Group denominated in currencies other than
functional currencies of the relevant group entities that
are considered significant by the management are as

BEMTARR 2 HEEMIEE

(a) EM Rk

EREREEHNEREHMIES
MIAZRAFEIXAKESREND
MR- AEBRERRRAREXNE
BB VEENEEERRANERE
R o

RBEMR ERERRBEAZA
SENRASEERNINEER A
MEESHENEREERERABY
FREEWT : -

follows:—
Assets Liabilities
B5E =L

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XEF —hE |ZB—AE |ZE—hEF
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T FET FA&T

United States dollars Erx([Ex])

("UsD") 302 3,891 - —
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE(TAR%]) 453 2,113 - -
Australia dollars (“AUD") Bt ([BT]) 6,063 3,108 = -
Hong Kong dollars B ([Er])

("HKD") 334 - (66,936) (1,894)

7,152 9,112 (66,936) (1,894)

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation
of USD, RMB, AUD and HKD when such currencies are
different from the relevant group entities.
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B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL B TERR - MENIEE
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D) (&)

(a) EEBR (])

(a) Currency risk (cont'd)

The following tables detail the sensitivity of the Group to
a 10% decrease in the above foreign currencies against
the functional currency of the corresponding group entity,
except for HKD against USD since HKD is pegged to USD.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 10% change in foreign
currency rates. On this basis, where USD, RMB, AUD
and HKD weaken against the functional currency of the
corresponding group entity by 10%, there will be an
decrease in loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 by
HK$5,979,000 and decrease in profit for the year ended
31 December 2015 by HK$722,000.

T%EiZE%WJLtQI\ﬁ%E*HFﬁEIE

Th e & BT (E10% B 78 & B 1) U
Ft“EEB/\ TTEETESE At ETT
HABTRIN - BREREDITEBE S X
HEEINEDENEBIEE TRF

Jf?;ﬂo% E‘WI\@

RE BB

IR EE - BEEXTT AR R
&/%Eﬂi‘ﬁfﬂ’ﬁlié’\ﬁf REEKEE
0% HE_E—"F+_A=+—

HIFFEEBEEBER 5,979,000

TomEE—_ZE—ARF+-_A=1+—
A 1 F = & FR 4 722,000 7T

2016 2015
—E-RF — R4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

USD against RMB ETLHARE (30) (389)
RMB against HKD AR BT (45) (211)
AUD against HKD BT BT (606) (311)
HKD against AUD BITH BT 9 189
HKD against RMB BILTHARE 6,669 -
5,979 (722)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a party to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the Group by failing to
discharge an obligation.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
debtors and bank balances. With respect to trade
debtors, the Group has also adopted credit policies,
which include the analysis of the financial position of
its clients and a regular review of their credit limits. The
Group maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
and actual losses have been less than management’s
expectations and the Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to clients with an appropriate
credit history. Also, the Group’s bank balances were held
by major financial institutions located in Hong Kong,
Australia and the PRC, which management believes are
of high credit quality. Accordingly, the overall credit risk is
considered limited.
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33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D)

(b) Credit risk (cont’d)

(9]

204

Carrying amounts of financial assets of the Group as at
31 December 2016, which represented the amounts of

33.% Fh T A R

(%)

(b) FERR (&)

AEBEREEN_F
=+ EI ZEEEE (BN EGREER

Rz tE LR

—RNF+-H

maximum exposure to credit risk, were as follows:— R RE )T -
2016 2015
—B-AE — T
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Debtors and deposits JEM R R R IZ® 181,389 268,739
Pledged time deposit BT BEFER - 13,000
Cash and bank balances e MIRITE 88,311 93,699
269,700 375,438

The directors are satisfied with the credit quality of
financial assets.

At the end of the reporting date, approximately 70%
(2015: 73%) of the Group’s debtors was due from the
Group's largest debtor. The directors of the Company
believe that the risk will be gradually reduced as the
Group's customer base has been diversified and revenue
has become less concentrated during the year.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities and capital management. The Group manages
liquidity risk by monitoring its liquidity position through
periodic preparation of cash flows and cash balances
forecasts and periodic evaluation of the ability of the
Group to meet its financial obligations, measured by the
debt-to-equity capital ratio.
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BE T A — H = — G
33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL B TERR - MENIEE
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D) (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (cont'd) (o) REBEEL£RMR (&)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

Specifically, for borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the lenders’
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their

TRHAFNKERRAEEHITLES
MAEBNRGAOME  DERAY
AEBRA R E (BERES KF X
AT ERF BN WARFEF X A
RBHRERAROREF KT E) LA
KREFEEFNREAHE

Qﬂ

T OHREERERERGRK
BIERATBHERAZERE fﬂ;‘E
WEE ZOoMBETREERAIRA
NRz&xFHENRES R EWEJH‘L
ERAGITEE Z R AR E A B

5 3w
Jﬁ?ﬁ%

unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate (R FI
effect.
Within Total Carrying
1 year or undiscounted ~ amount at
on demand 1-5 years 5+years  cashflows  31.12.2016
R=B-RE
T=A
R—FRH AERRE =t+-8H
REX -BLE RENE RELE ZEHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THR TER TER TERT
2016 -~E
Creditors, accruals F‘&“ T$ F‘&“.ﬁrg"ﬁ?&
and other payables H R FE 70,847 - - 70,847 70,847
Amounts due to ERWERA
non-controlling FEBRIRR 2 B
shareholders of
subsidiaries 1,743 - - 1,743 1,743
Fixed-rate borrowings TEEE 102,567 98,347 - 200,914 186,399
Variable-rate borrowings FEREE 40,855 81,487 - 122,342 113,153
216,012 179,834 - 395,846 372,142
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33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D)

(c) Liquidity risk (cont'd)

206

BEMTARR 2 HEEMIEE

(%)
(© FBESABR (B

Within Total Carrying
1 year or undiscounted amount at
on demand 1-5 years 5+ years cash flows — 31.12.2015
RZE—R%F
TZA
R—FAK AERRE =t-8
REX —2hf RENE MELE ZERHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET FHET TAT
2015 “E-EF
Creditors, accruals ERE&ENR Bt ERR
and other payables H R FRE 90,451 - - 90,451 90,451
Amounts due to ANLEING
non-controlling FERRIRE 2B
shareholders of subsidiaries 17,617 - - 17,617 17,617
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 163,958 - - 163,958 153,998
Note payable EREE 163,500 - - 163,500 149,396
435,526 - - 435,526 411,462

Borrowings with repayable on demand clause are
included in the “within 1 year or on demand” time
band in the above maturity analysis. The following
table summarises the maturity profile of the borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the lenders will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

iR BREERRZEE DAL
XEHOMERRH (R —FARKE
ZSK ] o T RBL AP 7 1R B KEIE R
Z BB RIR B 5 M % BT & 2 197 T I8 5K
AAEZAHBER - REERBRERA
WA RSB R SR e A%
BB EETRRERAR
TTHRERBEERNFER-EFR
REZEEERRRBRERGAEANRE Z
AHEERBHIEER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (cont’d)

33.% Fh T A R
(&)

() RBEZRER (&)

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

Rz tE LR

Within Total Carrying
1 year or undiscounted amount at
on demand 1-5 years 5+ years cash flows 31.12.2016
RZB-RE
t=A
R-FR5 AFERRE =t+-8H
REX -Enf RENE REER ZEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FERT FERT FERT
2016 AL
Borrowings that contain BEREREERKLEE
a repayment on
demand clause 5,762 54,442 27,172 87,376 75,583

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s fair
value and cash flow interest rate risks mainly relate to
fixed and variable rates borrowings respectively. In order
to exercise prudent management against interest rate
risk, the Group continues to review the market trend,
as well as its business operations needs and its financial
position, so as to arrange the most effective interest rate
risk management tools.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the Hong Kong
Inter-bank Offered Rate and Business Lending Rates in
Australia. The Group manages its fair value interest rate
risk, when it is considered significant, by entering into
appropriate swap contracts.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase
or decrease is used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, there
will be a increase/decrease the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 by HK$566,000 (2015: Nil).

ERAEXNEREERAT | =2

(d) 7= b
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HEENEXEH- F%:ivtﬁ“'JTﬂMLﬁ
BEEEE AEEEERMTSBE
HELEEBFRKMABBMMR szz
FREERMNXRAREREIA-

AEBzRERENXERBREESF
REBRITRERELBRMNEBEER
%‘J—y—/?@ ZISE.E/\/\‘M;%H EK
BB VEAEZIRHENERER
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UNTHERESMIHBRERBRERERZ
FEEENEXERET -BEEOMD
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2 _EFHE T BRS0ME B T E 1R E A
REIBAge ) 2 5T o WAIR EF
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33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D)

(e) Market price risk

208

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument traded in the market
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The
Group manages market prices risk, when it is considered
significant, by entering into appropriate derivatives
contracts.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale
investments and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has available-for-sale
investments of HK$335,328,000 (Note 17) (2015:
HK$102,858,000) and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$428,147,000 (Note 21)
(2015: HK$327,503,000) and exposed to market price
risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks as at 31 December
2016.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 10% higher/lower:—

— Loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
decrease/increase by HK$42,815,000 (2015: Profit
for the year increased/decreased by HK$32,750,000)
for the Group as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
and

— Investment revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$33,533,000 (2015: HK$10,286,000)
for the Group as a result of the changes in fair value
of available-for-sale investments.

TRIARRZIEERIEE
(#&)

(e) MZEHEER

MBERRREEENMISERE
malBEMHE ERXS2eMIAEZR
FEFARBESRENE 2R K
EERNERERRENFG BB LE
BEZTETEGHNEEMSERRR -

$Elﬁ%“*ﬁﬁ—ﬁ HERE kiR
RFEFABRZEREE 2 BAR
BRTELRERRR-

RZE—RE+_A=+—"H K&
B % A 0] B &% & 335,328,000/ 7T
(Mt3E17) (—ZZ—FH 4 : 102,858,000
BIL)REBEAFEFAEEZEHE
428,147,000 7T (M 5F21) (=
— F 4 :327,503,0000 7T ) K M B
BERRR -

TXZHREREDTIIRER —F—K
FH_A=1T—HAZBREERRERE

—
JE °

WHEBBRATAEEB®REHTE
10% ' 8 : —

- XEE#HZz-_Z—X"F+=A
—t—HULEFEEZEBERD, 1
hn42,815,0008 7L (= E— A F -
F R55 FI18 00,8 432,750,000
7T REAEAFEFARBRZ
TRMEEATFEES: &

- AEEEREEHHEHEBLIMNR
4>33,533,0008 L (—ZE—RHF:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D)

(f) Fair value estimation
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:—

— Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at
the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fair to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

B TERR - MENIEE
(&)

(f) DFEMET
() BAFEIKRZZHMTA

TRIRAEERFERRIZE
FUHEEFEZERMTIAZAF
B DBEREBMBREERE3
BIRFEAEIPAEEN =@
BRI FERBE - R FEAEZR
B T3 2 T 5k E £ M5 P 3 &
ABEZABEREREEEMNE

):E .

- BREE ERE-RBA
B (BNAE R & S & R 3t
% FUI37E)E BB 0 155 0 R
H1E) B ATHE

- B-RMEEERFEF-_HBA
g (AIRBENEE —ROA
BERa A8 BETEARE
THEBERBABRB)GHERYF
B-TABREABERER
P 35 BUR &Y B A BUR

- F=ZAMBEERBETAR
R ABBERTE
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
EBEx_—F

(i) Financial instruments

~NFFZHA=F—HIFE

33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D)

(f) Fair value estimation (cont'd)

carried at fair value

B TERR - MENIEE
(&)
() ATEMES (&)
() BAFEANEZSMTA (&)

(cont’d)
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016
categorised into
PEAUTERNR-Z—RF
TZA=t+—HBZAFEFE
Fair value at
31.12.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
i
—E—AF
t=A
== 5
2AYE @ E-®& 2 E-®&  B=8&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FExT FERT
Available-for-sale A ERE
investments 335,328 321,546 - 13,782
Financial assets at BN ERF AEZ
fair value through LERMEE
profit or loss 428,147 428,147 - -
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2015
categorised into
DEAENTELRNN_Z—RF
+ZA=+—HZAR ﬂ?ﬁ.ﬁri
Fair value at
31.12.2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E—RF
+=A
=+—H
2 NYE — F_R FE=MR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FAET FAT FAET
Available-for-sale At ERE
investments 102,858 85,358 - 17,500
Financial assets at BAFERF AER
fair value through L ERMEE
profit or loss 327,503 327,503 — -

210

Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited | Annual Report 2016




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL BEspmTAERR 2 MEENIEE
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D) (&)

(f) 2FEMH (&)
() ZrFEI Kz LA (HF)

(f) Fair value estimation (cont'd)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

(cont’d)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements is EAE=RAFEFEZERNT: -
as follows:—
Significant

Valuation unobservable

technique input Percentage

M E R AR R ] B R ) A BUE AL
Unlisted available-for-sale Market Discount for 70

investments comparable lack of
companies marketability

JEEMAHHERE M5 A & LA A HERZ AISHE M 2 ¥R

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investments
was determined using the price to book ratio (P/B ratio)
of comparable listed companies adjusted by lack of
marketability discount. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. As at 31 December 2016, it is estimated
that with all other variables held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount for lack of marketability by 5%
would have increased/decreased the Group’s other
comprehensive income by HK$1,686,000(2015:
HK$2,013,000).

The movements during the year in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows :-

FELEMAIEHEREZ ATFETRA
AELLE EMARIZWERR (B
SAHERZINEMAER)ET - AF
Brf2EEBRZAIEEE ZITEE RAE
e —_E—R"F+-_A=+—8"
HEt M E M SR EHFIE
= Al S 2 ER L0
5% ¥ EAEE 2 H b2 Uk s 1
/41,686,000 7T (—E— R4 -
2,013,000/ 7T) °

FAE=BRATEFAEZHERZEHN
™=

2016 2015
—NEF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Unlisted available-for-sale ELEMAIEEERE:

investments:

At 1 January n—HA—H 17,500 -
Payment for purchase BARE — 17,500
Fair value adjustment NEEFHE (3.718) -
At 31 December WR+=—A=+—H 13,782 17,500

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, there were no transfers between financial
instruments in Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3.

REBE_ZE—REER_FT—RHF+=
A=+—BIFE F—HEF -
R T A B EEE. EE AR
HHE=F-
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33.NATURE AND EXTENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT RISKS (CONT'D)

(f)

Fair value estimation (cont’'d)

(ii) Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

34.KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management makes various estimates based on
past experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
financial statements are disclosed below:—

()

(i)

212

Impairment of property plant and equipment,
goodwill and other non-current assets

Determining whether property plant and equipment,
goodwill and other non-current assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the property plant and
equipment, goodwill and other non-current assets have
been allocated. The calculation of value in use requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

Investment properties

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December
2016 based on the appraised market value valued by
an independent valuer. Such valuations were based on
market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the estimate, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period. The carrying amount of investment
properties at 31 December 2016 was HK$81,110,000
(2015: Nil).

33.% Fh T A R
(&)

(f) DFEMT (&)

Rz tE LR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT'D)

(iii) Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities

acquired through business combinations

The Group applies acquisition method to account for
business combinations, which requires the Group to
record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair
values on the date of acquisition. Significant judgement
is used to estimate the fair values of the assets and
liabilities acquired.

(iv) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

(v)

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade debtors, including the current credit worthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments
arise where events of changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the actual result
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the trade debtor and
impairment loss on trade debtors in the year in which
such estimate has been charged.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products with similar nature. Any change in
the assumptions would increase or decrease the amount
of inventories write-down or the related reversals of
write-down made in prior years and affect the Group's
net assets value. The Group reassesses these estimates at
each end of the reporting period.
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34.KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT'D)

(vi) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Australia. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(vii)Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted was priced
using a binomial option pricing model which requires
the management’s estimates and assumptions on
significant calculation inputs, including the estimated
life of share options granted, the volatility of share price
and expected dividend yield. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate, which would in turn affect the share-based
payment expense recognised for the period and its
corresponding impact on the share option reserve.
Estimates relating to the evaluation of share options are
discussed in Note 35(a)(iv).

35.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share option scheme

214

Under the terms of a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 12 November
2010, the Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion,
to grant options to eligible participants including any
employee, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture
partner of the Group (including any director, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent
or not, of the Group) who is in full-time or part-time
employment with the Group at the time when an option
is granted to such employee, or any person who, in the
sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or may
contribute to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT'D)

(a) Share option scheme (cont’d)

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and
help the Group in retaining its existing employees and
recruiting additional employees and to provide them with
a direct economics interest in attaining the long term
business objectives of the Group.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Scheme would not exceed 1% of the aggregate number
of shares for the time being issued and issuable in any
12-month period under the Scheme.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

The exercise price will be determined by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of the closing price
of the shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on
the date of the grant of the option or the average of
the closing price of the shares on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant of the option or the
nominal value of the shares.

The Scheme shall remain in force for the period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date of the Scheme
which was 12 November 2010.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options that may be
granted under the existing Scheme limit is 410,480,425
shares of HK$0.01 each (representing approximately
7.69% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date this report). As at the date of this report, options
carrying the rights to subscribe for 410,470,000 shares
of the Company (representing approximately 7.69% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
this report) have been granted under the existing Scheme
limit.

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
to be determined and identified by the Board to each
grantee at the time of making an offer for the grant of
an option, but in any event no later than 10 years from
the date of grant but subject to the early termination of
the Scheme.

There is no performance target which must be achieved
before any of the options can be exercised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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35.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT'D)

(a) Share option scheme (cont’d)

35. AR (0 A AL TR

(a) FBRAERTE (

Z R (E)

&)

(i) The terms and conditions of the share options () HEZBEREZIGREIEHEET
granted are as follows, whereby all options are T ﬁﬁﬁ i AR A 15 LA SRR A7 A
settled by delivery of shares:— EREE -

Adjustments
Adjusted exercise Outstanding due to the Outstanding
price per Share after asat Cancelled Granted  Rights Issue Exercised asat
completion of the Rights 1 January during during  and Bonus  Lapsed during during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Vesting date Issue and Bonus Issue  Exercisable period 2016 the year the year Issue the year the year 2016
RZB-AE
F%?‘Eﬁif?%ﬂﬁ&ﬂﬂﬂ RZF-RE BEBRAR 2B
B PA ] -f-B B2 =t+-8
ERA REEH BEEH EREHGRE  ARA HATE  REAEE  RERRR FE OREREE RERGR HATE
Director - Zhang Xiongfeng 19 June 2014 31 December 2015 HK$0.973 T 1 January 2016 - 30 June 2016 5,716,357 (5,716,357) - - - - -
EX-RiEl ZE-MESATAR ZB-1F “%-E-R-RZ
+ZA=1+-8 ZE-NERAZTR
22 June 2015 30June 2016 HK$14667 T 11uly2016-31 December 2016 22674671 (22,674,671) - - - - -
—E-1f ZE-NERAZTR “F-EtR-RZ
AAZTZR Z3-RF+ZA=1-B
19 January 2016 31 May 2016 HK$0.161 T JuneZO% 11 NovemberZOZ(] - - 47,293,536 20,750,648 - - 68,044,184
37 E-AthE ZFR “E-RERA-
7A=1-R ka3 o ﬂ+ A
Director - Zhang Peiao 19 June 2014 31 December 2015 HK$0.973 T 1 January 2016 - 30 June 2016 3,810,904 (3,810,904) - - - - -
E5-RiE ZE-MESATAR ZB-1F “E-RE-R-BE
+ZA=1+-8 ZE-NERAZTR
22 June 2015 30June 2016 HK$1466%T 1 July 2016 - 31 December 2016 2,667,608 2,667,608) - - - - -
—3-1f ZE-NERAZTR Z? /\itﬂf
~AZTZA “E-REtZRZ + A
19 January 2016 31 May 2016 HKS0.1617C 1 June 2016~ 11 November 2020 - - 6,478,512 2,842,530 - - 9,321,042
ZRRE-ATAR ZERE ZF-E/R-RE
TA=t-8 ZRET-AT-H
14 September 2016 14 September 2016 HK$0.0638% T 15 September 2016 - - - 39,930,000 - - (39,930,000) -
14 September 2017
“E-EAATEA ZE-RENATER 2 ENATRERE
“F-tEAATRA
Employee 19 June 2014 31 December 2015 HKS0.973%TC 1 January 2016 - 30 June 2016 1,905,455 - - 835,270 (2,740,725) - -
8 ZE-MERATAR :%*ﬁﬁ “R-RE-A-RE
+-A=1-H “E-RERAZTE
22 June 2015 30 June 2016 HKS$14667 7T 1uly 2016 - 31 December 2016 1,333,805 - - 585,055 (1,918,860) - -
“E-nf —E-E/R=TH S—Ritﬂ RE
~AZTZH “EZ-7EtZA=1-H
19 January 2016 31 May 2016 HKS0.161 7T 1 June 2016 - 11 November 2020 - - 3,239,256 1,421,266 - - 4,660,522
ZE-NF-AThR ZE-AF “E-E/R-RZ
AA=+-A ZRZEET-f1-H
14 September 2016 14 September 2016 HKS0.0638% T 15 September 2016 - - - 46,090,000 - - (46,090,000) -
14 September 2017
ZE-AEAATEE ZB-AFAATRA ZE-REARTIRE
ZE-tEAATEA
Other participants 19 June 2014 31 December 2015 HK$0.973 T 1 January 2016 - 30 June 2016 7,621,808 - - 3341064 (10962872 - -
Ao ZE-MEAATAR ZE-1F “F-75-R-RZ
+-A=1-8 ZE-RERAZTE
14 September 2016 14 September 2016 HK$0.0638% T 15 September 2016 - - - 324,450,000 - - (324,450,000) -
14 September 2017
ZE-AEAATEE ZB-AFAATRA ZE-EARTIRE
ZE-tEAATEA
45,730,608 (34,869,540) 467,481,304 29775833 (15,622457) (410,470,000 82,025,748
216 Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited | Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

35 ARG BERE 2Nk (&)
(a) BARAES B ()
(i) BERSAESN B FOANAE T 9T e Lt

35.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT'D)
(a) Share option scheme (cont’d)

(i) The number and weighted average of exercise prices

of share options are as follows:— BT —
2016 2015
—E-RF —T-REF
Weighted Weighted
average of average of
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
¥ IntEF 15
THEE BREZE TEE BREXRE
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Outstanding at the REF RARITE
beginning of the year 1.814 45,730,608 0.140 190,545,242
Cancelled during the year R E R E 1.916  (34,869,540)
Granted during the year FARKHL 0.084 467,481,304 0.211 266,760,842
Adjustments to the Rights issue P& R AT PR 3172
and Bonus issue HE - 29,775,833 - -
Lapsed during the year FRERH 1.034 (15,622,457) - -
Exercised during the year RERNTTE 0.064 (410,470,000) - -
Capital Reorganisation RENETRAEH
during the year - - - (411,575,476)
Outstanding at the RERRAITE
end of the year 0.161 82,025,748 1.814 45,730,608
Exercisable at the end of year ~ RERA1T{E 0.161 82,025,748 1.814 45,730,608

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year
was HK$0.0673 (2015: not applicable). The options
outstanding at 31 December 2016 had exercise
price at HK$0.161 (2015: ranging from HK$1.40
to HK$2.11) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of approximately 46 months (2015:

10 months).

ERFBEXENEREERAAT | —T—"FFHR

FREITHFEBERERNTEASHZ
BB g 5 #50.06738 T (—
TE—RAF TEHA)R-_ZT—X
F+-_A=1+—BHAR{TEZE
BENTEEAITEBT(ZZ

—hEF

N F140B L E2.1178

TC) cMEFHHBTELNFHED
46A (ZZE—HF:10EA) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—F

35.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT'D)

~NFFZHA=F—HIFE

(a) Share option scheme (cont’d)

35. AR I AN 2 5k (48)

(iii) The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted on the date of
grant. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2016 is measured based
on the Binomial Model. The contractual life of the
share options is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

218

the Binomial Model.

2016

—TRF

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

(a) B #ESTE (&)

(il) ZAHERIR LB A A T B 15 2 IR 7%
ZRFEDZERLBHRRLE

REATVEME-BE-F—5
Ft-A=t+-BR-Z—XF

TZA=+T—HLFE REBK
BAFEMFHER -_BARL
APE-BREZANFHRARL
FA1E A\ 8K - —TEVE A G iR
BITERAE 2 TEH -

EREATVERRBR
Grant date 14 September 2016 19 January 2016 19 January 2016
R A —E-RF —E-RE ZE-RE
AB+MA —AthB —BAthH
Measurement date* 14 September 2016 19 January 2016 9 May 2016
FrERAHx —E-RF —E-RF —E-RE
AA+HMAE —A+hH EANAB
Fair value at measurement date HK$0.018 and HK$0.069 HK$0.057

HK$0.022
REtERBZ RAFE 0.018 T K 0.06978 7T 0.0575& 1t
0.0225& T

Closing share price at the measurement date HK$0.062 HK$0.184 HK$0.116
REtE B #2 Bdn h (E 0.0627% 7T 0.184% 1 0.11678 7T
Exercise price HK$0.0638 HK$0.2326 HK$0.1940
TE(E 0.06387% 7T 0.232638 T 0.19403% 7T
Expected volatility 98.28% 98.21% 98.65%
TR HR R 98.28% 98.21% 98.65%
Expected average share option life 1 year 4.81 years 4.51 years
T8 H 19 i PO 4 15 4.815 4515
Expected annual dividend yield Nil Nil Nil
EHEFRER 4 E:d i
Risk-free interest rate per annum 0.44% 1.066% 0.951%
BEERRAE 0.44% 1.066% 0.951%

*  Being the date on which the options were granted
or the date on which the Shareholders’ approval was
obtained in respect of the grant of options.

* BIBRERLERSE
EERELBREER -

BREM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT'D)
(a) Share option scheme (cont’d)

(iii) (cont'd)

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

35. LARR M BER 253 (&)
(a) BARAES B ()

iy (#&)

2015

“ET-0F

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

BRELTERRBRR

Grant date
& i B H

Measurement date*
StEHE

Fair value at measurement date
REtEBRHZRAYE

Closing share price at the measurement date
Rt E BB i T E
Exercise price

TIEfE

Expected volatility

TR 18

Expected average share option life
FRE 9 B A 5

Expected annual dividend yield
RHEFRER

Risk-free interest rate per annum
BEERRANE

22 June 2015

22 June 2015

“T—hF “E-1F
ANAZ+=H NAZ+ZH
22 June 2015 24 August 2015

—T—HF “E-hF
~NAZ+=H NA=+mMA
HK$0.081 and HK$0.019

HK$0.084
0.081% T 0.019% 7T

0.084/& 7T

HK$0.207 HK$0.101

0.207 7T 0.10178 7T

HK$0.211 HK$0.211

0211787 0.21187T

88.284% 87.361%
88.284% 87.361%
1.53year 1.36year
1.53F 1.364F
Nil Nil

3 i
0.224% 0.223%
0.224% 0.223%

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility. Expected dividend yield is based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input EBREH)
assumptions could materially affect the fair value

estimate.

RERTE -

T8 HAOR 08 T BB 1 R 0 - TR B AR
BRDENBERE - TE 8 AR
TR EMEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

36. W EEFT B A A

(a) Acquisition of hospitality business in Australia

220

In the second quarter of 2016, the Group acquired
certain land and buildings and the hospitality business
conducted on the land and buildings, together with
the related assets, for operation in Yarra Glen, Victoria,
Australia (the "Balgownie Group”) at an aggregate
consideration of AUD24,600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$146,091,000). The Balgownie Group
is principally engaged in the provision of hospitality and
related services in Australia.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and

(a) BB BN 2B E %%

RZE—RNRFEE_FE KAEBU
48R (8 &24,600,00038 7T (FERL
146,091,000/ 70) Y ig = + Tt K jE
ENTEBB LM RESE T ZBE
¥7%:&[F M & ZE ([Balgownie 5§
M) - BAR BN 4 2 F) o5 )0 B R A% B
(Yarra Glen) & & ° Balgownie £ B+ £
FORM A E IR IR R ABRERRAS 275 o

R Uk 8 B 3 Balgownie &£ B 2 7T &

liabilities of the Balgownie Group as at the date of AEEREBZAFENT: -
acquisition is as follows:-
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment — Note 12 Y R B KR — M EE12 121,340
Other intangible assets — Note 15 HihEp & E—HiE15 2,625
Deferred tax assets — Note 27 EIERIE & & — i sE27 204
Inventories BE 18,250
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEMBR X - 12 & RIEN BB 484
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITERR 16
Creditors, accruals and other payables FERTRR R - FERT B A I\ B JE < FR 18 (3,530)
139,389
HK$'000
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMEE2EE FHET
Consideration transferred EEBRE 146,091
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired & : FTER] B/ FEE 2 A FE (139,389)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEMELX CHE 6,702
HK$'000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WERMEE2RERHFEE FET
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 146,091
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B TERe RERREIEHR (16)
146,075
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(a) Acquisition of hospitality business in Australia

(cont’d)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$3,814,000 have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognised as an
expense in the current year, within the “other operating
expenses” line item in the consideration statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As a result of the acquisition of Balgownie Group, the
Group expected to expand its business to the provision
of hospitality and related services in Australia. Goodwill
of approximately HK$6,702,000 was recognised in view
of the benefit of expected revenue growth and future
market development.

Included in the Group's loss and revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were profit of approximately
HK$1,596,000 and revenue of approximately
HK$45,172,000 contributed by the Balgownie Group.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2016, the revenue of the Group from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$545,009,000, and the loss for the year from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$551,012,000. The proforma financial information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been completed on 1
January 2016 nor is it intended to be a projection of
future profits.

(b) Acquisition of Ever Full Harvest Limited (“Ever Full”,

together with its subsidiaries, “Ever Full Group”)

On 27 February 2015, Luck Key, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition
of 70% equity interests in Ever Full (“"Ever Full
Acquisition”) and a shareholder’s loan of HK$6,333,000
from THHSL at the aggregate consideration of
HK$11,882,000, which was satisfied by the allotment and
issue of consideration shares by Luck Key to THHSL. Ever
Full Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of
PET Radiopharmaceuticals for medical use.

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

36 WHEIEB AR (&)
(a) W BN 2 5 375 (40)

s B& FE A A X 493,814,00058 7T B B 8
BREJKR IRAFERGEEER
FEMEEmBZERA [ EAMALEHR T
HERNERSRAX -

i 7 Uk 8% Balgownie (£ @] - N &£ E 78
M EREEEZRNRMNEMSBE
MEBRS L REHREER R
ARMBGEEZ BT CHEIA[EY
6,702,000/ I °

Balgownie &£ [E & i 2 & F11%91,596,000
7 7T MU A 445,172,000 T B 51 A
rEEBE-_ZE—R"F+-_A=1+—
AIEFE BB RIKA -

HMEBLEHANR _ZET—XFEF—F—H
EIT AKEREBESCEEB 2K
A JE & #)545,009,00078 JT » M AN F
EREFEKEER 2 EBERY
551,012,000/ JT - 6 & 81 7 & FBHE i
2 RKRURBEBEHR_ZT—X
F-—RA—HEKZBRAT AEEE
REEFRILERARRESE T
BEBRROBF Z TER -

(b) Y EEEver Full Harvest Limited ([ Ever

Fulll - ZEREMKNBATEAEIEver
Full £8])

R-ZE—RAF_HA=-+tEH AQF
< —MHIEEEME QT Luck Key B 58
X ¢ FE fEE B8 95 Y BE Ever Full 8970% A%
AHEZ ([Ever Full BB =E1E | ) &k —
% W& B 706,333,000 7T (B A
11,882,000/ 7T * | Luck Key A 5F fi 28
BB KR ITRERME o Ever Full
CEETENEREBRERAPET A
@y o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i\’T\

ER R ek

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—F
36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

~NFFZHA=F—HIFE

6. WEEMB AR

Al (&)

(b) Acquisition of Ever Full Harvest Limited (“Ever Full”, (b) W& Ever Full Harvest Limited ([ Ever

222

together with its subsidiaries,
(cont’d)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and

“Ever Full Group”)

Fulll - ZREMNBATEAEIEver

Ful @J) (&)

R Ui B # - Ever Full &£ B 2z 7 & Al

liabilities of Ever Full Group at its date of acquisition EEREBEZAFENT: -
is as follows:-

HK$'000

FET
Property, plant and equipment — Note 12 M HE KR MEE12 7,427
Inventories BE 987
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EWERT - 12 & RIBEN FRIB 3,457
Cash and bank balances W RIRITER 4,784
Creditors, accruals and other payables FERTBR K - JERT B A I EL M JE 1 5RIB (189)
Tax payables JET IR (431)
Shareholders’ loan I& R E = (16,600)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBERE (676)
(1,247)

HK$'000
Goodwill arising on acquisition WERMEEZEHE FHET
Consideration transferred EEBRE 11,882
Less: Shareholder’s loan acquired B FTERRER (6,333)
Consideration for acquisition of the share Wi 2 KB 5,549
Less: Non-controlling interests — (Note) W FEERRE RS — (FTEE) (374)
Add: Fair value of identifiable net liabilities n:ERBRFEEEZ ATE

acquired 1,241

Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEPRE £ 2 & 6,416

HK$'000
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEFEEZ2RESRAFE FHET
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrERE RERREER 4,784

Note:—

The non-controlling interests of 30% in Ever Full Group
recognised at the date of acquisition was measured with
reference to the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the fair value of the net liabilities of Ever Full Group.

B3 < —

122 B HE

P UL EE B HAFE 2 49 Ever Full 5 ®30% 9 3F
i«‘@%gﬁﬁﬂx% 5 JE1h Ever
FUlEBFEENATENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(b) Acquisition of Ever Full Harvest Limited (“Ever Full”,

together with its subsidiaries, “Ever Full Group”)
(cont’d)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$207,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
the current year, within the “other operating expenses”
line item in the consideration statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Ever Full Group supplies 18F-FDG to the Luck Key Group.
The Ever Full Acquisition will allow the supply of 18F-FDG
to the Luck Key Group be assured, maintained and
coordinated in a more efficient and effective manner,
taking into account the demand for the products of the
Ever Full Group by other members of the Luck Key Group
and as such will enhance operational efficiency of the
Group's health check business. Goodwill of approximately
HK$6,416,000 was recognised by the Group in view of
these factors.

Included in the Group's profit and revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2015 were profit of approximately
HK$3,352,000 and revenue of approximately
HK$10,470,000 contributed by Ever Full Group.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2015, the revenue of the Group from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$260,829,000 and the profit for the year from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$50,183,000. The proforma financial information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been completed on 1
January 2015 nor is it intended to be a projection of
future profits.

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

36. BB AR (8)

(b) Y B Ever Full Harvest Limited ([ Ever

Fulll - ZREMNBATREAEIEver
Ful£E]) (&)

U & AR RA B A £0207,00008 7T B E E7%
REFG IR AFEREERENR
Htt2mamRAm [HME e ]|
BAERSRAX

Ever Full 8 @ A Luck Key % B f&
18F-FDG ° £ & & Luck Key 5 B ~ E Aty
KB AR $Ever FUlEBERZESK
Ever FUllREESETEF A LE a8 LA
Mz Luck Key EE BB EE -
& R FAM8F-FDG & - 37 (A bt 18
ReEfSERBRER 2 LE R m oK
FRZEERE AEEDEAYE
496,416,000 JT °

Ever Full & B & Bt < ' # 493,352,000
77T R U A 4910,470,0005 7T 2 5 A
AEBEBE_T-HAF+-_A=+—
BIEFE ZamRBAR -

WMEHBAEHR _ZT—RHF—A—H
BT AKERABESCEEB 2K
A JE 5 #9260,829,0008 7t * M AF E
REBEBELCEEB 2afMlERED
50,183,000/ 7L - fEZ i I E RHEH 2
B RUORBEEBEEHNR_T—H
F—A—HEXZBRAT AEEE
RGIER 2L ARES N T #
YEB R Bz F 2 88 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE—F

~NFFZHA=F—HIFE

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(c) Acquisition of Cannes Films (Cannes Films, together

224

with its subsidiaries, “Cannes Films Group”)

On 26 January 2015, the Group acquired 49% issued
share capital of Cannes Films from an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$7,350,000 and
the investment of which was classified by the Group
as an associate. Further, on 8 April 2015, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire
an additional 2% issued share capital of Cannes Films
from Mr. Zhang, at a cash consideration of HK$300,000.
Upon completion of the transaction on 14 April 2015,
Cannes Films became a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Group. Cannes Films Group is principally engaged in
the provision of integrated advertising agency services
(including but not limited to video production, event
production, marketing solution, digital marketing
solution, party production, performer booking,
photography and website design) and film production.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and

36. BB AR (8)

() WBEEBEX (BEEE ERHWE
RABBEBEEEE])

R_E—FRAF—HA_+ B KX&EH
LAIR 4 A {87,350,00008 STt — 2B L
FEZHWBERER %49%25?‘%1&
K-AEBBLBERES B A —HB

EarleHg RZFTE— ﬁi@ﬂ)\
H AEEFTVEEH:R UWRERE
300,000 T ok 5t £ W BB BRI 52 S R
IN% BEBEITRA - RFGNR_FT—HF
MA+TATKE R EEKER
EEEBS1% BREZHE R G R
FEEETENERERAESNE
R (BIERTRRE R RIE EEHR

£ 2R HIBEHKE RER

£ FEHEY BYEBEXTILE
FRIE

REBRHY BERTEEE 2 T&E 5

liabilities of Cannes Films Group at its date of EEREBZAFENT: -
acquisition is as follows:-
HK$'000
FERT
Property, plant and equipment — Note 12 Y BB MR — Y u£12 630
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEMBR K - 12 & R IB{I KIB 8,393
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITER 906
Creditors, accruals and other payables JERTBRTR - JE5H & A S EL M JE 1~ 5RIE (4,683)
Tax payables JE A 718 (88)
Short-term borrowings REEE (5,792)
(634)
HK$'000
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEMEE2EHE FHET
Consideration transferred EEBEARE 300
Add: Fair value of investment in an associate as i : RUHE B HAIR —EHE AR 2R E
at the date of acquisition ZNYE 7,090
Consideration for the acquisition WHEEE 2 KE 7,390
Less: Non-controlling interests (Note) B FEEE AR R A (B EE) 311)
Add: Fair value of identifiable net liabilities mn:rPERERFRE s AT E
acquired 634
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEPEE 2 ' 7,713
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(c) Acquisition of Cannes Films (Cannes Films, together

with its subsidiaries, “Cannes Films Group”) (cont’d)

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

36. BT B AR (48)
(O WBEAL % (BAYE ERHKE

RAWBEREEEE]) (&)

HK$'000

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WERMEE2HERAFE FHET
Cash consideration paid ERRERE (300)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B FER e RERREIER 906
606

Note:—

The non-controlling interests of 49% in Cannes Films Group
recognised at the date of acquisition was measured with
reference to the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the fair value of the net liabilities of Cannes Films Group.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$191,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
the current year, within the “other operating expenses”
line item in the consideration statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

As a result of the Cannes Films Acquisition, the Group
expected to expand its business to the provision of
integrated marketing services in other areas. Goodwill of
approximately HK$7,713,000 was recognised because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.

Included in the Group’s profit and revenue from a
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 December
2015 were profit of approximately HK$427,000 and
revenue of approximately HK$7,319,000 contributed by
Cannes Films Group.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2015, the revenue of the Group from a
discontinued operation would have been approximately
HK$378,806,000, and the profit for the year from a
discontinued operation would have been approximately
HK$26,324,000. The proforma financial information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been completed on 1
January 2015 nor is it intended to be a projection of
future profits.

On 21 December 2015, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest of Cannes Films at a cash consideration of
HK$8,211,000 (Note 37(b)).

BT - -

RUEE B RN RN EEE49% M 3E
RS TS 2 IR S ﬁmfﬁ
X¥EBEEEFENLATERNE

Ue BEFERE R AN 49191,000/8 T B B &
REZIB - ]IEAKEFE\??GE#
Hh2mRERA [HgELmYy ] E
BRERAMX -

BEHERRBEERTKE A EEE
HEEEXBOIRER‘AMEEZ
EoEHRB -BREaHAARE—
HEHERE AKECERBED
7,713,000/ 7T

W = R B B B 2 % M 49427,0007%8
TT R A#97,319,0008 L E st AR E
BEHz—_Z—RFt+_-_A=+—HI1t
FEZEKRIEEEER Z G RUA
ﬁqo

WEKAHNR _ZT—HF—F—B#
17> ZKEIXE—IEE%%M«“*iﬁ“
2 YA JE & 49378,806,0007 7T * 1M 4N
FERE —HERELEERZ @
& /2#926,324,000/%8 7T - s E B & KL
EHS2H RAORBEEBGHRZ
T-—RF—A— EEWZIa/RT PiN
EEERSER I LERARES:
I ERE R AR R m K 2 T8 R

R-_TE—HF+_A-+—HB &%
B LA & B8,211,0005 7T i & E
B 2 2 22 (Mi5E37(0)) °
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36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

226

(d) Acquisition of hospitality business in Australia

On 30 November 2015, the Group acquired certain land
and buildings in Australia and their hospitality business
and related assets for operation (“the Grange Group”)
at an aggregate consideration of AUD17,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$99,278,000). The
Grange Group is principally engaged in the provision of
hospitality and related services in Australia.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the Grange Group as at the date of
acquisition is as follows:-

36 BB AR (&)
() U8 BN 25 I 3 75

R_E—HAF+—A=+TH K&H
WERBMNE T L REFRBIE X
BEARNKENHBEE([BESE
) #R{8A17,000,0002 7T (BE
R #999,278,000%8 L) c R HEBE T B
W ERBRIMNR MBS R EE RS -

RUBBRH BHEEZAURBEE
REBEZAFEMT: -

HK$'000

FTET

Property, plant and equipment — Note 12 ME - BB R HEE12 76,737
Inventories 7E 1,938
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEM BRI - 12 & RIE BB 135
Cash and bank balances W RIRITHER 17

Creditors, accruals and other payables FEATBR SR - FERT B A K E fth FE 1 5RIE (2,300)
76,527

HK$'000

Goodwill arising on acquisition WEBFEE 2EmE FHET
Consideration transferred EEBERE 99,278

Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired & : FTE A 4 B/ F B &E 2 A FE (76,527)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE 2 BE 22,751
HK$'000

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEREEZ2RESREFE FHET

Cash consideration paid ENBEERE (99,278)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B ERE RERIREIER 17

(99,261)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$3,315,000 have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognised as an
expense in the current year, within the “other operating
expenses” line item in the consideration statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

U BE #8 B A AN 493,315,000/8 7T B 2 &
BREJIB IR AFEERGEEER
MEMEERERAHMbELEHRT
HERNERAMAY -
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36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

(d) Acquisition of hospitality business in Australia

(cont’d)

As a result of the acquisition of Grange Group, the
Group expected to expand its business to the provision
of hospitality and related services in Australia. Goodwill
of approximately HK$22,751,000 was recognised in view
of the benefit of expected revenue growth and future
market development.

Included in the Group's profit and revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2015 were loss of approximately
HK$133,000 and revenue of approximately
HK$2,688,000 contributed by the Grange Group.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2015, the revenue of the Group from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$291,104,000, and the profit for the year from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$59,365,000. The proforma financial information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been completed on
1 January 2015 nor is it intended to be a projection of
future profits.

(e) Acquisition of EPRO (BVI) Limited ("EPRO BVI”,

together with its subsidiaries, “EPRO BVI Group”)

On 31 August 2015, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest of EPRO BVI from DX.com Holdings Limited at a
cash consideration of HK$60,264,000. EPRO BVI Group
is principally engaged in the provision of professional
information technology contract and maintenance
services in the PRC and Hong Kong.

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

36 WHEIEB AR (&)
(d) W BTN 2 T S 335 ()

EBHEBEWEEETKE ASEE
HEEREEHREZNBMBHRBEE
FAEERE &Lt hFEBHKEER R
ARMBERZEDR ERIHED
22,751,000/ 7T

EHEEFR 2 EE4133,000%8 7T &
I A #92,688,00078 7T B2 5T A AN & B &
EE-RFE+-_A=+—HILEE
o F B U o

WEHBAEHR _ZT—RHF—A—H
BT AEBREFESEER 2
A JE & #9291,104,000% 7T - M 4~ 4
EREFEKEER 2 aNERLD
59,365,000 8 Lo e ZE M I E BHEH 2
B AURBEBEHR_ZT—HF
—A—HBERZ2BEAT AEEERK
GERMIEEWANRESE T
TERR I &mF) 2 TR -

(e) W B EPRO (BVI) Limited ([EPRO

BVI| - EREKEXTMEAE[EPRO
BVIEE])

R-_ZE—RAFNA=1+—H A&EH
LAEE 4 1% (B60,264,0007% 7T £ DX.com
RS A PR A )UK BB EPRO BVI & SFA% H ©
EPROBVISBE X ERHFBEEFEMRSE
REEEXEEAMREEHOREBSRER
ﬁ%o
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36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 6. WHEHTEB A ()

(e) Acquisition of EPRO (BVI) Limited ("EPRO BVI”", (e) W B EPRO (BVI) Limited ([ EPRO
together with its subsidiaries, “EPRO BVI Group”) BVI]-EREME 2T ®AIEPRO
(cont'd) BVIEE]) (&)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Uk B B HA 0 EPRO BVI & & 2 7] # Al
EPRO BVI Group at its date of acquisition is as follows:— EERBBEZRAFENT: -
HK$°000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment — Note 12 M BB MR a2 3,037
Amounts due from contract customers JEW & NB P I8 15,520
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEW R K - =& RFER FKIE 101,099
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHER 16,608
Creditors, accruals and other payables FERTBRTR - JEAH B A I EL M JE 1 5RIE (35,413)
Deferred revenue EEHA (495)
Short-term borrowings MHEE (2,727)
Income tax payable JE A PR 1S AR (92)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIBERE (3,564)
93,973
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR HE 2 (926)
93,047
Gain on a bargain purchase arising on HK$°000
acquisition WEEFEE 2 RERBE RS FHET
Consideration KRB 60,264
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired & : FTE A 4 B/ F B &E 2 A FE (93,047)
(32,783)
HK$'000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEREE RS REFE FHET
Cash consideration paid ENBEERE (60,264)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B TERe RERREIEHR 16,608
(43,656)
Acquisition-related costs amounting approximately to Ui B% MR A A 7S 49892,00078 7T B B B #%
HK$892,000 have been excluded from the consideration REJBR TRAFERGEER R
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in Hih2EKERA [ EMEEFRT 18
the current year, within the “other operating expenses” BHRERAMS -
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line item in the consideration statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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36.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)
(e) Acquisition of EPRO (BVI) Limited ("EPRO BVI",

together with its subsidiaries, “EPRO BVI Group”)
(cont'd)

As a result of the acquisition, the Group diversified its
existing business into a new line of business with growth
potential. After re-assessment by the management of the
Group, the acquisition of EPRO BVI will enable the Group
to acquire a greater technical support in replenishing the
Group's overall strength in research and development
of internet technology platform, by bringing in EPRO
BVI Group's supports on technical know-how and
seasoned management team in provision of tailor-made
professional IT solutions and customised software
development services in the PRC. The Group recognised a
gain on bargain purchase of HK$32,783,000 because the
fair value of net identifiable assets acquired exceeded the
purchase consideration.

The fair value of trade debtors included in debtors,
deposits and prepayments is HK$101,099,000. The
gross contractual amount for trade and other debtors is
HK$101,377,000, of which HK$278,000 is expected to
be uncollectible.

Included in the Group's profit and revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2015 were profit of approximately
HK$1,378,000 and revenue of approximately
HK$50,685,000 contributed by EPRO BVI Group.

Had the business combination been effected on
1 January 2015, the revenue of the Group from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$363,122,000, and the profit for the year from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$58,208,000. The proforma financial information is
for illustration purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been completed on 1
January 2015 nor is it intended to be a projection of
future profits.

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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36. BB AR (8)

(e) Y & EPRO (BVI) Limited ([ EPRO

BVI| - EZEREKEXTHAE[EPRO
BVIEE]) (&)

MRERAKE AEBZTLERS
¥R AERBIZHEBR - RAE
BEEEEEHMTH%E  BiBSI#EEPRO
BVISBIEHFEHREHTEES EFHNEEE
SRR AR R T 2 K TE B B R B AR A
MM EENBERERERER T
7= X EPRO BVI U i& = 18 18 {F AN & B e
WEGSERBANBNIHF AR
SEREHMBREMFemEEHEER
71 o REE#E32,783,000/8 T 2 % B
BEWRG AAMENEHAFEE
ZARFEBBEERE-

EWER - ZEeABENREFE S
JEUWBR X 2 A F1E A101,099,000/%8
T B NEMEBRERENETER
101,377,000/ 7t * E71278,0007% jL 18
AR BEUR D -

EPRO BVI&E & Bl 2 & #1471,378,000
7 7t & U A 4950,685,00058 7T B 5t A
AREFBHE-_E—HE+-_A=+—
BIEFEZ2&mHMEBAR-

WMEBEHN-_ZE—RE—HA—H
EIT AREREBELCEEB 2
A JE A #)363,122,0005% 7T » M AN 4
EREAFERCEEBZ ENEARY
58,208,000/ T ° 5 E M 5 & BFHE 2
B AURBEEEHR_ZT—HF
—A—HBERZBRT AEEER
CSERIIEEWRARES NI EE
AR T A 2 TR o
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37.DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Disposal of equity interest of Zhiqu

Zhiqu Disposal as mentioned in note 7 to the

7.0 EMB AR R
(a) HEEEE> B

N\ Z

INER B B S R M 7R A 2 B

consolidated financial statements was completed in July HTEFEEECR _ZE—NFLATK"
2016 and the consideration was received in September mREER=_ZT— /‘_\iﬂﬂ WCER o
2016.

HK$'000
Consideration received 2R E THER
Cash consideration received BUWIRERE 29,589
Consideration shares issued by LEO MERETT 2 RERND 280,827

310,416

The net assets of Zhiqu at the date of disposal were as

EHBRNLERHzEEFENT : -

follows:—
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment L ERN S 122
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEEE 67
Debtors and deposits JEUHR X M % & 177,373
Cash and bank balances Be MIBTT4E 13,909
Creditors, accruals and other payables JEATERFR - FERT B B R B e 5)08 (102,495)
Shareholder’s loan R R E (11,677)
Income tax payable IS FT1S R (5,803)
71,496
HK$'000
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHE AR 2 KRE FTET
Consideration received B E 310,416
Less: Net assets disposed of BB ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ (71,496)
Less: Tax effect W (63,090)
Add: Non-controlling interests hn s FEdE Hﬂ%%f?l 29,652
Less: Release of translation reserve to profit or loss o EEEER 2 ELEE (1,465)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7) HE—MEEB ARz e (KEE7) 204,017
HK$000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBHBATELEZRERANTHE FER
Cash consideration received BWIRERE 29,589
Less: Cash and bank balances disposed of BB HERS MRTTER (13,909)
15,680
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37.DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)

(b) Disposal of equity interest of Cannes Films

On 21 December 2015, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest of Cannes Films at a cash consideration of

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

37.MEMBARIER (&)

(b) HEEBR X ZKRE

R-_ZE—RAF+_-_A=-_+—H K&
B LAIR £ 288,211,000 7T H & E R

HK$8,211,000. ER082 bl e:
The net assets of the Cannes Films at the date of EREEREERRZEEFEN
disposal were as follows:- -

HK$'000

FET
Property, plant and equipment — Note 12 ME  BE REET12 799
Goodwill — Note 14 BT 14 7,713
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments H WA - e RIBEFIA 8,787
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITH R 342
Creditors, accruals and other payables JEATERFR - FERT B B R B e 5008 (5,079)
Short-term borrowings EHEE (4,992)
Income tax payable FERTER1S L (88)
7,482

HK$'000
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHEB ARz KRE FEx
Cash consideration received BWIRERE 8,211
Less: Net assets disposed of B EHEBEESRE (7,482)
Less: Non-controlling interests W FEIEIR A (114)
Less: Release of translation reserve to profit or loss BN EER CER G (12)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7) HE—RHMB AR W (HeE7) 603

HK$'000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBHBATNELEZRERANTHE FEx
Cash consideration received BYUIRERE 8,211
Less: Cash and bank balances disposed of BB HEES MBTTERS (342)

7,869
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38.TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss
of control

(a)

232

On 20 October 2016, upon completion of the Luck Key
Subscription, Luck Key allotted and issued subscription
shares to THHSL and Joyful, resulting in dilution of the
Group's interest in Luck Key from approximately 65.0%
to 50.5%. The effect of changes in the ownership interest
in Luck Key on the equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company during the year is summarised as follows:—

BEIFIERER LR 5

BELERNBAR 2 EZE (TEXREE
)

@ RZE—XRFE+A-_+H HNEK
Luck Key W5 F187% - Luck Key [ F'?JTJL
B & Kloyful iR & R BITREBRH
B AREEP Luck Key ZREZE KL
65.0% # 58 £50.5% R AF E » Luck
Key cHEEEEREHHARARRE
EIEERZZERMINT

HK$'000
FHET
Carrying amount of non-controlling EHEFERER REE
interests disposed of (21,947)
Issue of subscription shares by Luck key, Luck Key B 1TRRERR () - MBRFTE £ 2
net of transaction cost incurred R G 21,136
Changes recognised on disposal within equity NigEmERLE 2 # (811)

On 27 February 2015, upon completion of the Ever Full
Acquisition, Luck Key allotted and issued consideration
shares to THHSL, resulting in dilution of the Group's
interest in Luck Key from approximately 90.1% to
approximately 65.0%. The effect of changes in the
ownership interest in Luck Key on the equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company during the year is
summarised as follows:—

by R—ZF—HF A =+-+H Ever Full
B ETBTEA1Z ' Luck Key M FEEER &
ERETRERG EHAEER
Luck Key Z #EZ= £ £790.1% BB = 49
65.0% ° A AN [Z - Luck Key 2 B #
E*“@um AR R EE S 7
ST

HK$'000
FERT
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests disposed of 2 & FFiF ik i < BRE & (12,841)
Issue of consideration shares by Luck key, Luck Key 81T HRER D - HBRELE 2
net of transaction cost incurred RSB 11,731
Changes recognised on disposal within equity RERERLEZEY (1,110)
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39.BORROWING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2016, the Group had short-term
borrowing facilities to the extent of HK$208,301,000
(2015: HK$199,403,000), of which HK$186,400,000 (2015:
HK$153,998,000) had been utilised by the Group. The
borrowing facilities were secured by financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$212,261,000
(2015: HK$98,011,000) and available-for-sale investments of
approximately HK$246,474,000 (2015: Nil).

At 31 December 2016, the Group had banking facilities
to the extent of approximately HK$138,504,000 (2015:
HK$30,910,000), of which HK$117,787,000 (2015:
HK$5,590,000) had been utilised by the Group. The banking
facilities were secured by freehold land and buildings of
approximately HK$179,904,000 and investment properties
of approximately HK$81,110,000 (2015: time deposit of
HK$13,000,000).

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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9.[EEFLE

RZE—-—RF+_A=+—"H K&£H
ZHEHEEREREE R208,301,000%
T (ZF— R :199,403,000 1) °
H 186,400,000 L (—ZZE—HF:
153,998,000 L) E A EBE B A - &
ERmETTHERAFESFBERIEZ
S REEX212,261,0008 L (ZE—F
% :98,011,0008 L) LA HE/ELD
246,474,000/ 70 (— B — FH4F : &) 1EiK
o

RZE—RF+_A=+—H8 X&£H
ZIRTREEREE 4 A138,504,000/%8 7T

—ZE— A% :30,910,000 7T) o A
117,787,000/ 7T ( =& — FH 4 : 5,590,000
BIL)EBRAEEFA-FRITRE AKX
A FERE L3 B F #9179,904,0007 7T &
B Y EHX81,110,0008 T ( —E—H4F:
7E HA17 51 13,000,000/ 7T ) {EHK 48 o
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40.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. 7812 A) B AR R 2R
THE COMPANY

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHT FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IEREBEE
Plant and equipment &R = & 7% {8 201 295
Interests in subsidiaries i ENGIY 431,092 548,902
431,293 549,197
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & B B % FIE 299,397 308,639
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JE U AR X Hzi&
%ﬁﬁm 654 1,713
Cash and bank balances fﬁi&fﬁﬂ £ ek 382 15,592
300,433 325,944
DEDUCT: S :
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Creditors, accruals and other payables — JEfEBRF - [EET B A K&
H {th & {5t 3R 0B 1,705 2,796
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR NI 12,525 26,097
Note payable B RE - 149,396
14,230 178,289
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 286,203 147,655
NET ASSETS BEFE 717,496 696,852
REPRESENTING:— RE:—
SHARE CAPITAL AR A 28(a) 53,362 6,841
RESERVES 15 29 664,134 690,011
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS ERES 717,496 696,852
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A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
EE—NFf A= —HIFE

OF THE COMPANY

ARARAEEHBARF

==
=

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:— FEWBRRZFFBOT  —
Place of Particulars of Attributable Group's
incorporation/ issued share capital/ equity interest held effective
Name business and operation registered capital by the Company interest  Principal Activities
SRR BRITRE/ x5E
A% BEREEHE aERFE KRABARERE ERER TEER
Directly Indirectly
B %
EPRO BVI* The British Virgin Islands ~ USD100 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(“BVI")
EPRO BVI* RBRAEE 100% 7T REER
((EBEZEE])

EPRO Systems (HK) Limited* Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision
of professional IT contract and
maintenance services

HEZG (FE)ERAA Bk 100,000/ 7T REERMREHEREANRA
WL EERERS

EPRO Systems (China) Limited* Hong Kong HK$925,000 - 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision
of professional IT contract and
maintenance services

HEZG (PE)BERAA* Bk 925,000/ 7 REERMREHEREANRA
WL EERERS

EPRO Technology Limited* Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100% 100%  Provision of professional IT
contract and maintenance
services

SEMBBRAR Bk 1,000,000/ 7t RUEZZEAMRAOLAEBR
ERH

TEHELERMRBERD A PRC HK$6,000,000 - 75% 75%  Provision of professional IT

(Jiangsu Weipu Technical Service contract and maintenance
Co., Limited)* (“Weipu") services
IEAERMRBERAR H 6,000,000/ 7 RUEZZEAMRAOLAER

(Tgg])~
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41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AARRBIEENMBRAIFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D) (#&)
Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:— (Cont'd) FTEWBRRZFBEOT : — (&)
Place of Particulars of Attributable Group's
incorporation/ issued share capital/ equity interest held effective
Name business and operation registered capital by the Company interest  Principal Activities
SRR BRITRE/ x5E
A% BEREEHE aMEAFE KRABARERE ERER TEER
Directly Indirectly
B# %

HESERHARAR PRC UsD1,000,000 - 100% 100%  Provision of professional IT
(Shanghai EPRO Software contract and maintenance
Company Limited)* services
(“Shanghai EPRO")

TRZERMERRF h 1,000,000% 7T RUEZZEAMRAOLEBR
(TLts5g])~ ERH%

Shining Color Limited* BVI usD1 100% - 100%  Investment holding

BY BB AR RBRAHES (E REZK

Clear Solar Limited* BVI usD1 - 100% 100%  Investment holding

BHEERAR* RERAHES (E REEK

Ensure Profit Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 100%  Investment holding

BEERRA B BT REEK

Cleveland Land Pty Ltd* Australia AUD1 - 100% 100%  Provision of hospitality and related

services in Australia

Cleveland Land Pty Ltd* M TR BORIMR B 15 R A5

R

Bellinzona Land Pty Ltd* Australia AUD1 - 100% 100%  Provision of hospitality and related

services in Australia

Bellinzona Land Pty Ltd* M TR FORMN R B IE R AR

R

Bellinzona Operations Pty Ltd* Australia AUD1 - 100% 100%  Provision of hospitality and related

services in Australia

Bellinzona Operations Pty Ltd* M TR FORN R B IE R AR

R

Cleveland Operations Pty Ltd* Australia AUD1 - 100% 100%  Provision of hospitality and related

services in Australia

Cleveland Operations Pty Ltd* M TR FORN R B IE R AR

R

Balgownie Estate Yarra Glen Australia AUD1 - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Pty Ltd*

Balgownie Estate Yarra Glen M TR REER
Holdings Pty Ltd*
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41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES NARAEZNMBRAIFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D) (&
Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:— (Cont'd) FEMBARIZFEOT  — (&)
Place of Particulars of Attributable Group's
incorporation/ issued share capital/ equity interest held effective
Name business and operation registered capital by the Company interest  Principal Activities
SRR BRITRE/ x5E
A% BEREEHE aERFE KRABARERE ERER TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# %
Balgownie Estate Yarra Glen Land  Australia AUD1 - 100% 100%  Provision of hospitality and related
Pty Ltd* services in Australia
Balgownie Estate Yarra Glen Land 2 TR PRI AT IS 2 B8R AR 75
Pty Ltd*
Balgownie Estate Resort Australia AUD1 - 100% 100%  Provision of hospitality and related
Operations Pty Ltd* services in Australia
Balgownie Estate Resort SN TR PRIMMR AT IS R AR RS
Operations Pty Ltd*
Charm Team Group Limited* Samona UsD1,000 - 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERNEERARAA)* Samona 1,0005 7T REEK
Bright Legend Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Limited
BERERREERAA Bk B REEK
FRRRBENRERAR PRC UsD3,300,000 - 100% 100%  Mobile internet cultural business
(“Hongqin”)
LERRBEMBRBERAR  H 3,300,000 7 BHEBEULES
(TE&])
Luck Key Investment Limited* BVI UsD21,089 - 50.50% 50.50%  Investment holding
(2015: 65%)
Luck Key Investment Limited* KERXES 21,089% 7T 5050% HWEZR
(ZT—1F:
65%)
Hong Kong Health Check and BVI UsD1,000 - 100% 50.50%  Investment holding
Medical Diagnostic Group (2015: 65%)
Limited*
EERRLRBEOUERERD RERLES 1,000% T 50.50% AR
)% (ZE-1%F:
65%)
Polyray Technology Limited* Hong Kong HK$17,000 - 100% 50.50%  Provision of health check and
(2015: 65%) health care related services
BEMRBRAF Bk 17,000 7T 50.50% et RRRABRYE
(Z2-h%:
65%)
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B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:— (Cont’d)

$t
»
el
|_|_|,
A
=
>
all
hufllg

N/

TEMBARZFHBET  — (&)

Place of Particulars of Attributable Group's
incorporation/ issued share capital/ equity interest held effective
Name business and operation registered capital by the Company interest  Principal Activities
SRR BRITRE/ x5E
A% BEREEHE aMEAFE KRABARERE ERER TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# 5
Polylight Technology Limited* Hong Kong HK$3,200,000 - 100% 50.50%  Provision of health check and
(2015: 65%) health care related services
BEMRBRAF B 3,200,0007% 7 50.50% fed#tiEin RRRABRYE
(Z2-h%:
65%)

Hong Kong Health Check Centre  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 50.50%  Provision of health check and
Limited* (2015: 65%) health care related services

FERRTOERRA* Bk B 50.50% et RRRABRYE

(Z2-h%:
65%)

Hong Kong Health Check and Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 50.50%  Provision of health check and
Medical Diagnostic Centre (2015: 65%) health care related services
Limited*

EERRRBEDHTLOERD BE B 50.50% et RRRAERYE
al* (ZZ—8%F:

65%)
Prosperity Management Limited* ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 50.50%  Provision of administrative services
(2015: 65%)
EHREEERAF" e BT 50.50% FREITER
(Z2—-h%:
65%)
Well Goal Management Limited*  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 50.50%  Holding of trademark
(2015: 65%)
ESERERAR* Bk B 50.50% FERHE
(Z2—-h%:
65%)

HK Health Check Limited* Hong Kong HK$100 - 89% 44.95%  Provision of health check and
("HKHCL") (2015: 57.85%) health care related services

EERRBRAF B 100/ 7T 4495% REERIRRBBRSE

([EEER]) (ZZ—-1%F:
57.85%)

Yuen Foong Medical and Imaging  Hong Kong HK$37,887 - 81.06% 36.43%  Provision of health check and
Diagnostic Centre Limited* (2015: 46.89%) health care related services
(“Yuen Foong”)

TERERFEDHTL B 37,8878 T 36.43% REERLRRBBRSE
BRAA*([nE]) (ZZ-1%F:

46.89% )
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B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES NARAEZNMBRAIFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D) (%8
Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:— (Cont'd) FEMBARIZFEOT  — (&)
Place of Particulars of Attributable Group's
incorporation/ issued share capital/ equity interest held effective
Name business and operation registered capital by the Company interest  Principal Activities
Bl BRTRE/ x5E
A% BEREEHE aERFE KRABARERE ERER TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# %
Joy Surplus International Limited* ~ BVI usD1 - 100% 50.50%  Investment holding
(2015: 65%)
LBREBRARAF RBRAES (EV 50.50% HEAER
(Z2-h%:
65%)
Speedco Pacific Limited* BVI usD1 - 100% 50.50%  Investment holding
(2015: 65%)
Speedco Pacific Limited* EERELHE E 50.50% AR
(Z2-h%:
65%)
Group Benefit Development Hong Kong HK$3,403,333 - 98.53% 49.76%  Provision of diagnostic scanning
Limited * (“Group Benefit") (2015: 64.04%)  services
ERBERBERAR ([BRE]) FE 3,403,333% T 4976% REDEHRERE
(ZZ—n%F:
64.04% )
Good Fortune Technologies Hong Kong HK$2,550,000 - 52.16% 26.34%  Provision of diagnostic scanning
Limited* ("Good Fortune”) (2015: 33.91%) services
REMRBERAR ([BE]) FE 2,550,000/ 7T 2634% REDEHRERS
(Z2—1%F:
33.91%)
Hong Kong Genesis Laboratory Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% 50.50%  Provision of molecular testing
Centre Limited* (2015: 65%) services
50.50% HREEHFEBRS
EEBRBIUDOAERDA BE 100/ 7T (ZZ2-0%F:
65%)
Ever Full Harvest Limited* BVI usb10 - 70% 35.35%  Investment holding
(2015: 45.5%)
Ever Full Harvest Limited* RERAES 10%7T 3535% REAMER
(Z2—-h%:
45.5%)
Hong Kong Cyclotron Laboratories Hong Kong HK$100 - 70% 35.35%  Manufacturing of PET
Limited* ("HKCL") (2015: 45.5%) Radiopharmaceuticals for
medical use
Hong Kong Cyclotron Laboratories &8 1007 7T 3535% AEPETHATMHENIERRRR
Limited* ( [HKCL |) (ZZ—58%F:
45.5%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+—A=1+—HIFE

41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AARRBIEENMBRAIFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D) (%)
Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:— (Cont'd) FTEWBRRZFBEOT : — (&)
Place of Particulars of Attributable Group's
incorporation/ issued share capital/ equity interest held effective
Name business and operation registered capital by the Company interest  Principal Activities
SRR BRITRE/ x5E
A% BEREEHE aMEAFE KRABARERE ERER TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# 5
Goldstar Investment Development  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
LEREERERRA Bk B MERE
Sun Ace (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 100%  Property investment
Mo (BE)BERRA Bk B MERE
Sure Taken Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 100%  Property investment
BRKREBRRAT Bk B MERE
Ever Robust Holdings Ltd Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 100%  Securities investments
BEERERAA B BT BEHRE
Mark Profit Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 100%  Money lending
BASBERARF B BT fHE
Timely Investments Limited* BVI usD1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Timely Investments Limited* HERLHE E REER
Golden Weapon Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% 100%  Mobile internet cultural business
SFEBRAF Bk BT BHERELES
TRELRM (LE)BRRAT  PRC UsD1,000,000 - 100% 100%  Investment holding and mobile
(Jixiang Information Technology internet cultural business
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd).*
("Jixiang")
DLESRM(LE)BRAT  $&E 1,000,000 70 REZBR LB EBBULER
(1K)~
FREABENRER AR PRC RMB1,000,000 - 51% 51% Development of online education
platform
FEEHBENRERD e AR #1,000,0007C REHETRER
Absolutely Talent Technology BVI UsD1,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited*
RERBEBERAF RERAES 1,000% 7T REZKR
Best Faith Limited* BVI usD1 - 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERBRAR RERAES [ REZKR
Successful Treasure Investments BVI UsD1,000 - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited*
KEIRERRDA* RERAES 1,000% 7T REZKR
Triple Art Limited Hong Kong HK1 - 100% 100%  Provision of administrative services
ZEFRRA BE BT RETERS
* Subsidiaries with no statutory financial statements or * B RARNEBE AT BRERKE AT
statutory financial statements are not audited by PKF. BHmERWIFARERER (BE) FETAD
EBPEZ
Note: Except that Jixiang and Honggqin are registered as a e Rt R RARBEREEEFM BRI
wholly-owned foreign enterprises under the PRC Laws BEGE LEBHEREEREREDR
and Shanghai EPRO and Weipu are registered as domestic M aBRREEIN REBEMEGHNE
enterprises under the PRC Laws, all subsidiaries of the Group RAIFEMKL KL BBR AR

are incorporated/established with limited liability.
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41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

The following table lists out the information relating to
Weipu, Luck Key, Yuen Foong, HKHCL, Group Benefit, Good
Fortune and HKCL, the subsidiaries of the Group which have
material non-controlling interests (NCI). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

The financial information of Charm Team Group Limited,

AKRFEEWBAA

A I E AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

==
=

(%)

TREJEBAEENMB AR (HEEEK
FEEME R ) E  Luck Key L& - FE
Bl B RELHKCLEER - TRE
B P HEERMBRRETRRIRE L HA
LB

ERNEBERAALREE (FE)ZEKRE

Gifted Children (China) Holdings Ltd. is insignificant to the

RARZHMBEMHAREL AEE -

Group.
As at 31 December 2016
RZB-RE+ZA=+-H
Luck Yuen Group Good
Weipu Key Foong HKHCL Benefit Fortune HKCL
Luck
i Key T EBER BE BE HKCL
NCI Percentage FEREZEAL 25.00% 49.50% 63.56% 55.05% 50.24% 73.66% 64.65%
As at 31 December 2016
RZB-RE+=ZB=+-H
Luck Yuen Group Good
Weipu Key Foong HKHCL Benefit Fortune HKCL
Luck
®E Key b} BEER i wBE HKCL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Current assets RBEE 4,380 17,116 4,972 7,181 49,110 4,132 11,566
Non-current assets EnBEE 78 144,010 124 693 513 - 3,507
Current liabilities RBAR (1,600) (55) (5,406) (24,925) (2,529) (60) (132)
Non-current liabilities EnBEE - - - - (10) - -
Net assets/|liabilities) BEEFE/ (BEFE) 2,858 161,071 (310) (17,051) 47,084 4,072 14,941
Carrying amount of NCI FERERREE 715 79,730 (197) (9,387) 23,655 2,999 9,659
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 —F—NFF+_A=1—HIFEZF

N == ey QR EE
41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES NARBIEEMB AR
==
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z-AFt-A=+-HLFE
Luck Yuen Group Good
Weipu Key Foong HKHCL Benefit Fortune HKCL
Luck
g Key T EBER F::321 BE HKCL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT TART TAERT TER TERT
Revenue WA 1,651 - 13,847 12,407 16,232 5,154 19,091
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8) /&H (31) (87) 245 832 1,287 (60) 1,209
Total comprehensive (loss)income 2 (E18) /I HaE (31) (87) 245 832 1,287 (60) 1,209
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI AEEFERER
(B#8) /&F (8) #3) 156 458 647 (44) 782
Dividend paid to NCI IR FIEERER RS - - - - - (60) =
Cash flows from/(used in) BEEBHME/ (FB)
operating activities BER 298 30,571 (368) 1,190 2,185 878 2,377
Cash flows (used in)/from BREEY (FE) /515
investing activities BER (10) (38,139) (12) (988) (3) 2 (31)
Cash flows from/(used in) BEEHHE/ (F18)
financing activities Aen - 21,136 - - - (128) -
As at 31 December 2015
RZE-RET-A=1+—H
Luck Yuen Group Good
Weipu Zhiqu Key Foong HKHCL Benefit Fortune HKCL
i Bl Luck Key e BEER Fiid2d BE HKCL
NCI Percentage IR L Al 25.00% 49.00% 35.00% 53.11% 42.15% 35.96% 66.09% 54.50%
As at 31 December 2015
—E-RE+ZA=1—H
Luck Yuen Group Good
Weipu Zhiqu Key Foong HKHCL Benefit Fortune HKCL
BT el Luck Key TE  AEER 32 &iE HKCL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT THT THET FTET FTET AT THT
Current assets MEEE 4,536 91,638 44,301 4,918 7,419 47177 4,300 9,202
Non-current assets EnBEE 132 91 105,871 349 2,066 1,481 15 6,505
Current liabilities MBAE (1,559) (51,285) (10,150) (5,821) (27,368) (2,851) (55) (1,299)
Non-current liabilities *RHEE - - - - - (10) - (676)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (BB)%8 3,109 40,444 140,022 (554) (17,883) 45,797 4,260 13,732
Carrying amount of NCI RS ERE 777 19,818 49,008 (294) (7,538) 16,469 2,815 7,484
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B2 T NNF+-A=1+—HIFE

— == =2 ==
41.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES ANN/NGIESE 30 NG
OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D) a)
Period from
1.9.2015 to
31.12.2015 For the year ended 31 December 2015
“Z-1fE
NA—A
ES
“Z-0fF
TZA
=+-H
A HE-_Z-RET-_A=1+-HLEE
Luck Yuen Group Good
Weipu Zhiqu Key Foong HKHCL Benefit Fortune HKCL
®T e Luck Key g EEER 321 B HKCL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR TEx T THT FHT TR TR
Revenue N 71 367,716 - 15,106 11,912 15,557 6,186 20,461
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(E8) /&R (485) 26,884 3,372 229 (1,268) 206 279 3,664
Total comprehensive 28 (BE) &
(loss)/income ek (485) 26,884 3,372 229 (1,268) 206 279 3,664
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI -~ D ELZ 3EIE IR 25
(B18) /&7 (121) 13,173 1,180 122 (535) 74 184 1,997
Dividend paid to NCI Y THEERER
35} - - - - - - 120 1,500
Cash flows from/(used in) & EEFTTS,/
operating activities (FR)RER 88 (7,898) 3,637 355 441 (697) 173 6,138
Cash flows used ininvesting X B ZEIFERE R
activities - (87) (11,882) - (1,036) (156) - (1,589)
Cash flows from/(used in) ~ BAEEEIFTTS,/
financing activities (FR)RER 67 11,973 11,731 - - - (255) (5,000)
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.
BT E
RESULTS E4
Years ended 31 December
BE+-BA=t—-HLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E—-F —ZT-=F —ZT-NF —T—FHF | ZB-XKE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHT
Revenue A 106,604 99,557 191,317 257,853 510,143
Loss/(profit) for the year ~ RNEEEIE,/
CaAl) (21,076) (9,603) (24,580) 81,963 (317,297)
Attributable to: JE{h -
Shareholders of PA/NEGT S
the Company (21,076) (8,847) (26,189) 63,951 (344,617)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE#22 f% # 25 - (756) 1,609 18,012 27,320
(21,076) (9,603) (24,580) 81,963 (317,297)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BENAE
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E-—F ZZ—=F Z—ZE-NF =—T—HF | ZB—XKE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FHT
Non-current assets FERBEE 26,312 77,307 274,708 564,311 757,923
Current assets MEEE 133,764 100,143 103,447 727,983 754,445
Deduct: Vi
Current liabilities mEAaE (6,951) (14,698) (46,464) (434,073) (289,175)
Net current assets mBEESE 126,813 85,445 56,983 293,910 465,270
Total assets less current  BEAER LGB AE
liabilities 153,125 162,752 331,691 858,221 1,223,193
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (39,587) (10) (10) 4,217) (169,875)
Net assets BEFE 113,538 162,742 331,681 854,004 1,053,318
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